
 

        Item #1 
 
TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    
JOSEPH P. GIESELMAN, EXECUTIVE MANAGER 
 
411 West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 
May 26, 2008 
 
 
MEMORANDUM  
 
 
TO:  Member’s of the Commissioners Court 
 
FROM: Joseph P. Gieselman, Executive Manager, TNR 
 
SUBJECT: Title 30 Amendments 
 
Proposed Motion:  CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPORIATE ACTION ON 

AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 30, TRAVIS COUNTY/CITY 
OF AUSTIN SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

 
Summary and Staff Recommendation 
The Commissioner’s Court set a public hearing on August 5, 2008 to receive 
testimony regarding two proposed changes to Title 30. The first code amendment 
pertains to the Critical Water Quality Zone and the Colorado River Buffer. The 
second code amendment pertains to public notification. The City of Austin initiated 
the proposed Colorado River Buffer code amendment and has already adopted this 
standard inside their corporate limits. The proposed public notification code 
amendment is being initiated by Travis County. Title 30 code amendments have to 
approved by both Travis County and the City of Austin prior to being included in 
Title 30.  
 
Notification of the public hearing was published in the July 6, July 20 and August 3 
Austin American Statesman. TNR staff has responded to information requests and has 
received supportive comments regarding the proposed code changes. 
 
The proposed amendments are as follows: 
 
Critical Water Quality Zone §30-5-92 
This proposed amendment would change the way the Critical Water Quality Zone 
(CWQZ) is measured and create additional buffer area along the Colorado River. 
Currently the CWQZ is measured from the centerline of the river. The code 
amendment proposes that the CWQZ be measured from the ordinary high water 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



mark. The inland boundary of the CWQZ will coincide with the boundary of the 100 
year Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood plain and be not less 
than 200 feet and not greater than 400 feet.   
 
The City of Austin initiated this code amendment in an attempt to protect the physical 
and ecological integrity of the Colorado River and to preserve recreational and 
economic values of the Colorado River. The stated benefits of the ordinance are to 
provide water quality protection; to protect river bank integrity; to prevent the loss of 
property from erosion; to preserve riparian habitat and the historic character of the 
river; to create potential recreation and trail opportunities.  
 
Staff  is working with the City of Austin amend Title 30 Section 5 so that public 
jurisdictions with recreational facilities along the Colorado River can have parking 
facilities in the CWCZ. 
 
Public Notification 
Public notification has been problematic in the City of Austin extra territorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ). Citizens have raised concerns that they are not receiving 
notification and, if they did receive notification it does not contain much information 
about what uses are proposed in the development. 
 
Currently Title 30 calls for public notification if a preliminary plan is filed, variances 
for final plats, and for site plans. This notice is sent to homeowners within 300 feet of 
the proposed application, registered Home Owner and Environmental Associations, 
and people within 500 feet that register as interested parties. This current notice does 
not detail the proposed uses in the development. If the applicant is requesting a 
variance for a final plat notification is sent and a notice is placed in the newspaper. 
 
As a result of the Travis County – City of Austin 1445 Interlocal Agreement when a 
plat requires public notification the Single Office sends one notice detailing meeting 
dates at both the City of Austin Zoning and Platting board and at the Travis County 
Commissioners Court. Prior to relying on this joint notification Travis County placed 
notification in the newspaper and a sign on lots that were being resubdivided and 
replatted. In some instances, depending on plat vacation elements, the County also 
sent notification to everyone in the original subdivision.  
 
Earlier this year the City of Austin amended the public notification requirement inside 
their corporate city limits to make them more inclusive. Inside the corporate city 
limits notification letters are sent to homeowners and renters (who use Austin 
utilities) 500 feet from proposed developments. This proposed amendment would 
mirror the notification requirements inside the corporate limits of the City of Austin. 
The other proposed code changes would require the applicant to state the specific 
non-residential use on the notification letter and require notification signs for certain 
actions such as resubdivisions and replats.  
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 3

Issues and Opportunites 
Critical Water Quality Zone §30-5-92 
The City of Austin has stated that there is a minimal overall impact to property. The 
impact of increasing buffers along the Colorado River would increase the CWCZ 
from thirteen percent to seventeen percent. Sand and gravel properties would lose 
about four percent of land available for mining. Existing sand and gravel operations 
would be grandfathered from the expanded buffer zone. There would be limited 
impact to other users due to the existing floodplain. Ninety-one percent of the 
proposed buffer area is in the existing 100 year FEMA floodplain. Additionally, the 
City has a variance process for property owners to redress disproportionate impacts 
from the new buffer. 
 
Expanding the CWQZ could have an adverse impact on Travis County if the County 
builds new parks along the Colorado River. There are certain uses (such as parking) 
that are not currently permitted in the CWCZ. Travis County recommends that the 
environmental code section of Title 30 that allows certain uses in the CWQZ be 
expanded to include the Colorado River. 
 
It is the responsibility of City of Austin staff to conduct environmental reviews and 
administering Section Five of Title 30 in the City of Austin extra territorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ). This division of review authorities was laid out in the Travis 
County – City of Austin 1445 Interlocal Agreement. City of Austin staff would 
administrate this proposed code amendment.  
 
 
Budget and Fiscal Impact:   
Colorado River Buffer 
None 
 
Public Notification 
Travis County will be responsible for making and putting up the public notification 
signs. 
 
Required Authorizations: 
County Attorney’s Office - Chris Gilmore 
 
Exhibits: 
Proposed Amendments to Chapter 30, Commissioners Court Orders 
JG:ab 1105 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Public Notification 

ARTICLE 7.  INTERESTED PARTIES AND NOTICE. 

§ 30-1-151 APPLICABILITY. 

This article applies to an application to be considered by a city board 
or commission or the city council. 

Source:  City/County subdivision agreement. 

§ 30-1-152 INTERESTED PARTIES. 

(A)  An interested party is a person who has an interest in a matter that 
is the subject of a public hearing or administrative decision.  A 
person has an interest if the person: 

(1)  is the applicant or the record owner of property that is the 
subject of a public hearing or administrative decision; or 

(2)  communicates an interest in a matter; and 

(a)  utility service addresses located within 500 feet of the 
site of the proposed development, as shown  in the City 
utility records as of the date of the filing of the 
application; 
occupies a primary residence that is within 500 feet of 
the site of the proposed development; 

(b)  is the record owner of property within 500 feet of the site 
of the proposed development; or 

(c)  is an officer of an environmental or neighborhood 
organization that has an interest in the site of the proposed 
development or whose declared boundaries are within 500 
feet of the site of the proposed development. 

(B)  A person communicates an interest in a matter that is the subject 
of a public hearing by:  

(1)  delivering a written statement that generally identifies the 
issues of concern to the body conducting the hearing, either 
before or during the public hearing; or 

(2)  appearing and speaking for the record at the public hearing. 

(C)  A person communicates an interest in a matter that is the subject 
of an administrative decision by delivering a written statement to 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



the single office or by making telephone contact with the single 
office.  The communication must: 

(1)  generally identify the issues of concern; 

(2)  include the person’s name, telephone phone number, and 
mailing address;  

(3)  be delivered before the earliest date on which action on the 
application may occur; and  

(4)  if the communication is by telephone, be confirmed in 
writing not later than seven days after the earliest date on 
which action on the application may occur. 

Source:  City Code Section 25-1-131. 

 

§ 30-1-153 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING. 

(A)  For a notice required to be given under this subsection, the single 
office shall give notice of a public hearing before a board or 
commission by mailing notice not later than the 11th day before 
the date of the hearing to: 

(1)  the applicant; 

(2)  utility service addresses located within 500 feet of the site 
of the proposed development, as shown  in   the City utility 
records as of the date of the filing of the application; 

(3)  a notice owner of property located within 500 300 feet of 
the subject property; 

(4)  registered environmental or neighborhood organization 
whose declared boundaries are within 500 feet           
of the site of the proposed development; and 

(5)  a party to an appeal. 

(B)  For a notice required to be given under this subsection, the single 
office shall give notice of a public hearing before the council by: 

(1)  publishing notice not later than the 16th day before the date 
of the public hearing; and  

(2)  mailing notice not later than the 16th day before the date of 
the hearing to: 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



(a)  the applicant; 

(b)  utility service addresses located within 500 feet of the 
site of the proposed development, as shown  in                 
the City utility records as of the date of the filing of the 
application; 

(c)  a notice owner of property located within 500 300 feet 
of the subject property; 

(d)  a neighborhood organization; and 

(e)  a party to an appeal. 

(C)  For a notice required to be given under this subsection, the single 
office shall give notice of a public hearing before a board or 
commission or the council by: 

(1)  mailing notice to a neighborhood organization not later than 
the 11th day before the date of a hearing scheduled before a 
board or commission and not later than the 16th day before 
the date of a hearing scheduled before the council; and 

(2)  publishing notice not later than the 16th day before the date 
of a hearing before the council. 

(3) posting a sign on the property stating the date and time of 
the public hearing 

(D)  This subsection applies to public hearings on two or more matters 
related to the same property or development. 

(1)  One notice may be provided if the hearings are scheduled: 

(b)  on the same date before the same body; or 

(c)  before two or more bodies not later than the 45th day after 
the date of a notice. 

(2)  The single office shall provide notice not later than the date 
the earliest notice is required.  

(E)  Notice provided under this section must: 

(1)  generally describe the subject matter of the public hearing; 

(2)  identify the applicant and the location of the subject 
property; 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



(3)  identify the body holding the public hearing and the date, 
time, and place of the public hearing; 

(4)  if the decision of the body holding the public hearing may 
be appealed, describe the procedure and requirements for an 
appeal; and 

(5)  include the address and telephone number of the office 
from which additional information may be obtained. 

§ 30-1-154 NOTICE OF APPLICATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
DECISIONS. 

(A)  For notice required to be given under this subsection, the single 
office shall mail notice including a description of the project not 
later than the 14th day after the filing of an application to the: 

(1)  applicant; 

(2)  utility service addresses located within 500 feet of the site 
of the proposed development, as shown  in                       
the City utility records as of the date of the filing of the 
application; 

(3)  notice owner of real property located within 500 300 feet of 
the subject property; and  

(4)  neighborhood organization. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Colorado River Buffer 
 
Section 30-5-92 (Critical Water Quality Zones Established) of the City Code 
is amended to add a new Subsection (C) to read as follows and reletter 
existing Subsection (C) as Subsection (D): 
 
(C) Critical water quality zones are established along and parallel to the 
shorelines of the Colorado River downstream of Town Lake. 

(1) The shoreline boundary of a critical water quality zone coincides 
with the river’s ordinary high water mark, as defined by Code of 
Federal Regulations Title 33, Section 328.3 (Definitions). 

 
 (2) The inland boundary of a critical water quality zone coincides 

with the boundary of the 100-year floodplain as delineated by the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency, except that the width of 
the critical water quality zone, measured horizontally inland, is not 
less than 200 feet and not more than 400 feet. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



ORDER OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 

WHEREAS, Travis County and the City of Austin, in fulfillment of the requirements of Chapter 
242, Local Government Code, relating to the joint regulation of subdivisions in the city's 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), adopted into their respective codes Title 30, Austin/Travis County 
Code relating to plats, subdivision construction plans, and subdivision of land in the ETJ, which 
took effect on December 22, 2003; and 
 
WHEREAS, Travis County and the City of Austin now desire to amend certain provisions of Title 
30 relating to the public notification requirements by adopting the attached Section 30-1-151, 
Section 30-1-152, Section 30-1-153, and Section 30-1-154; and 
 
WHEREAS, newspaper notice was published of the proposed amendments to Title 30 of the Travis 
County Code on July 6, July 20 and August 3, 2008, as required by law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in continued fulfillment of the requirements of Chapter 242, Local 
Government Code, the Travis County Commissioners Court by this order hereby adopts Section 30-
1-151, Section 30-1-152, Section 30-1-153, and Section 30-1-154 of Title 30 of the Travis County 
Code that are attached hereto. These amendments shall take effect on the effective date specified in 
a City of Austin ordinance enacting these amendments. 
 
ORDERED the _____day of _______________2008. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Ron Davis      Sarah Eckhardt 
Commissioner, Precinct One    Commissioner, Precinct Two 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Gerald Daugherty     Margaret Gómez 
Commissioner, Precinct Three   Commissioner, Precinct Four 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



ORDER OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 

WHEREAS, Travis County and the City of Austin, in fulfillment of the requirements of Chapter 
242, Local Government Code, relating to the joint regulation of subdivisions in the city's 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), adopted into their respective codes Title 30, Austin/Travis County 
Code relating to plats, subdivision construction plans, and subdivision of land in the ETJ, which 
took effect on December 22, 2003; and 
 
WHEREAS, Travis County and the City of Austin now desire to amend certain provisions of Title 
30 relating to the public notification requirements by adopting the attached Section 30-1-151, 
Section 30-1-152, Section 30-1-153, and Section 30-1-154; and 
 
WHEREAS, newspaper notice was published of the proposed amendments to Title 30 of the Travis 
County Code on July 6, July 20 and August 3, 2008, as required by law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in continued fulfillment of the requirements of Chapter 242, Local 
Government Code, the Travis County Commissioners Court by this order hereby adopts Section 30-
1-151, Section 30-1-152, Section 30-1-153, and Section 30-1-154 of Title 30 of the Travis County 
Code that are attached hereto. These amendments shall take effect on the effective date specified in 
a City of Austin ordinance enacting these amendments. 
 
ORDERED the _____day of _______________2008. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Ron Davis      Sarah Eckhardt 
Commissioner, Precinct One    Commissioner, Precinct Two 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Gerald Daugherty     Margaret Gómez 
Commissioner, Precinct Three   Commissioner, Precinct Four 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 

184307-1 

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT:  
 

REVISION OF TRAVIS COUNTY FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS 
 

This takings impact assessment is prepared using the series of questions in the Private Real 
Property Rights Preservation Act Guidelines (“Guidelines”) promulgated by the Attorney 
General’s Office under Ch. 2007, GOVT. CODE ANN. (“the Act”). The proposed action is 
Travis County’s adoption of revisions to its floodplain management regulations, Chapter 64 of 
the Travis County Code.   Some of the revisions are substantive, and some of them are 
procedural. 
 
Guidelines Question 1: Is Travis County a governmental entity covered by the Act? 
 
Yes. 
 
Guidelines Question 2: Is the proposed action covered by the Act?  
 
All of the amendments are exempt from the Act. The amendments are exempt under the 
following provisions of the Guidelines or the Act for the reasons indicated: 
  
a. §2.18 of the Guidelines.  
 
The procedural amendments and many of the substantive amendments impose no new burden on 
private real property.  To the extent the amendments impose no new burden on private real 
property, the amendments are not subject to the requirement in §2007.042 to perform a takings 
impact assessment. 
 
b. §2007.003(b)(11)(A) of the Act. 
 
The revisions to the County’s floodplain regulations are exempt under §2007.003(b)(11)(A) 
because they regulate construction in legally designated floodplains. 
 
c.  §2007.003(b)(4) of the Act 
 
The substantive and procedural amendments are exempt under §2007.003(b)(4) of the Act 
because they are actions reasonably taken to fulfill obligations mandated by state and federal 
law.   Subchapter I of Chapter 16 of the Water Code contains a mandate from the Texas 
Legislature that each city and county in the state adopt appropriate orders necessary for the city 
or county to be eligible to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program.  TEX. WATER 
CODE §16.3145.   The Texas Legislature authorized all political subdivisions to take all 
necessary and reasonable actions to comply with the requirements and criteria of the National 
Flood Insurance Program to ensure that flood insurance is available to all residents of the 
County.   The County is revising its floodplain management regulations (1) to ensure that they 
meet the minimum regulatory standards imposed by the Federal Emergency Management 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 

184307-1 

Agency (“FEMA”) for effective floodplain management, and (2) to clarify them so that they are 
easier to understand and follow. 
 
c. §2007.003(b)(5) of the Act. 
 
The substantive and procedural amendments are exempt under §2007.003(b)(5) because they 
simply modify regulations that provide a unilateral expectation that does not rise to the level of a 
recognized interest in real property.  
 
d. §2007.003(b)(13) of the Act. 
 
The substantive and procedural amendments are exempt under §2007.003(b)(13) because the 
amendments respond to real and substantial threats to public health and safety, significantly 
advance that purpose, and do not impose a greater burden than is necessary.   The purpose of the 
amendments is to promote public health, safety, and general welfare through the enactment of 
floodplain management regulations designed to reduce the likelihood that land use within the 
County will increase the dangers of flooding. Because they include measures that FEMA has 
determined will help to reduce flood damage, they respond to a substantial threat in a way that 
substantially advances public safety without imposing unnecessary burdens.   
 
Guidelines Questions 3 and 5: Does the proposed action result in a burden on private real 
property as that term is defined in the Act? How does it burden private real property? 
 
Each flood-prone community must meet the floodplain management standards set forth by 
FEMA in order for the residents of that community to be eligible to obtain insurance through the 
National Flood Insurance Program.  The proposed amendments to Chapter 64 of the Travis 
County Code clarify the standards for land use and development in floodplains to ensure 
minimum compliance with floodplain management criteria so that Travis County residents will 
continue to remain eligible for flood insurance.  Travis County has been regulating development 
in floodplains for more than two decades 
 
Guidelines Questions 4 and 6: What is the specific purpose of the proposed action? How does it 
benefit society? 
 
The flood hazard areas of Travis County are subject to periodic inundation which can result in 
loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental 
services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the 
tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety, and general welfare. These flood 
losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains which cause an increase 
in flood heights and velocities and the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses vulnerable to 
floods and hazardous to other lands because they are inappropriately placed and/or inadequately 
elevated, floodproofed, or protected from flood damage.   
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 

184307-1 

The purpose of the substantive and procedural amendments is to promote public health, safety, 
and general welfare, and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in Travis 
County through the establishment of comprehensive regulations for management of flood hazard 
areas designed to: 

A. protect human life and health; 
B. minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood-control projects; 
C. minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally 
undertaken at the expense of the general public; 
D. minimize prolonged business interruptions; 
E. minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains; electric, 
telephone and sewer lines; and streets and bridges located in areas of special flood 
hazard; 
F. help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of 
areas of special flood hazard so as to minimize future blighted areas caused by flood 
damage;  
G. ensure that potential buyers are notified that property is in an area of special flood 
hazard;  
H. ensure that those who occupy the areas of special flood hazard assume responsibility 
for their actions; and 

 I.  enable Travis County to qualify for the National Flood Insurance Program so that 
property owners may obtain federally subsidized flood insurance for structures. 

 J.  Encourage use of flood plain lands in accordance with their natural function as bearers of 
flood waters. 

 
Guidelines Question 7: Will the proposed action constitute a taking?  
 
Even if the amendments are not exempt, they do not constitute a taking. The amendments do not 
eliminate all viable uses of any private real property.  
 
Guidelines Question 8: Are there reasonable alternatives to the proposed action that would 
accomplish its purpose?  
 
An alternative to the amendments would be to leave unchanged the current provisions of Chapter 
64 and risk the eligibility of Travis County residents to obtain coverage through the National 
Flood Insurance Program.  
 
On March 26, 2008, FEMA issued a letter of final flood elevation determination to Travis 
County to inform the County that FEMA had completed its Flood Insurance Study (“FIS”) and 
re-evaluation of flood hazards in Travis County and will be issuing anew Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (“FIRM”).  FEMA’s letter states that 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 

184307-1 

  “[p]rior to September 26, 2008, your community is required as a condition of 
continued eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), to adopt or 
show evidence of adoption floodplain management regulations that meet the 
standards of Paragraph 60.3(d) of the enclosed NFIP regulations (44 CFR 59, etc.) 
by the effective date of the FIRM.” 

 
FEMA’s letter further stated that all standards set forth in 60.3(d) must be enacted in a legally 
enforceable document, including adoption of the current effective FIS and FIRM, and any 
additional requirements for eligibility can be met by: 

1. Amending existing regulations to incorporate any additional requirements of 
Paragraph 60.3(d); 

2. Adopting all the standards of Paragraph 60.3(d) into one new, comprehensive 
set of regulations; or 

3. Showing evidence that regulations have previously been adopted that meet or 
exceed the minimum requirements of Paragraph 60.3(d). 

 
  

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

1 of 91 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Community Development 
Block Grant Program: 

 
Improving the Affordability, 

Accessibility and Sustainability 
of Neighborhoods and 

Community Services 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Annual Action Plan for 
Program Year 2008: 

October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009  
 
 

Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 
Drafted 076/01/2008  

Approved by TCCC ____   
Approved by HUD ____ 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

2 of 91 

 

 
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 

 

Ron Davis 

County Commissioner, Precinct One 
 
 

Sarah Eckhardt 

County Commissioner, Precinct Two 
 
 

Gerald Daugherty 

County Commissioner, Precinct Three 
 
 

Margaret Gómez 

County Commissioner, Precinct Four 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

3 of 91 

Table of Contents 

STANDARD FORM 424 .....................................................................................................................................5 

INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................................................7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................................9 

SECTION I: GENERAL QUESTIONS.................................................................................................................................13 

ACTIVITIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN .......................................................................................................................14 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS........................................................................................................................19 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION............................................................................................................................21 

PROJECT SELECTION PROCESS .........................................................................................................................23 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS......................................................................................................................24 

MANAGING THE PROCESS AND INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE .....................................................................................28 

SECTION II: HOUSING ........................................................................................................................................................33 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ...........................................................................34 

BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING .................................................................................................................36 

IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE............................................................................................................38 

HOMELESS AND OTHER SPECIAL NEEDS ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................40 

HOME/ AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE (ADDI)..............................................................................40 

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT ..........................................................................................................................41 

SECTION III:  NON- HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ACTIONS ...................................42 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS ......................................................................................43 

ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY ..............................................................................................................................44 

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS ......................................................................................................................45 

LEAD-BASED PAINT.......................................................................................................................................46 

SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES........................................................................................................................47 

APPENDIX A:  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION .......................................................................................................................48 

APPENDIX B: MAPS .............................................................................................................................................................71 

APPENDIX C:  LIST OF PRIORITIES FOR THE 2006-2010 PERIOD ..........................................................................75 

APPENDIX D:  CERTIFICATIONS.....................................................................................................................................79 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

4 of 91 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

5 of 91 

 

Standard Form 424  
 
 

Date Submitted   Applicant Identifier Type of Submission 

Date Received by state  State Identifier Application  Pre-application  

Date Received by HUD 8/13/08 
Federal Identifier 
746000192  Construction  Construction 

   Non Construction  Non Construction 
Applicant Information 
Name:                                      Travis County UOG Code:                                       TX489453 

Address:                     P.O. Box 1748 DUNS Number:                       030908842 

 
Travis County                                   
Commissioners Court 

City:     Austin State: Texas Health and Human Services 

Zip Code:      78767  Executive Manager’s Office 

Employer Identification Number (EIN): County:  Travis 

74-6000192 
 Grant Start Date: 10/01/08 

Applicant Type: Specify Other Type if necessary: 

Local Government: County  

Program Funding 
U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development

Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers; Descriptive Title of Applicant Project(s); Areas Affected by 
Project(s) (cities, Counties, localities etc.); Estimated Funding 

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 Entitlement Grant 

CDBG Project Titles  Infrastructure Development to 
Support Affordable Housing, Owner Occupied Housing 
Rehabilitation, Public Services, Other: Social Work 
Services Expansion, Water/Wastewater Planning and 
Grant Administration. 

Description of Areas Affected by CDBG Project(s) 
Unincorporated areas of Travis County 

$CDBG Grant Amount 
833,133 

$Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged 
$77,956 

Describe 
SHOP Funds through Habitat 
for Humanity  

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged 
 

$Additional State Funds Leveraged 
0 

$Locally Leveraged Funds 
$483,730 

$Grantee Funds Leveraged 
$138,002 

$Anticipated Program Income 
0 

Other (Describe) 
 
 

Total Funds Leveraged for CDBG-based Project(s)   
$699,688 
 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 HOME 

HOME Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOME Project(s) 

$HOME Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

6 of 91 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for HOME-based Project(s) 

 
Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS 14.241 HOPWA 

HOPWA Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOPWA Project(s) 

$HOPWA Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for HOPWA-based Project(s) 

 
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 ESG 

ESG Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by ESG Project(s) 

$ESG Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for ESG-based Project(s) 

 
Congressional Districts of: 
Applicant Districts 
10,21 and 25 

Project Districts 
 10, 21 and 25 

Is application subject to review by state Executive Order 
12372 Process?  

 Yes This application was made available to the 
state EO 12372 process for review on DATE 
8/15/08 

Is the applicant delinquent on any federal debt? If 
“Yes” please include an additional document 
explaining the situation. 

 No Program is not covered by EO 12372 
 Yes   No  N/A Program has not been selected by the state 

for review 

 
 
Person to be contacted regarding this application 

First Name: Samuel Middle Initial: T Last Name: Biscoe 

 Title: County Judge Phone:  512/854-9555 Fax:  512/854-9535 

Email:  
Sam.Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us 

Website: 
www.co.travis.tx.us 

Other Contacts: 
Sherri E. Fleming and  
Christy Moffett  
P: 512/854-4100 
F: 512/854-4115 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

Date Signed 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

7 of 91 

Introduction  
 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered 

by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The program provides annual 

grants to cities and counties to carry out a variety of community development activities aimed at 

revitalizing neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and providing improved 

community facilities and services.  

 

Based on its population, in 2006, Travis County became an urban county entitlement community, a 

federal designation which afforded the County the opportunity to apply for CDBG funds. That year, 

Travis County applied for CDBG funds for the first time in 2006 and has applied and received funding 

for the past two yearsThe allocation amount of funds Travis the County receives annually is based on a 

HUD-designed formula that takes into account the county’s population size, poverty rate, housing 

overcrowding, and age of housing.  

 

Usage of CDBG funds must meet a variety of parameters set nationally by HUD and locally by the 

County.This is the third year Travis County will receive CDBG funds. As required by fFederal 

regulation requires that, a minimum of 70% of CDBG funds must target services to low- to moderate- 

income residents. Additionally, Travis County’s allocation specifically targets those living in the 

unincorporated areas of the county. Moreover, before an activity is eligible for funding, it must meet 

one of the following HUD’s national objectives: 

• Benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 

• Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or 

• Address other community development needs that present a serious and immediate threat to 

the health and welfare of the community. 

Finally, CDBG activities must meet additional eligibility requirements set by HUD in 24 CFR Part 570 

and address the priority needs established in Travis County’s 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 

Plan, an annual Action,  Plan, and an annual evaluation. . While the Consolidated Plan outlines the 

County’s housing and community development strategies to be addressed over a five year period, the 

Annual Action Plan defines the specific activities to be undertaken during the eachupcoming program 

year. As seen below, in the visual representation of the CDBG process, citizen participation has a 

central role in setting the priorities to be addressed. An evaluation is conducted every year to assess 

yearly accomplishments.   

 

Figure 1: CDBG Cycle 
 

  

             Every 5 years                                

 

Consolidated 
Plan 

Annual Evaluation 
(C.A.P.E.R.) 

Citizen Participation Annual Action Every year Every 5 years 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



   Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan  
 

8 of 91 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is 

designated by the County as the lead agency for the grant administration of the CDBG program and 

the single point of contact with HUD. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
9 of 91 

Executive Summary  

 

The Travis County Program Year 2008 (PY08) Action Plan lists the specific activities the county 

will undertake between October 1st, 2008 and September 30th, 2009 to meet the goals and 

objectives outlined in the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan. The Action Plan details how the 

County will use the CDBG funds and describes, as well as other available resources to address 

the County’s housing and non-housing community development needs. 

 

Public Input 

The Action Plan highlights different opportunities for the public had during the development 

of the PY 2008 Action Plan spring to provide input on the usage of the CDBG funds. During 

the months of February and March the County held public hearings and solicited proposals for 

the use of CDBG funds. Solicitation of input and invitation to participate in the public hearings 

were posted on the County’s website, and were published in newspapers of general 

circulation. In addition, notifications by mail were sent to public service providers and to 

citizens who had previously attended public hearings.  Lastly, two public hearings were held 

are scheduled during the month of July, and a 30-day public comment period is 

scheduledoccurred from the 25th of June to the 26th of July to solicit final comment on the 

proposed uses of CDBG funds.   

 

Proposed Activities for Program Year 2008 

The Program Year 2008 CDBG award for Travis County is $833,133. Allocations for 

community improvements are estimated at 73% ($606,136), at 8% ($64,788) for public services, 

and at 19% ($162,209) for administration and planning.  The funds will be used for 5 different 

activities:  

 

1. Infrastructure for New Housing Development ($500,000) – This project will provide 

funds to Austin Habitat for Humanity, a designated sub-recipient, for the installation of 

infrastructure for a new single-family housing development project. The infrastructure will 

be installed in land that will be purchased with CDBG funds from Program Years 2006 and 

2007. Affordable housing units will be built on the developed land and 41 very low and 

low income households will have the opportunity to purchase these homes at zero-percent 

interest percent financing.  

 

2. Housing Rehabilitation ($106,136) – This program will provide home repair and 

weatherization services to very low and low income homeowners residing in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County.  It seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
10 of 91 

living conditions, and safety in owner-occupied homes. Services will be provided by a non-

profit, designated as a sub-recipient and identified through a formal application process.  

 

3. Social Service Program ($64,788) – This program, also funded in PY06 and PY07, will 

continue to support the expansion of a social service program managed by the Family 

Support Service (FSS) division of the Travis County Health and Human Services and 

Veteran Services Department. The funding for this programmatic year will provide case 

management services to 100 households residing in the unincorporated areas of the county 

focusing on precincts 1 and 4.  

 

4. Water/Wastewater Planning ($108,704) – This project, also funded in PY07, will continue 

to support a Senior Engineer who functions as a Project Manager over two active CDBG-

funded street projects and who will assess and provide a report for potential water and 

wastewater projects to be considered in the future. 

 

5. Administration ($53,505) – These funds will cover operating expenses associated with 

the CDBG grant including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, 

membership and other business related expenses. In addition, it will cover the costs of 

contracting with a consultant that will complete an Analysis of Impediments to Fair 

Housing Choice in Travis County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
11 of 91 

 

 

The following figure summarizes the proposed projects and allocations for program year 2008, 

and the categories under which each project falls.  

 
Figure 2:  Proposed Projects for Program Year 2008 

 

Project Activities Amount 

Community Development 
1. Infrastructure for 

New Housing 
Development 

Installation of public infrastructure in land that 
will be used for the construction of affordable 
housing units  

$500,000 

 
2. Homeowner 

Rehabilitation 
Home repair and weatherization services $106,136 

Subtotal: $606,136 

Public Services 

 
3. Public Services, 

Other 

Family Support Services Social Work Services 
Expansion – Travis County HHS/VS Program 
 

$64,788 

Subtotal: 
$64,788 

 

Administration and Planning 
4. Planning Water/Wastewater Improvement Planning $108,704 
5. Administration Administrative Operating Expenses $53,505 

Subtotal: $162,209 

Total award by HUD: $833,133 

 

 

Past Performance  

The 2008 program year marks the third year Travis County has received CDBG funds. As a 

new entitlement, Travis County is working to establish the systems and procedures to support 

compliance with HUD requirements and to effectively manage the grant.  

 

During the first program year, no funds were spent given the numerous items needed tofor the 

initial grant start up the grant from zero, and due to an allocation error from HUD, which 

significantly delayed Travis County CDBG’s operation. Funds from program years 2006 and 

2007 have started to be spent.  As the projects are implemented, monitoring is taking place to 

assure grant compliance and project effectiveness.   
 

HUD conducts an analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each 

grant year.  For Travis County, the timeliness test will occur every July, starting July 2008.  The 

threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 times the current year’s 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
12 of 91 

allocation unspent.  CDBG staff will continually assess the spending of funds and the progress 

of projects to ensure timely spending.  To address timeliness considerations, CDBG staff 

recommended the following actions for its PY08 Action Plan:  the funding of administration 

and planning at maximum level and selecting projects that could spend money in 12-18 

months.  

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
13 of 91 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Section I: General 
Questions 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Action Plan for 
Program Year 2008: 

October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009  
 

 
 
 

 
-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
14 of 91 

 

Activities to be Undertaken 

Project # 1: Infrastructure for New Housing Development 

Project Description: 

This project will provide Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc., designated as a sub-recipient, 

construction dollars for infrastructure to support the land acquisition projects funded with 

CDBG dollars in PY 06 and PY 07.  Additionally, it will further increase the affordability of the 

owner occupied single family home units created.  Infrastructure includes streets, water, 

sewer, electric and gas lines.  The design and engineering of the infrastructure is complete; 

however, if changes are needed due to the results of the environmental assessment or other 

unknown factors, dollars may be used to pay for modifications to the design.  This project 

targets households at 25%-50% median family income. A public hearing will be held to receive 

comment on the location of the land when it is under an option agreement. 
 

Affordable housing units will be built on the developed land and 41 very low to low income 

households will have the opportunity to purchase these homes at zero-percent interest 

financing. For a definition of very low, low and moderate income households please refer to 

Appendix A titled Income Eligibility Requirements. 

 

Project 1: General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $500,000 

Leverage Funding:  

Self Help Homeownership Opportunity Program (SHOP) 

Austin Habitat for Humanity =$ 77,956 

Community fFunds secured by 

Austin Habitat for Humanity = $ 483,730 

Project Delivery:  Austin Habitat for Humanity as Subrecipient 

Project Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: December 1st, 2008 – July, 30th 2009 

Location: 
Currently unspecified area in the unincorporated areas of Travis 

County 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
15 of 91 

 

Project 1: Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Owner Occupied 

Housing 
Project: 

Infrastructure to support 

affordable housing development 

Eligible Activity: 
Public Facilities 

and Improvements 
Outcome Category Affordability 

Objective Category Decent Housing Specific Objective 
Increase the affordability of 

owner housing 

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  41 Housing Units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
03 Public Facilities and 

Improvements (General) 

Priority in the 2006-2010 

Strategic Plan#: 
High Travis County HTE #: HCNC01 

 

Project # 2: Home Rehabilitation 

Project Description: 

This project will fund home repair and weatherization services to low and moderate income 

homeowners in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The program seeks to improve the 

energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and the safety in owner-occupied homes. 

Services willould be provided by a non-profit, designated  non-profit sub-recipient and 

identified through a formal application process in which it the non-profit will demonstrates 

the ability to provide services and adhere to federal guidelines. The program will target 

households at or below 50 percent of the median family income (Please refer to Appendix A 

for income eligibility guidelines). A maximum of $5,000 of CDBG assistance per year will be 

provided to a single home.   

 

Project 2: General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $106,136 

Leverage Funding:  To be determined 

Program Delivery:  Designated Subrecipient 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1st, 2008  – September 30th, 2009 

Location: Homes in the uUnincorporated aAreas of Travis County 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
16 of 91 

 

Project 2: Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Owner Occupied 

Housing 
Project: Rehabilitation of existing units 

Eligible Activity: Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 

Environment 
Specific Objective 

Improve the quality of owner 

housing 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  20 Housing Units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  
14A, Rehabilitation, Single Unit 

Residential 

Priority in the 2006-2010 

Strategic Plan# 
High Travis County HTE #: HCIC02 

 

Project # 3: Continuation of FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project 

Project Description: 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

expansion of existing services.   The program will allow the continuation of the PY06 and PY 

07 expansion of social work services by one social worker, increasing capacity to provide case 

management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and 

outreach in the unincorporated areas.  The social worker  works in an office locatedoffices at 

the Community Center in Del Valle althoughprovides the majority of service provision occurs 

in through home visits in order to reduce transportation barriers.  The social worker will 

provide services in the community, as well as at the Community Centers in Manor and Del 

Valle, focusing on the unincorporated areas of precincts 1 and 4. 

 

Project 3: General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $64,788 

Leverage Funding:  
Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) Flex Funds – to be determined 

Best Single Source (BSS) Funds – to be determined 

Program Delivery:  
Family Support Services (FSS) Division of the  

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services  

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1st, 2008  – September, 30th 2009 

Location: Households residing in precincts 1 & 4 of the uUnincorporated aAreas of TC  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
17 of 91 

 

 

Project 3: Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: 
Public Services, 

Other 
Project: Social Work Services Program 

Eligible Activity: Public Services Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category 
Suitable Living 

Environment 
Specific Objective 

Improve the availability of 

services for low/moderate income 

persons  

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  100 households 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05, Public Services (General) 

Priority in the 2006-2010 

Strategic Plan#: 
High Travis County HTE #: HSOC03 

 

Project # 4: Continuation of Water/Wastewater and Other Project Planning Project 

Project Description: 

The Travis County CDBG program utilizes a Senior Engineer to function as Project Manager 

over two active CDBG-funded street and water supply improvement projects that will extend 

beyond October 1, 2008. In addition, The Senior Engineer will assess and provide a report for 

potential water and wastewater projects to be considered in the future by the Travis County 

Commissioners Court. 

 

The Sr. Engineer works with the CDBG administrative staff to evaluate and develop public 

works projects for the CDBG program. Specific duties include: assisting in identifying projects, 

serving as a technical advisor, conducting feasibility studies and analysis of potential projects, 

determining selection criteria for prioritizing projects, determining scope of projects, 

developing project schedules and cost estimates and budgets, preparing preliminary designs, 

developing construction specifications, negotiating cost and bid items with contractors, and 

serving as project manager including preparing related agenda packets, monitoring and 

inspecting work in progress, reviewing testing results, and approving change orders. 

 

The unincorporated areas whose water/wastewater needs will be assessed for eligibility and 

potential costs include: Apache Shores , Bluebonnet/Volker Lane , Deer Creek Ranch, FM 969 

& FM 973 area, FM 1625 Area, Imperial Valley, Kennedy Ridge, Littig, Manchaca Area, Mt. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
18 of 91 

Chalet, Mountain View Estates, Northridge Acres, Plainview Estates, Plover Place and 

Rodriguez Road.  

 

 

Project 4: General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $108,704 

Leverage Funding:  Not applicable 

Program Delivery:  Travis County Transportation & Natural Resources 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1st, 2008  – September, 30th 2009 

Location: Neighborhoods in the uUnincorporated aAreas of Travis County 

  

 

Project 4: Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Planning Project: Planning 

Eligible Activity: 
Administration 

and Planning 
Outcome Category Not Applicable 

Objective Category Not Applicable Specific Objective Not Applicable 

Citation 570.205 Accomplishment  
Other, assessment of  16 

neighborhoods 

Eligibility Not Applicable Matrix Code  20, Planning 

Priority in the 2006-2010 

Strategic Plan#: 
Not Applicable Travis County HTE #: HPWC04 

 

Project # 5: Administrative Operating Expenses 

Project Description: 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the 

grant including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, membership and 

other business related expenses.  The funds include $25,000 for a consultant to complete an 

Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice in Travis County.  This assessment is in  will 

serve as preparation for the next Consolidated Planning process and will allow the 

development of a plan to address impediments identified. 

  

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
19 of 91 

 

 

  

Project 5: General Project Information 

CDBG Funding: $53,505 

Leverage Funding:  $138,002 Travis County General Fund = $138,002 

Program Delivery:  Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Program Oversight: Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ Completion Date: October 1st, 2008  – September, 30th 2009 

Location: Not Applicable 

 

 

Project 5: Priority and Performance Measurement Information (HUD –prescribed) 

Priority Need Category: Not Applicable Project: Program Administration 

Eligible Activity: 
Administration and 

Planning 
Outcome Category Not Applicable 

Objective Category Not Applicable Specific Objective Not Applicable 

Citation 570.206 Accomplishment  

Other,  

Effective administration of the 

grant / Analysis of Impediment to 

Fair Housing Choice 

Eligibility Not Applicable Matrix Code  
21A, General Program 

Administration 

Priority in the 2006-2010 

Strategic Plan#: 
Not Applicable Travis County HTE #: HAGC05 

 

Performance Measurements 

 

A total of 162 households will directly benefit from the projects proposed in the PY 2008 

Action Plan. In addition, the water/wastewater needs sixteenof 16 neighborhoods will benefit 

from thebe assesseassessments of their water/wastewater needsd. Although these 

neighborhoods will not be receiveing a direct service in PY08, the assessment will potentially 

inform future future CDBG allocationss in the future. The following figure presents each 

proposed project with the corresponding outcome objective and performance indicator 

following HUD’s performance measurement framework. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
20 of 91 

 

 
 

Figure 3:  Performance Indicators/Outcomes/Objectives 
 for proposed PY 2008 Projects 

 

Specific Objectives Outcome Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance 

Indicators 
Expected # 

Actual 
# 

Percent 
Completed 

DH-2 Affordability of Decent Housing   

 
Project 1:  
Infrastructure for 
New Housing 
Development 

Address the need for 
affordable decent 
housing by providing 
infrastructure to 
support affordable 
housing development 
to very low and low 
income households 

CDBG 
 

Austin 
Habitat for 
Humanity 
(SHOP) 

� Number of 

housing units 
constructed 

� Number of 
households 
who will 
purchase 
homes 

 

41 To be determined 

DH-3 Sustainability of Decent Housing   

 
Project 2:   
Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Address the need for 
affordable decent 
housing by offering 
rehabilitation 
assistance to very low  
and low income 
households 

CDBG 
� Number of 
households 
assisted 

20 To be determined 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment   

Project 3: 
Public Services, 
Other 

Improve the 
sustainability of the 
suitable living 
environment by 
improving the 
availability of services 
for low/mod income 
persons 

CDBG 
� Number of 
households 
assisted 

100  To be determined 

SL-3 Sustainability of Living Environment   

 
Project 4: 

Planning 

 
Not applicable 

CDBG 

� Other – 
number of 
neighborhoods 
assessed 

16 To be determined 

Not Applicable    

 
Project 5: 
Administration 

 
 
Not applicable 

CDBG 

� Other – 
effective grant 
administration 

� Other – 
Analysis of 
impediments 
to Fair Housing 
Choice 

Not 
Applicable 

To be determined 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
21 of 91 

The coding system used in Figure 3 follows the numbering system established in the CDBG 

Community Planning and Development Outcome Performance Measurement System 

developed by HUD.  The outcome/objective numbers stand for the following: 
 

 
 

Figure 4: Numbering System for Outcome and Objective Coding 
 

Outcome 
Objective 

Availability/Accessibility Affordability Sustainability 

Decent Housing DH-1 DH-2 DH-3 

Suitable Living Environment SL-1 SL-2 SL-3 

Economic Opportunity EO-1 EO-2 EO-3 

 

Geographic Distribution 

The geographic location of the new housing development (Project 1) that will be supported 

with CDBG funds is to be determined. The homeowner rehabilitation program (Project 2) will 

support eligible housing units located in the unincorporated areas of any of the four county 

precincts, while the and the Social Service Programs (Project 3) will focus in precincts 1 & 4.  

The planning project (Project 4) will study the water and wastewater needs of 16 

neighborhoods located throughout the different county precincts. The following figure 

summarizes the locations for the project.   

 

Please refer to Appendix B for the following maps: 1) Map of the unincorporated areas of 

Travis County with low to moderate income block groups, 2) Number of African American 

Residents by Census Blocks, 3) Number of Asian Residents by Census Block Groups, 4) 

Number of Hispanic Residents by Census Block Group and 5) Number of Residents Identified 

as “Other Race” by Census Block Group. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
22 of 91 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 5: Geographic Distribution of Grant Activity 
 for the Program Year 2006 

 
PY08 Projects Locations  

Project 1: Infrastructure for 
New Housing Development 

A public hearing will be held once an option of agreement is placed 
on the land.  

Project 2:  Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Housing units residing located in the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County 

Project 3: Public Services, 
Other 

Households residing in precincts 1 & 4 in the unincorporated areas 
of Travis County 

 
Project 4: Water and 
Wastewater Planning 
 

Precinct 1: 
FM 969 & FM 973 area, Littig, 
Imperial Valley, Bluebonnet/Volker 
Lane, Kennedy Ridge, Plainview 
Estates 
 
Precinct 2: 
Northridge Acres 
 
 

Precinct 3: 
Manchaca Area 
Apache Shores, Mountain 
View Estates, , Mt. Chalet, 
Deer Creek Ranch 
 
Precinct 4: 
FM 1625 Area, Rodriguez 
Road, Manchaca Area 
Plover Place 

Project 5: 
Administration 

 
Not Applicable 
 

 

For additional information, please refer to Appendix C for the following maps: 1) Map of the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County with low to moderate income block groups, 2) Number 

of African American Residents by Census Block Group, 3) Number of Asian Residents by 

Census Block Group, 4) Number of Hispanic Residents by Census Block Group and 5) Number 

of Residents Identified as “Other Race” by Census Block Group. 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
23 of 91 

Project Selection Process 

 

Priorities for Funding 
In the Consolidated Planning Process for the 2006-2010 period, Travis County determined the 

high, medium and low priorities for CDBG funding. HUD defines high priorities as those 

programs which will be funded in the program year. Medium priorities are those that will 

only be funded if funding becomes available, and low priorities are those that will not be 

funded in a program year.  The following tablefigure summarizes the high priorities 

established for the 2006-2010 period. For a complete list of high, medium and low prioritiesy 

please refer to Appendix DC.  
 

Figure 6: High Priorities established for the 2006-2010 period  
 

Area of Priority 
Priority Level for the  
2006 – 2010 period 

Owner Housing  

Production of New Units High 
Rehabilitation of Existing 
Units 

High 

Infrastructure to Promote 
Affordable Housing  

High 

Infrastructure  

Water/Sewer Improvements High 

Street Improvements 
 

High 

Public Service Needs  

Youth Services High 
Other Public Service Needs High 

 

 

Project Prioritization 
Citizens, services providers and relevant county staff presented potential CDBG projects: 

• By participating in any of the five public hearings held during the months of February 

and March, 2008.  

• Through the submission of a Citizen Participation Form or a Project Proposal Form. 

Citizens or service providers who were not able to attend public hearings had the 

opportunitychoice of filling out any of these two forms by accessing it on the Travis 

County website or by requesting it from Travis County CDBG staff. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
24 of 91 

Travis County CDBG staff considered and weighed all potential projects identified by the 

public.  First, the CDBG Office staff assessed whether: 1) potential projects met one of HUD’s 

national objectives, 2) the proposed activities were CDBG eligible, 3) the proposed activities 

fell under the high priorities established under the Consolidated Plan, and 4) projects were 

feasible to complete in a timely manner.   

 

Second, CDBG staff evaluated high priority projects according to the following criteria: 

1. Feasibility of project (timeliness): Projects that have the ability to be implemented and 

completed within 18 months received more favorable review.  

2. Impacts a significant number of households:  Project scope and the number of persons 

benefiting was considered to determine the level of project impact. 

3. Benefit to low/moderate-income persons: Projects that benefit low- and moderate-

income households received more favorable review. 

4. Leverages/matches funds from other sources: Projects that utilize other funds (federal, 

state, local, private) and public/private joint efforts received more favorable review.  

5. Phased project (phased judiciously): More favorable consideration was given to 

projects that either 1) can be completedare finished within one year or 2) for which 

funding is only allocated for 12 – 18 months of work, but for which 12 - 18 months of 

work would be sufficient for the project to have nearly full impact. Phased projects for 

which 12 - 18 months of work would leave an incomplete project with little to no impact 

were considered with less priority. 

 

Evaluations were provided to the Travis County Commissioners Court for consideration when 

making final decisions regarding what projects were to be included in the PY 2008 Action Plan.   

 

Public Participation Process 

 
Summary of Public Participation Process 
 

Following the guidelines outlined on the Code of Federal Regulation (CFR), Title 24, Part 

91.105, and the Citizen Participation Plan approved by Travis County Commissioners Court 

on April 11, 2006, Travis County HHS/VS actively sought citizen participation during the 

spring of 2008 for the development of the 2008 CDBG allocation. Public hearings were held at two 

different times throughout the development of the PY 2008 Action Plan.   The following mechanisms 

were employed to gain input from both citizens and service providers. 

 

InputNeeds Gathering Process 
In order to elicit public input on the needs of those living in the unincorporated areas of Travis County 

for the development of the PY 2008 Action Plan (AP), Travis County HHS/VS held public hearings at 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
25 of 91 

several locations throughout the County in two different formats to acquire information. A total of 

five public hearings were held throughout the months of February and March 2008 to elicit 

public input on the housing, community development, and public service needs of those living 

in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. One public hearing was held on February 19, 

2008, at the Travis County Commissioners Court during the normally scheduled voting 

session.  Four other public hearings were held on February 21, 25, 27 and March 3, 2008, 

throughout the County, one in each of the four County precincts.  The following efforts were 

made to advertise the public hearings: 

 

� Notices were published in English and Spanish in newspapers of general circulation 

during the week of January 28th. including the Manor Messenger, Pflugerville Pflag, Hill 

Country News, Lake Travis View, North Lake Travis Log, West Lake Picayune, Oak 

Hill Gazette, the Austin Chronicle and in the Spanish language newspapers Ahora Sí 

and El Mundo.  

� Notices were posted on the Travis County website (www.co.travis.tx.us). 

� Flyers were posted on the seven Travis County Community Centers and outside of the 

Granger Building Commissioners Courtroom.  

� Notices were aired on Travis County Public Access Television Station for three weeks: 

the two weeks prior to the hearings and during the week of the hearings.  

� Several electronic mails were sent out internally to Travis County staff through public 

announcements and direct communication to relevant Travis County departments. 

� Emails and mail announcements were sent to citizens who had attended CDBG public 

hearings in previous years and had chosen to provide their contact information.  

� Announcements of the public hearings were also sent out to numerous electronic 

mailing lists (e-lists)tTo seek the participation of service providers and their clients, 

announcements of the public hearings were also sent out to numerous electronic 

mailing lists (e-lists). The e-lists included those prepared by the Community Action 

Network (CAN), the Basic Needs Coalition of Central Texas, the Austin Area of Human 

Services Association and the HHS/VS Research and Planning division. These e-lists 

were strategically chosen because they reach service providers in areas relevant to 

CDBG such as housing, economic development, redevelopment, public services and 

planning.  

 

During the five public hearings, vVerbal comments on the community’s existing needs were 

taken during these public hearings heard. Those that were not able to participate in the public 

hearings, had the choice of providing their input by filling out a Citizen Participation Form or 

a Project Proposal Form that were provided to interested parties upon request and were also 

available at the Travis County website.  For a detailed description of the input received during 

the public hearings and through the Citizen Participation Forms please refer to the sections of 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
26 of 91 

Appendix “B”, SectionsAtitled “Summary of Public Input Received” and “Detailed 

Testimonies Received during Public Hearing on 2/19/08.“. 

 
Efforts to broaden Public Participation 
The following efforts were made to broaden public participation:  

•To increase the access to information of Spanish-speakers, public notices were available in 

Spanish language newspapers Ahora Sí and El Mundo. 

•Public notices presented the option of requesting an American Sign Language or Spanish 

interpreter. 

•One of the public hearings was translated simultaneously to Spanish to accommodate 

Spanish speakers. 

•The CDBG website stayed current with documents and announcements of the public 

hearings. 

•Residents and services providers who were not able to attend the public hearings had the 

option to provide their feedback by filling out a Citizen Participation Form or Project 

Proposal Form.  
 

Public Comment PeriodNext Steps for finalizing PY 2008 Action Plan 
 

In order to elicit public comment on the proposed uses of CDBG funds for the PY08 Action 

Plan, a 30-day public comment period was held to receive written comments prior to final 

approval by the Travis County Commissioners Court.  Additionally, two public hearings, at 

the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom, were held during the comment period to 

receive testimony on the PY08 Action Plan and PY06 Substantial Amendment. The Travis 

County Commissioners Court approved the draft the PY2008 Action Plan on June 17, 2008. 

The Plan waswill be posted for 30 days to receive written comment prior to final approval by 

the Travis County Commissioners Court.  

 

Advertisements publicizing the 30-day public comment period and the two related public 

hearings for the PY08 Action Plan and the PY06 Substantial Amendment were in newspapers 

of general circulation during the week of either June 2nd or June 9th depending upon the paper. 

Additional advertising methods employed, which notified the community about the comment 

period and public hearings, are the same as those used in the abovementioned needs gathering 

process section. 

 

The 30-day public comment period will commenced on June 25, 2008, and will ended on July 

26, 2008.  Two public hearings wereill be held to receive comment on the Action Plan: one on 

July 1, 2008, and the second on July 22, 2008. Please refer to Appendix B to read the testimonies 

received during these public hearings. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
27 of 91 

ill be put in newspapers of general circulation, and wereill be posted on the Travis County 

website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and at the seven Travis County Community Centers. 

Announcements wereill be posted in both English and Spanish and were also sent out to 

citizens and services providers through mail. 

 

Summary of Public Comments  
A total of three public comments were received on the draft of the PY 08 Action Plan and the 

PY 2006 Substantial Amendment. Two people testified at the July 1, 2008, public hearing.  No 

one testified at the July 22, 2008, public hearing and one written comment was received during 

the 30- day public comment period.   

 A summary of the comments and interests include: 

� Continue to support the expansion of affordable housing in the community. 

� Consider a lease purchase program to assist persons in building credit and accessing affordable 

housing.   

� Consider funding the construction of the Lava Lane improvements after the design phase is 

complete.  

� Consider funding the connections to water and the design and construction of a  wastewater 

system for Plainview Estates.   

 

The Plainview Estates residents are included in the water/wastewater planning project for 

PY07 & PY08.  Affordable housing expansion and street improvements are included in all 

three plan years thus far.  All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and 

priorities of the five-year Consolidated Plan.    Please see Appendix “B”, Attachment “B” for 

the detailed comments received during the 30 day public comment period and public 

hearings.  
 

Written Explanation of Comments Not Accepted 
 

All comments were accepted. 

The draft of the Action plan will be available via Travis County’s website, at the seven Travis 

County Community Centers and upon request through the CDBG office. Comments on the 

PY08 Action Plan may be received in writing via e-mail or postal mail to the Travis County 

Health and Human Services and Veteran Services CDBG Staff no later than 5:00 p.m. on July 

26, 2008. On August 5th, 2008, it is anticipated that the Travis County Commissioners Court 

will adopt the final 2008 Annual Action Plan. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
28 of 91 

After final submission to HUD on August 15th, 2008, the final Program Year 2008 Action Plan 

will bee made available on the Travis County website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and at the seven 

Travis County Community Centers. 

 
Efforts to broaden Public Participation 
The following efforts were made to broaden public participation:  

• To increase the access to information of Spanish-speakers, public notices were available 

in Spanish language newspapers Ahora Sí and El Mundo. 

• Public notices presented the option of requesting an American Sign Language or 

Spanish interpreter. 

• One of the public hearings was translated simultaneously to Spanish to accommodate 

Spanish speakers. 

• The CDBG website stayed current with documents and announcements of the public 

hearings. 

• Residents and services providers who were not able to attend the public hearings had 

the option to provide their feedback by filling out a Citizen Participation Form or 

Project Proposal Form.  

 

Managing the Process and Institutional Structure 

 

Effective implementation of the Program Year 2008 Action Plan will involve a variety of key 

stakeholders.  Coordination and collaboration within the Travis County government and 

between agencies will be instrumental in ensuring the needs in the community are addressed 

effectively.  The departments and agencies anticipated to be involved in the implementation of 

the projects of the PY08 Plan are described below. 

 

Internal Travis County Departments 
As done during the implementation of CDBG’s projects during the past two program years, 

the CDBG office will continue engaging several Travis County departments to ensure efficient 

and effective project planning, management, and implementation of the PY08 Action Plan. The 

departments that are anticipated to play key roles in the execution of the projects include the 

Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS), the Transportation 

and Natural Resources Department (TNR), the County Attorney’s Office and the Purchasing 

Office. The Travis County Commissioners Court, as the chief-policy making authority of the 

County, they provides oversight and hasve the final approval on the actions recommended by 

the county staff. CDBG staff will continue to implement the policies and procedures to support 

the effective management of CDBG funds.   

   

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
29 of 91 

Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is the 

lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s CDBG funding.  This 

department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, developing the 

Consolidated Plan and yearly Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction with 

other county departments and other community partners, administering the finances, 

monitoring and reporting.  The CDBG office is located in the Executive Manager’s Office 

within HHS/VS.  HHS/VS reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight 

authority. 

 

It is anticipated the Research and Planning Division (R&P) within HHS/VS will work closely 

with the CDBG office to provide grant support as needed.  Due to the complexity and amount 

work to be completed related to of community planning, data collection, resource 

development, work to be completed, R&P and CDBG are coordinating data collection, 

resource development and planning efforts around housing and community development 

issue areas to increase capacity and reduce duplication of efforts.   

 

Additionally, the Family Support Services (FSS) Division of HHS/VS is the project manager for 

a CDBG public service project.  FSS also manages the seven Travis County Community 

Centers so the CDBG Office works closely with the Division to ensure access to CDBG 

documents and encourage outreach and citizen engagement through the Centers. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court  

The Commissioners Court is made of four elected commissioners, one to represent each county 

precinct and the County Judge who serves as the presiding officer. As a group, the 

Commissioners and County Judge are the chief policy-making and governing body of the 

county government. The Commissioner’s Court makes all final decisions about CDBG fund 

allocations 

 

.  
 

 

 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and the CDBG office work 

closely to coordinate environmental review functions, project planning, implementation and 

GIS mapping. TNR and CDBG employees have been trained in environmental regulations.  

This cross training of both departments allows for quality review and peer consultation.  More 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
30 of 91 

formalized processes and policies for Travis County’s environmental review processes will be 

developed over the next year to take effect during the implementation of the PY08 Action Plan.   

 

In addition, as part of the project that was approved for the PY07 Action plan, the CDBG office 

is working closely with a Senior Engineer the TNR office has hired to prepare an assessment of 

areas that need water/wastewater improvements. The CDBG office and the Senior Engineer 

will coordinate the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, cost estimates, and project design.  
 

County Attorney’s Office 

The County Attorney’s Office creates and reviews legal agreements as well as providesd legal 

advice and consultation.  They have created templates to assist with CDBG procurement 

procedures, r and related services consultant servicess, and subsequent construction 

documents, and templates for sub-recipient agreements.  This type of collaboration is expected 

to continue during the implementation of the PY08 Action Plan. 
 

Purchasing Office 

The Purchasing Office manages the CDBG procurement processes for commodities, 

professional services and construction.  The office received a position funded by the Travis 

County general fund in 2006 to support CDBG and programs of the Texas Department of 

Transportation (TxDOT) -- two new streams of federal funding.  This approach supports 

compliance with common federal standards and promotes efficiencies within the County.  In 

addition, this position ensures compliance with required labor standards and submits related 

reports to the CDBG office. The collaboration between the CDBG office and the Purchasing 

office is also expected to continue during the implementation of the PY08 Action Plan. 

 

Public Sector and Non-Profits 
During the implementation of the PY08 Action Plan, the Travis County CDBG office 

anticipates coordinating with a variety of local non-profits and governmental entities activities 

related to project and grant management, and community planning.  The following list 

provides some examples of the type of engagements the Travis County CDBG office 

anticipates to build with the public and private sectors: 

 

� Consultation with other entitlement counties and cities to exchange models for CDBG 

grant management and project implementation;  

� Information exchange and coordination with other implementing agencies on jointly 

funded projects;    

� Coordination of planning efforts for affordable housing and ending homelessness 

initiatives with local stakeholders including coalitions of non-for-profits, the City of 

Austin, and regional organizations; 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
31 of 91 

� Coordination of planning efforts with the University of Texas, in particular with the 

faculty and students of the Community and Regional Planning Department for areas 

such as developing an affordable housing policy for the County and developing a 

comprehensive analysis of impediments to fair housing choice;  

� Coordination of planning efforts with the Travis County Housing Authority and Travis 

County Housing Finance Corporation for affordable housing programs in the 

unincorporated areas of the county; 

� Partnerships with local Community Housing and Development Organizations 

(CHDOs), non-profits, and other community development and housing providers to 

explore options for community development and public service projects and leverage 

other federal, state, local and private funding. 
 

Monitoring 
As the lead agency for development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan, the Travis 

County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department implements standard 

policies and procedures for monitoring the implementation of CDBG activities.  These 

monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and compliance with 

financial requirements. Federal guidelines that must be followed include: OMB A-110, OMB 

A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 (CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG) and the Davis Bacon 

Act and Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CDBG). 

 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in 

conjunction with the Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not 

limited to contract negotiations, compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  
 

Sub-Recipients 

Sub-recipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and 

public service activities.  The sub-recipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic 

monitoring.  Sub-recipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance on-site in the 

following manner: 

1. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval 

by financial services and the Auditor’s Office. 

2. All new sub-recipients will be monitored quarterly until no findings occur.  

3. After two consecutive monitoring reports with no findings, semi-annual visits will 

occur. 

4. Monitoring visits may occur on an annual basis if a sub-recipient has a long-standing 

record (three or more years) with no substantial findings. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
32 of 91 

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by sub-recipient fiscal 

performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. 

Programmatic and fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. 

 
 

 

 

Contractors 

Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public 

services.  Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify 

expenditures. The contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The 

following steps are an integral part of the monitoring process for each contract: 

1. On-site reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will 

occur to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local 

building and construction standards, and review of engineering plans and 

specifications. 

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual 

obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or 

future contracts as well as a hold on any payments. 

3. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval 

by financial services and the Auditor’s Office. 
 

Internal Travis County Departments 

Internal Travis County projects will be monitored through Travis County HHS/VS CDBG staff. 

Monitoring activities will include documentation and tracking mechanisms such as sign off 

prior to invoices being paid, regular meetings with project management staff, and frequent 

checking of eligibility files, if applicable.    

 

Project Files 

Travis County HHS/VS staff will maintain files in order to document each project and its 

respective compliance with HUD and related regulations. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
33 of 91 

 
 
 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Section II: Housing 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  

Annual Action Plan 

 
 
 

 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
34 of 91 

 

Overview of Housing Services supported by Travis County 

 

Travis County addresses the multiple housing needs of its residents through diverse 

strategies that include the support of homeless and emergency shelters; transitional, 

public, assisted, and rental housing; first-time homebuyer programs and owner-occupied 

assistance programs.  These services are either directly delivered by county departments, 

affiliate entities or by contracted not-for-profit agencies. The following table summarizes 

the county departments and contracted agencies engaged in the provision of housing 

services in Travis County. 

 

Travis County HHS/VS Purchased Services to Support Housing 

Travis County HHS/VS invests significantly in the continuum of housing services 

through contracts with non-profits.  For Contract Year 2008 (CY2008), which aligns with 

the calendar year, Travis County has committed the financial resources outlined in the 

figure below. 

 

Figure 7: Overview of Travis County Purchased Services Investment 

 in Housing for Contract Year 2008 

 

Area of the Housing Continuum Investment 

Emergency Assistance $587,018 

Homeless Shelters $397, 858 

Transitional Housing 
 

$226,320 
 

Total HHS/VS Purchased Services Housing 
Investments 

1,211,196 

 

Travis County HHS/VS Housing Services  

The Travis County Housing Services performs weatherization and home repairs on 

houses occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living 

conditions, and safety in these homes.  Funding for services comes from the Texas 

Department of Housing and Community Affairs, the City of Austin and the Travis 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
35 of 91 

County General Fund.  Currently, 107 households are on the waiting list for these needed 

essential services. 

 

Travis County HHS/VS Family Support Services Division 

The Family Support Services (FSS) Division provides rent and mortgage assistance for 30 

day housing stabilization as well as utility assistance.  Funding for services comes from 

the Travis County General Fund, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 

Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program and a variety of local electric and gas utility 

providers.  

 

Other Travis County HHS/VS Divisions 

Other HHS/VS Divisions provide emergency rent or utility assistance on a smaller scale 

than FSS.  These dollars are usually a part of a comprehensive case management program 

with strategic use of funds for families in need. 

 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

Through the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (TCHFC), Travis County is 

engaged in a number of efforts to foster and maintain affordable housing.  The 

Corporation provides single-family home ownership (including down payment 

assistance) opportunities to first-time homebuyers who meet certain income 

requirements.  In addition, the Corporation issues tax-exempt bonds to finance the 

construction or acquisition of multi-family apartments that must provide rental units to 

certain low and moderate-income families.   

 

The Housing Authority of Travis County 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, three Shelter Plus Care Projects and a Lease-

Purchase program.  

 

The public housing sites have a total of 105 housing units while the Shelter Plus Care 

projects provides rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in the 

Austin-Travis County area.  The program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible 

and intensive support services to promote community tenure and independence. These 

Public Housing and Shelter Plus sites are all located in the incorporated areas of the 

county.   

 

In the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Program, assisting very low income, disabled and elderly families or individuals.  HATC 

also operates a Lease-Purchase program, to provide homeownership opportunities for 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
36 of 91 

prospective homebuyers who can afford monthly mortgage payments, but do not have 

funds for a down payment and/or closing costs or the credit standing to qualify for a 

loan.   

 

CDBG Housing Investments 

The Travis County CDBG program has supported projects that seek to preserve and 

expand the supply of affordable housing units. For the combined program years 2006, 

2007, and 2008 CDBG is supporting the construction of affordable single family homes by 

providing funds for the land acquisition and the infrastructure that will be used to build 

41 homes for very low and low income families. Additionally, PY08 CDBG funds will 

target home rehabilitation for the first time. These services will build upon and expand 

existing Travis County efforts in home repair and weatherization. Figure 8 summarizes 

the CDBG housing investments.  

 

Figure 8: Overview of Travis County CDBG Investment in Housing  

 

Housing Activities 
CDBG Housing 

Investments 
Impact 

PY06: Land acquisition for the 
Production of New Owner Housing Units   

$250,000 

PY07: Land acquisition for the 
Production of New Owner Housing Units   

$195,518 

PY08: Infrastructure for new housing 
development 

$500,000 

 
 

41 Households 

PY08: Home Rehabilitation $106,136 20 households 

Total CDBG Housing Investments $1,051,654 61 households 

 

Barriers to Affordable Housing 

 

Many factors impact affordability of the housing stock in the unincorporated areas of 

Travis County. The high cost of living and the demand for land and housing create a lack 

of affordable housing for very low- and low-income households.  Outlined below are the 

barriers to affordable housing identified through the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan’s needs 

assessment, housing market analysis, provider forum and surveys, consultations and 

public hearings. 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
37 of 91 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing 

Travis County’s Housing Finance Corporation currently has funding and programs in 

place to increase affordable home ownership through first time homebuyers down 

payment assistance and bond programs.  While this funding creates opportunities to 

increase housing affordability poor credit scores and other factors make it difficult for 

low to moderate-income families to qualify for mortgage loans.  

The majority of Travis County residents with a housing cost burden are renters.  Not 

enough funding exists to subsidize renters to make rents more affordable.   

 

High Cost of Housing, Land and Infrastructure 

The high cost of housing, land and infrastructure makes homeownership and rents 

unaffordable to many of Travis County’s low-income families.  For residents with low- to 

moderate-income, the availability of homes at affordable prices is dwindling.    

 

Building Codes, Zoning Provisions, Growth Restrictions and Fees  

At this time, Travis County does not have any building codes, zoning provisions or 

growth restrictions in the unincorporated areas.  This is largely a function of state statutes 

that place significant limits on the authority of counties to regulate or restrict 

development.  While less restrictions, codes and provisions initially increase affordable 

development, it also increases the likelihood for substandard housing and other 

unsuitable living conditions throughout the unincorporated areas. The Travis County 

Commissioners Court is currently exploring ways the county can expand its land use 

authority in the unincorporated areas.  

 

Environmental Regulations  

Several state and federal regulations exist to protect the environment including the 

Endangered Species Act, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System and the 

Wetland regulations. Texas rules include regulation for the installation of septic systems 

and for development over the Edwards Aquifer. These regulations may increase costs for 

development, affecting affordability. 

 

Addressing Barriers to Affordable Housing 

Refer to previous section to see Travis County’s investments in promoting affordable 

housing. The following figure presents the Housing Priority Needs Summary Table 

prescribed by HUD.  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
38 of 91 

 

Figure 9: Housing Priority Needs and Goals  

 

 

Housing Priority Needs and Accomplishments Summary 

Priority Housing 
Needs (Households) 

Priority Need Level 
(High, Medium, 

Low) 

5-Year 
Goals 

PY 2008 
Estimates 

0-30% High 2 0 
31-50% High 1 0 

Small 
Related 

51-80% High 2 0 
0-30% Medium 0 0 
31-50% High 1 0 

Large 
Related 

51-80% High 1 0 
0-30% High 1 0 
31-50% High 0 0 Elderly 

51-80% Medium 0 0 
0-30% High 1 0 
31-50% High 1 0 

Renter 

All Other 

51-80% High 2 0 
0-30% High 20 20 
31-50% High 15 41 

 
Owner 

51-80% High 31 0 
Total Goals   78 0 
Total 215 Goals* N/A N/A 
Total 215 Renter Goals* N/A N/A 
Total 215 Owner Goals* N/A N/A 

 

Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has a commitment to 

eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to persons with 

disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 

the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a 

variety of regulations and program requirements.  

 

As an entitlement county receiving CDBG funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its 

fair housing responsibilities by developing an analysis of impediments to fair housing 

choice and by taking actions to overcome the identified impediments. Given the County’s 

limited history administering the grant (two years and half), the complexities of 

conducting a thorough analysis, and the limited staff resources, the CDBG office of Travis 

County developed a preliminary analysis to lay the ground for a more comprehensive 

analysis to be conducted by a consultant in the program year 2008.  Part of the funds 

requested for CDBG Program Year 2008 administrative expenses will fund the study. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
39 of 91 

 

The preliminary analysis highlights the impediments identified by the City of Austin in 

the analysis they published in February, 2005.  Since a lotmuch of the analysis conducted 

by the city, used county data, the impediments can be expected to hold in other areas of 

the county including non-incorporated areas. The identified impediments are the 

following: 

 

� Lack of accessible housing to meet the need of the disabled community throughout 

the county 

� Lack of affordable housing 

� Discrimination of minorities in housing rental and sales market 

� Misconception by property managers concerning family occupancy standards 

� Predatory lending practices 

� Disparity in lending practices 

� Failure of mortgage lenders to offer products and services to very low-income and 

minority census tracts people  

� Insufficient financial literacy education 

� Insufficient income to afford housing 

 

The analysis of impediments that will be conducted with funds from the PY08 Action 

Plan, will reveal to what extent the impediments mentioned are applicable to the county 

as a whole as well as any other impediments that might be unique to the unincorporated 

areas. The analysis will also design an action plan to address those impediments.  

 

Travis County currently addresses issues of housing discrimination by funding social 

services from the Austin Tenant’s Council (ATC) and Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid, Inc. 

ATC provides information about housing rights and advocacy to protect the housing 

rights of low income and minority residents of Travis County.  Texas Rio Grande Legal 

Aid, Inc. provides legal assistance to obtain or preserve safe, decent and affordable 

housing for clients facing eviction and/or homelessness.  The Family Support Services 

Division, which operates within HHS/VS, addresses issues of possible fair housing 

discrimination through referral to these organizations.  

 

In spite of the efforts made by funding the work of these two organizations, the County 

needs to develop an action plan, which addresses impediments to fair housing choice. 

The development of a comprehensive plan to address identified issues will allow the 

County to target efforts to reduce discrimination and barriers to affordable housing 

through advocacy, policy change and strategic investments.  
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
40 of 91 

Homeless and other special needs activities 
 

Planning Efforts to End Homelessness 

Travis County is a member of the Ending Chronic Homelessness (ECHO) Coalition. The 

overall role of ECHO is to identify specific strategies and to oversee ongoing planning 

and implementation of a plan to end chronic homelessness in Austin and Travis County. 

The ECHO Coalition is comprised of four subcommittees: Planning & Evaluation, 

Prevention, Exiting, and Systemic Issues. Regular monthly meetings for each 

subcommittee are held, and plenary meetings for all ECHO members are held quarterly. 

Travis County CDBG staff joined the Planning and Evaluation Committee during PY07 

and during the coming year will be participating in the Independent Review Team that 

will reviews and rank HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) applications and will provides 

feedback to contracting agencies.  

 

Homeless Services   

During the 2008 program year, Travis County will not target the use of Community 

Development Block Grant funds toward homeless efforts.  During calendar year 2008, 

Travis County is investing over $350,000 in general fund dollars in contracts with social 

service providers targeting the homeless in conjunction with the Austin/Travis County 

ESG grant administration and the Austin/Travis County Plan to End Chronic 

Homelessness.   
 

Homelessness Prevention 

A variety of homelessness prevention efforts are made through the Travis County 

General Fund and other grant sources.  HHS/VS invests directly through its Family 

Support Services Division (FSS) to address housing stability issues including rent, 

mortgage and utility assistance.  Annually, FSS provides over $ 1,899,000 of General Fund 

and grant assistance dollars.   For 2008, purchased service investments with non-profits  

will totals over $580,000.  

 
HUD Continuum of CARE (Homeless SuperNOFA)   

Austin/Travis County receives approximately $3.7 million per year in HUD Continuum 

of Care (CoC) funding. This funding is provided for homeless assistance and has been 

static for several years due to no additional SuperNOFA funds awarded to the CoC. 

 

HOME/ American Dream Down Payment Initiative (ADDI) 

 

Travis County does not receive HOME or ADDI funds at this time.   

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
41 of 91 

 

 

Emergency Shelter Grant  

 

Travis County does not receive Emergency Shelter Grant funds at this time.   

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
42 of 91 

 

Travis County 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section III:  
Non- Housing Community 
Development and Other 
Actions 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009  

Annual Action Plan 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
43 of 91 

Non-Housing Community Development Investments 

 

During the past three years, CDBG dollars in Community Development has supported 

the improvement of a water delivery system, the improvement of substandard roads and 

the planning of water and wastewater projects. Refer to the figure below for a summary 

of CDBG investments in community development for 2006-2008. 
 

Figure 10: Overview of Travis County  
CDBG Investment in Community Development 

 

Table 2B: Community Development Needs/Projects 

Community Development Needs/Projects 
Priority Need 

Level 
CDBG 

Investments  

INFRASTRUCTURE    

    Water Improvements PY06  
     

High $ 200,000 

     
     Street Improvements PY 06  
     

 
High 

 
$ 388,659 

 

      
     Street Improvements PY 07 

 
High 

 
$ 500,000 

 

 Total 
Infrastructure 

$ 1,088,659 

PUBLIC SERVICE   

Other Public Service Needs PY 07 High $  64,000 

  Other Public Service Needs PY 08 High $ 64,877 

 Total Public 
Service 

$ 128,877 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Low $ 0 

PUBLIC FACILITY  Medium  
and Low 

$ 0 

PLANNING   

 Water/Wastewater Improvement  
 Planning PY 07 

Not applicable $  88,727 

 Water/Wastewater Improvement  
 Planning PY 08 

Not applicable $ 108,704 

 Total 
Planning 

$ 197,431 

TOTAL CDBG Dollars Invested in Community Development: $ 1,414,967 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
44 of 91 

 

In addition to CDBG investments, the County’s infrastructure department, 

Transportation and Natural Resources, conducts community development activities in 

the form of public parks, bridge and drainage projects, storm water management, road 

maintenance, onsite sewage facilities, transportation planning, and various other projects, 

totaling approximately $74,125,080 in PY 2007.   

 

Water and Wastewater Needs 

Water and Waster wastewater needs have been a recurring need brought up in the CDBG 

public hearings held during the last three years. As result of a lowering water table as 

well as the development occurring in the South and East areas of the County, families are 

experiencing a shortage of water in their wells.  Some families have to truck in water, 

while others go without this needed resource.  The public infrastructure needed to 

resolve neighborhoods’ access to water is costly and requires strategic planning and the 

creation of partnerships.   

 

CDBG is funding a water/wastewater study of those neighborhoods who that have self-

identified a need. The study will provide the County objective and organized data to 

determine next steps.   The planning will also assist in the development of opportunities 

to leverage funds with public and private dollars to address identified needs. 
 

Anti-Poverty Strategy 

 

Travis County’s lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human 

Services & Veterans Service Department, whose mission is “to work in partnership with 

the community to promote full development of individual, family, neighborhood, and 

community potential.”  The vision of HHS/VS is “optimizing self-sufficiency for families 

and individuals in safe and healthy communities.”  Both the mission and vision of 

HHS/VS are essentially aimed at preventing and ameliorating conditions of poverty in 

Travis County. 
 

Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs that assist individuals and 

families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The County 

carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services 

managed by the Health and Human Service and Veteran Service Department and by 

purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 

addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the 

poverty and basic needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
45 of 91 

poverty efforts, and supports public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate 

conditions of poverty. 

 

HHS/VS contracts annually with over 40 non-profits in the form of social service 

contracts. During the 2007 program year, approximately $8,133,956 were invested on 

social service contracts.  In addition, during the 2007 program year the Health and 

Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) provided approximately 

$15,770,193 in direct public services.  Figure 11 summarizes Travis County Public Service 

Investments during program year 2008. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HHS/VS began to develop a formal anti-poverty strategy during the 2006 program year.   

A committee made up of HHS/VS employees from across different divisions met to 

discuss the development of an anti-poverty strategy led by CDBG staff.  In PY08 work 

will continue to further the development of an official anti-poverty strategy.   

 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

 

HUD identifies non-homeless special needs populations as elderly, frail elderly, those 

with severe mental illness, the developmentally disabled, the physically disabled, persons 

with alcohol and other drug addictions, victims of domestic violence, and persons living 

with HIV/AIDS.  Over the five-year strategic direction of the 1006-2010 Consolidated 

plan, no specific goals for CDBG are targeted to address non-homeless special needs.   

 

Figure 10. Travis County Public 

Service Investment, PY2007
HHS/VS 

services

65.8%

CDBG public 

services

0.3%

Travis 

County 

social 

service 

contracts

33.9%

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
46 of 91 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to special needs populations through direct 

services as well as social service contracts and inter-local agreements with other 

governmental organizations.  Travis County HHS/VS invests in different programs to 

address public health, substance abuse, indigent health, and mental health needs.  

 
Services for Elderly & Frail Elderly 

Travis County funds services through social service contract investments.  Services 

provided include in-home care services, bill payer services, meals, and case management.  

In-home services include assistance with personal hygiene tasks as well as housekeeping 

while bill payer services include assistance with finances and money management.  Meals 

include hot meal delivery and 2nd meal assistance.   

 
Services for Persons with Physical Disabilities or Developmental Delays 

Travis County funds services for persons with physical disabilities and developmental 

delays through social service contract investments.  Services center around employment 

and job-readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs 

assistance, and social/recreational opportunities.    
 

Services for Victims of Domestic Violence 

Travis County approximately funds services for persons experiencing abuse, neglect, 

domestic violence, and sexual assault through social service contract investments.  

Services center around advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional 

housing, and counseling.  

 

Services for Persons Living with HIV/AIDS 
Travis County funds services for persons living with HIV/AIDS (PLWA) through social 

service contract investments.  Services center around advocacy, crisis management, 

emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, case management, primary medical 

care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food bank assistance, 

nutritional counseling, home health, prevention, and support groups.   Additionally, 

Travis County provides other services through health and public health inter-local 

agreements.   
 

Lead-Based Paint 

 

Prior to contracting for the owner occupied rehabilitation program in PY08, the County 

will develop procedures to comply with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Reduction Act of 1992 (Title X) and subsequent changes in September, 1999.  The 

procedures will include notification, identification, and treatment, if necessary. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
47 of 91 

 

HHS/VS Housing Services Division, which receives funds through State grant funds and 

the Travis County General Fund, provides limited lead-based paint remediation on 

houses built before 1978 where small holes in the wall or similar acts that could cause 

additional possible lead exposure are made.     
 

Specific HOPWA Objectives 

 

Travis County does not receive HOPWA funds at this time.   

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
48 of 91 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Appendix A: Income 
Eligibility Limits 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  

Annual Action Plan 
 

 
 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 
 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
49 of 91 

 
 
 

Appendix A: 2008 Income Eligibility Limits 
 

Following HUD’s definition, a very low, low and moderate-income household 

means a household having an income equal to or less than the Section 8 low-

income limit for a given household size. For example a family of four is considered 

a “Very low income” household if their income is less than or equal to $ 21,350.  

 

The following table summarizes the income limits effective as of February, 2008. 

The income limits are provided for reference purpose only as they are updated by 

HUD on an annual basis and only the most current limits are used when 

determining program eligibility.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Effective as of February, 2008

 

 

ADJUSTED INCOME LIMITS  
( by Household size) 

 
Very Low 
Income 

(30 % Limits) 

Low Income 
(50 % Limits) 

 

Moderate 
Income 

(80 % Limits) 

1 Person $14,950 $24,900 $39,850 

2 Persons $17,100 $28,450 
 

$45,500 

3 Persons $19,200 $32,000 $51,200 

4 Persons $21,350 $35,550 $56,900 

5 Persons $23,050 $38,400 $61,450 

6 Persons $24,750 $41,250 
 

$66,000  

7 Persons $26,450 $44,100 $70,550 

8 Persons $28,200 $46,950 $75,100 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
50 of 91 

 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Appendix B:  
Public Participation 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  

Annual Action Plan 

 
 

 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 
 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
51 of 91 

 
Attachmentppendix BA: 

 

 

Summary of Public Participation Process 
 

Following the guidelines outlined on the Code of Federal Regulation (CFR), Title 24, Part 

91.105, and the Citizen Participation Plan approved by Travis County Commissioners 

Court on April 11, 2006, Travis County HHS/VS actively sought citizen participation 

during the spring of 2008 for the development of the 2008 CDBG allocation. Public 

hearings were held at two different times throughout the development of the PY 2008 

Action Plan: Needs Gathering Process and the Public Comment on Proposed Usage of 

Funds.   Attachments A, B, and C detail the public participation process. 

 
Attachment A: Public ParticipationNeeds Gathering Process Summary 

 
A total of nineteen (19) residents of the unincorporated areas of Travis County 

participated in five (5) public hearings held during the months of February and March 

2008. The purpose of the hearings was to obtain the public’s input on the community 

development, housing, and public service needs, as well as potential project ideas to 

address those needs.  The first hearing, held at the Commissioner Courtroom, followed a 

traditional hearing format, while those held in each of the precincts had an information 

session followed by facilitated discussion. The hearings were held according to the 

following schedule. 
  

Table 1: Summary of Spring 2008 Public Participation Process 

 

Feb. 19
th
, 2008 

@ 9:00 am 

Feb. 21st, 
2008 

@ 6:30 pm 

Feb. 25th, 2008 
@ 6:30 pm 

Feb. 27th, 
2008 

@ 6:30 pm 

Mar. 3rd, 2008 
@ 6:30 pm 

 
February and 
March 2008 

Commissioners 
Courtroom 
Travis County 
Granger Building   
314 W. 11th St. 
Austin, TX 78701 

Precinct 1:  
TNR Satellite 

Office 
9301 Johnnie 
Morris Road  
Austin, TX  

Precinct 2: 
Travis County 
Community 
Center 

15822 Foothills 
Farm Loop, Bldg 

D 
Pflugerville, TX 

Precinct 3: 
West Rural 
Community 
Center 

8656-A Hwy 71 
W., Suite A 
Oak Hill, TX 

Precinct 4: 
South Rural 
Community 
Center 

3518 FM 973 
Del Valle, TX 

 
Feedback 
received in 

writing 
through the 

Citizen 
Participation 

Form 

Two (2) 
Participants 

Six (6) 
Participants 

Zero (0) 
Participants 

Six (6) 
Participants 

Five (5) 
Participants 

 
2 (Two) 

Residents 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
52 of 91 

 

 

Public Hearing at the Commissioner’s Court 

During the hearing held at the Commissioner’s Court on February 19th, 2008, two 

persons testified. The first person voiced the need to spend CDBG funds on affordable 

housing, housing repairs, youth programs and improvements of water services and 

streets. The second person, the executive director of Austin Habitat for Humanity, asked 

the court to continue to fund affordable housing through land acquisition, pointing out 

that almost 50 % of the renters in Travis County pay more than 30 % on their incomes on 

housing expenses. To read the complete testimonies, please refer to the section of this 

appendix titled “Needs Gathering Process: Detailed Testimonies of Public Hearings”.5 of 

this document.   

 

Public Hearings in the Precincts 

The hearings held in each of the precincts consisted of an informational section and two 

interactive exercises. The informational section contained background information on 

CDBG eligible activities, citizen participation processes, and project selection criteria. 

During the first exercise, participants were asked to choose in which of the Commissioner 

Court- approved CDBG high priorities the County should invest CDBG monies for the 

2008 Action Plan. During the second exercise, residents were asked to identify their 

community needs and potential project ideas to address those needs. 
 

First Exercise: Ranking Commissioners Court-Approved Priorities 

Staff provided a list of the Court approved high priorities on large pieces of paper on the 

wall. Participants were asked to rank the priorities by placing self-adhesive dots next to 

the ones they consider most significant. They were specifically asked to 1) assign an 

orange dot, worth 5 points, to the priority that represents to them the most urgent need 

or most urgent area of investment, 2) assign a green dot, worth three points, to a priority 

that represents to them an urgent need, but not necessarily the most urgent need, and 3) 

assign a purple dot, worth 1 point, to the priority that represents to them an important 

need, but not as urgent need. To provide additional emphasis, participants were allowed 

to assign more than one dot to a priority area. The results of the ranking for the 17 

residents that participated in the Precincts 1, 3 & 4 hearings and one that participated 

through the Citizen Participation Form were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
53 of 91 

 

Table 2: Ranking of Commissioners Court-Approved Priorities by 

 Seventeen (178) participants in the Precinct Public Hearings and through the Citizen 

Participation Form 

 

When explaining to participants the priorities approved by court for the period 2006-

2010, it was clarified that the category “Other Public Service Needs” excludes senior 

services, employment training, child care services, transportation services, substance 

abuse services, lead services, and lead hazard screening. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dots Assigned High Priorities for the  

2006-2010 Period Most Urgent 
(5-point dots) 

Urgent 
(3- point dots) 

Important 
(1-point dots) 

Total 
Points 

Water/Sewer Improvements 9 7 5 71 

Street/Road Improvements 4 5 4 39 

Owner Occupied Housing 

Rehabilitation 
2 2 1 17 

Youth Services 2 2 1 17 

Production of New Owner Housing 

Units through Land Acquisition 
1 2 1 12 

Other Public Service Needs* 
 

0 0 3 3 

Infrastructure for New Housing 

Developments 
0 0 3 3 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
54 of 91 

 

 

Table 3: Ranking of Commissioners Court-Approved Priorities by the  

Seventeen (178) participants (Broken down by Precinct) 

 
Dots Assigned 

High Priorities for the 2006-2010 Period 
Most Urgent 
5-point dots 

Urgent 
3- point dots 

Important 
1-point dots 

Total 
Points 

Precinct 1 1 2 1 12 

Precinct 3 4 2 1 27 

Precinct 4 4 3 3 32 
Water/Sewer Improvements 

Total 8 7 5 71 

Precinct 1 4 3 4 33 

Precinct 3 0 2 0 6 

Precinct 4 0 0 0 0 
Street/Road Improvements 

Total 4 4 4 39 

Precinct 1 0 0 0 0 

Precinct 3 0 0 2 2 

Precinct 4 0 0 1 1 

Infrastructure for New 

Housing Developments 

Total 0 0 2 2 

Precinct 1 0 0 1 1 

Precinct 3 1 2 0 11 

Precinct 4 0 0 0 0 

Production of New Owner 

Housing Units through 

Land Acquisition 
Total 1 2 1 12 

Precinct 1 0 1 0 3 

Precinct 3 2 1 1 14 

Precinct 4 0 0 0 0 

Owner Occupied Housing 

Rehabilitation 

Total 2 2 1 17 

Precinct 1 1 0 0 5 

Precinct 3 0 0 0 0 

Precinct 4 1 2 1 12 
Youth Services 

Total 2 2 1 17 

Precinct 1 0 0 0 0 

Precinct 3 0 0 3 3 

Precinct 4 0 0 0 0 Other Public Service Needs 

Total 0 0 0 3 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
55 of 91 

 

 

 Second exercise: Need/Project Identification 

All participants were given several minutes to identify their specific community needs 

and project ideas including specific locations, cross streets, and any mitigating factors.  

The specific needs/projects identified are as follows: 
 

Non-Housing Community Development Needs/Projects Identified Precinct 

Water and Wastewater 
 

• Residents that live in the FM 1625 area (from 183 to Creedmore) 

do not have access to public water utilities. They must purchase 

water by trucking it in to their homes. They are in need of water 

infrastructure. Participants indicate that Creedmore WSC refuses 

to provide water to date. 

 

 

Precinct 4 

 

• Water and sewer access are needed at FM 969 and FM 973. Toll 

130 is becoming a major highway. The creation of water and 

sewer services will increase opportunities for new business to be 

established in the area. Additionally residents state that the 

addition of water and sewer services will allow for subdivision 

of land, and as a result affordable housing may increase. 

 

Precinct 1 

• Water and wastewater services are inadequate in Manchaca. Precinct 3 

• Need for assistance with water connection from the house to the 

public line in the Plainview Estates subdivision. Although Travis 

County has already funded part of the water-lines infrastructure 

– each household needs an individual connection from each 

home to the water-line.  

• Need for public sewer infrastructure in Plainview Estates. 

Currently the wastewater/sewage is disposed in septic tanks. 

There is a concern among Plainview Estates residents that the 

septic tanks will fail with increased water use. 

 

Precinct 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
56 of 91 

Non-Housing Community Development Activities Needs/Projects Identified 
 

Precinct 

Community Centers, Public Libraries and Youth Centers  

• Community Center & Youth Center needed near Creedmore. Del Valle 

Independent School District used to rent their football fields for intra-

mural youth football activities. This is no longer the case.  

• Public Library needed near Creedmore – the nearest public libraries are far 

away. 

 

Precinct 4 

• Community and Youth Center needed in Manor. The construction of a 

community and youth center in Manor is needed.   

o Short term:  Initial funds are needed to start up youth services by 

using the facilities of the Manor Independent School District gym. 

(MISD has indicated that approx. 38 to 40 % of the youth live in the 

unincorporated areas).  

o Long Term:  Additional funds are needed to build a full-scale 

community and youth center that would include the provision of 

transportation services to and from the center. 

Precinct 1 

Medical Services 
 

 

• A Medical Clinic is needed in the FM 973 area and Manor. Precinct 1 

• A Medical Clinic is needed near Creedmore. Precinct 4 

Transportation  

• Commuter rail needed in Manor to increase access to public 

transportation. 

• Need to increase access to public transportation in the unincorporated 

areas, even if privately funded. 

Precinct 1 

• There is a great need for transportation services for those who do not have 

consistent access to personal transportation. This service is of particularly 

urgency for elders and populations with disability or health conditions 

who need assistance to get to medical appointments and run necessary 

errands (going to the grocery and drug stores). Because of lack of 

transportation services, these populations end up isolated in their homes. 

Precinct 3 

• In the Austin’s Colony and Plainview Estates areas access to public 

transportation is needed. 
Precinct 1 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
57 of 91 

 

 

 

Non-Housing Community Development Activities Needs/Projects Identified Precinct 

Roads, Sidewalks  

• Need of road expansion/improvement at Lava Lane. There is half a mile 

of dirt road that needs to be paved, a turnaround for school bus access 

added as well as lighting. There are 12 households on this road. There 

are 12 children who must walk at least a half of a mile everyday to be 

able to catch the bus (Coulver Rd & Lava Lane). The bus does not pick 

up children in front of their homes because of the bad conditions of the 

road, and no place to turn the bus around. Walking ½ mile to the bus 

stop represents a danger to the children because there are snakes in the 

area, kids encounter dogs, and they are at risk of encountering 

pedophiles in the area (seven pedophiles have been registered). There is 

also a blind spot on Coulver Road, the location of the bus stop, with 

poor signage and no stop sign.  Residents cannot afford the costs 

associated with the substandard road program.  Some of the residents 

are willing to donate land needed for construction of road and 

turnaround.  

Precinct 4 

• Need for sidewalks on Hunters Bend Road. Precinct 1 

• There is a need for an additional entrance/exit to enter/leave the 

Hunters Bend Community as there is only one now. 
Precinct 1 

Speed Enforcement  

• There is a need for speed enforcement in Hunter Bend Rd and 

Plainview Estates. Mechanisms for enforcing speed limits could include 

an increased presence of police officers observing traffic speeds, speed 

limit signs, and street speedometers that can remind people how fast 

they are going.  

• Need for increase patrols from Decker Lake, Manor, Austin Colony, 

Plainview Estates, Raytex, Chapparral 

Precinct 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
58 of 91 

 

Public Services Needs/Projects Identified Precinct 

Information on Available Public Services  

An inventory/repository of information on public services available to 

residents in Manor is needed. Residents were not sure if they had 211 

services.  If not, expansion of the 2-1-1 helpline that United Way maintains 

could address the problem. 

Precinct 1 

Youth Programs  

• Expansion of the Stellar Youth and Community program in the 

unincorporated areas. The contact person is Linda Young who 

works with the Austin Community College. The program involves 

the employment training opportunities for youth. 

 

 

Precinct 1 

• Need for youth program/services to keep them active. There is a 

need for assistance to families who speak multiple languages. 

 

Precinct 3 

Adult Education  

• Need for youth and adult education classes such as computer, 

General Educational Development (GED), and English as a second 

language (ESL) for populations residing in the Apache Shores, 

Lakeway, 183 and the 620 area. One possibility for providing these 

classes could be through a mobile unit adapted for classroom 

instruction.   

Precinct 3 

Physical and Mental Health Services:  

• Inadequate access to the Travis County Medical Assistance Program 

(MAP). It takes months to be able to schedule an appointment.  

• Lack of health and education opportunities. There is a need for 

affordable health and fitness opportunities such as those offered by 

the YMCA centers (swimming pools, saunas). 

• There is a need for mental health services including home-based 

services. There is a need for assistance to be able to purchase 

medication. 

Precinct 3 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
59 of 91 

 

Housing Needs/Projects Identified 
 

Precinct 

• Need for more affordable housing. 

• Need for repairs of homes particularly manufactured homes that 

are permanently located. 

• Need for Supportive Housing for clients with mental health issues. 

Precinct 3 

 

Other Issues Raised 
 

Precinct 

• The Transportation and Natural Resource is in the process of 

building a new Center, and during construction, they brought the 

water infrastructure needed for them.  However, they did not 

consider the broader water infrastructure needs of the area when 

they knew it was an issue. 

Precinct 1 

• Look at housing development permitting – Does TNR analyze the 

increase loads on roads in conjunction with the increased 

development?  

 

 

Precinct 1 

• Internet Accessibility Study Precinct 1 

 

Attachment B: Needs Gathering Process:  
Detailed Testimonies Received during Public Hearings on 2/19/08 
 

Comments Received at the February 19, 2008  Public Hearing 
 

Gus Peña’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on February 19th, 2008 

“Judge good morning, Commissioners, Gus Peña. I don't live in the areas that are 

specified for this funding but I do have family and friends that live out in the areas, 

one of them where water service needs to be improved. Streets need to be paved, but, 

you know, I’ve always been supportive of youth services, youth programs for many 

years, since I was at Johnston high school more than 35, 38, 39 years ago actually, but 

anyway more funding for affordable housing, that's a given for housing and housing 

repair.  

 

A lot of units out there are in need of -- of big repair and I also spoke to -- to our 

former secretary of HUD, Henry Cisneros, who used to be our mayor, the mayor in 

San Antonio. And I -- I voiced my concern about the concerns that the community had 

in these areas, not enough funding is being allocated to our area over here. I only 

speak about our area; I don't speak about any other counties or whatever. But those 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
60 of 91 

concerns were related to the secretary of HUD. In Washington that we went to 

Washington on these issues, also, when it first came out last year.  

 

So -- so more money needs to be done, but I think -- I think you all are doing a good 

job, bringing in as much money as we can so HUD. Can allocate those. As we spoke to 

the under secretary of HUD., more needs to be done for our community. Having said 

that, youth services, programs, affordable housing, things mentioned as priorities 

already, already on the list, but need to be emphasized strongly to improve the quality 

of life of the people there in those areas.  

 

That's all that I have to say. I was just questioning where it says here administration 

and planning, 20%, $166,637. I’m not quite sure what that is all about. If you can 

explain to the community, also a lot of people do not have computers, do not have 

capable. So these -- do not have cable, these public hearing notices are not carried to 

them via any communication method. We can improve that method to communicate 

to the people they don't know when the public hearings will be held and when that 

would be most appreciative. Thank you very much.” 

 

 

 

Michael Willard’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on February 19th, 2008 

My name is Michael Willard, Executive Director of Austin Habitat for Humanity. I’m 

here to speak to you today just on the priorities that you all have outlined for the CDBG 

funding. Let me just echo again or let me just first of all start out by saying thank you for 

the support that the Commissioners Court has provided Habitat and the acquisition of 

properties in the past. But what we have been able to do right now is just a small step and 

what is needed is much more efforts at funding spent on affordable housing in -- in 

Travis County.  

 

We know that there are almost 50% of the -- of the renters in Travis County are paying 

more than 30% of their income for the -- for the rental units that they are getting. Now, 

most of you all know, that -- that if you are paying more than 30% of your income on a 

rental unit or your housing, you are cost burdened by HUD Standards. Here we're 

looking at nrjs community that almost half of the folks who are doing the renting are 

having to pay more than that 30% of their income for housing. The need for affordable 

housing in our community is great.  

 

We also if we look down the road about the growth of central Texas. We know that more 

people are coming here, the need for affordable housing for those folks is going to 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
61 of 91 

continue to go up. As we look into the future. So I ask you today to continue to fund 

affordable housing in terms of the acquisition of land, providing the infrastructure and 

the development of units as part of your CDBG plan. 

 
*The source of this transcript is the closed-captioned text version of the Travis County Commissioners Court.  The 

comments were taken from the Travis County web site prior to the minutes being approved.  Slight changes may 
occur once the certified minutes are available, though the integrity and intent of the comment will not change. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
62 of 91 

 

Attachment B: Public Comment Summary 
 

Every year during the development of the Annual Action Plan, a 30-day public comment period 

is held to receive comments on the proposed uses of CDBG funds along with two public hearings 

held at the Travis County Commissioners Court.   

 

On June 17, 2008, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved the PY 08 Action Plan and a 

substantial amendment to the PY 2006 Action Plan.  During the week of June 2, 2008 or June 9, 

2008, and depending upon the newspaper, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing 

and summarizing the proposed PY08 Action Plan and Substantial Amendment to the PY06 

Action Plan.  A copy of the public notice follows this summary.   

 

The notice appeared in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis 

County.  The 30-day public comment period commenced June 25, 2008, and ended July 26, 2008.  

Two public hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom during the 30—

day public comment period on July 1, 2008, and July 22, 2008, to receive testimony for the PY08 

Action Plan and the PY06 Substantial Amendment.   

 

A total of three public comments were received on the draft of the PY 2006 Substantial 

Amendment and PY08 Action Plan. Two people testified at the July 1, 2008, public 

hearing.  No one testified at the July 22, 2008, public hearing and one written comment 

was received during the 30- day public comment period.   

  

A summary of the comments and interests include: 

� Continue to support the expansion of affordable housing in the community. 

� Consider a lease purchase program to assist persons in building credit and accessing 

affordable housing.   

� Consider funding the construction of the Lava Lane improvements after the design phase is 

complete.  

� Consider funding the connections to water and the design and construction of a  

wastewater system for Plainview Estates.   

 

The Plainview Estates residents are included in the water/wastewater planning project for 

PY07 & PY08.  Affordable housing expansion and street improvements are included in all 

three plan years thus far.  All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent 

and priorities of the five-year Consolidated Plan.    Detailed comments received during 

the 30 day public comment period and public hearings are listed below.  

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
63 of 91 

 

Public Comment Period:  
Detailed Testimonies Received during Public Hearings 

 
Comments Received at the July 1, 2008  Public Hearing 
 

*Gus Peña’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on July 1st, 2008 

This is Gus Peña. I think that I have spoken to the issue before. Habitat for Humanity is 

an outstanding initiative, they provide true affordable housing. Our program is green 

space to be able to build homes. In the course of the last six months we have been in 

contact with the secretary of HUD, visited his office, the new one, also the San Antonio's 

HUD Department with the help of former mayor Henry Cisneros, former secretary of 

HUD, also my cousin Frederico Peña, the reason being that we need more affordable 

housing and let's make it real clear what affordable housing is. Some of this funding is 

appropriate, 41 homes is good, outstanding, a good start because there are a lot of people 

that can't afford a home and cannot afford a home but we should be able to place them, 

get them off the streets.  

 

One thing that I would, I don't know if this fits the criteria, but if I could ask you Judge 

and Economics Commissioners, there used to a program called rent to purchase, two 

years to rebuild your credit or clean up your credit, that was an outstanding true blue 

proven program, if we could have that, something like that, you could have more people 

qualify, they are working, of course, in order to pay the mortgage. This would help out 

people be placed into homes also, affordable homes.  

 

Keep up the good work. I asked the Secretary's office in San Antonio and Washington to 

give us more money. There's a big need over here. I know there's a need nation-wide, I'm 

from Austin, Texas, Travis County, we need more money for this program. I think that 

it's outstanding. We call it the rural area, now unincorporated, Cindy and I were talking 

about it, these are the things that are helpful, very helpful thank you for your leadership. 

 
*Joel Rebollar’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on July 1st, 2008 

Good morning, my name is Joel, I'm a constituent of precinct 4. I would like to tell you all 

first of all thank you for -- for voting on may 27th to approve on the substantial 

amendment for the 2006 plan that she was talking about.  

 

The thing that I would like to add on to what she was saying, on behalf of the entire 

community because a bunch of them are taking care of kids and so forth, I would like to 

ask the Commissioners court to please take into consideration the funding for just the 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
64 of 91 

construction of this road of lava lane within the next two years if possible. Just for the 

major fact being that our community is growing a lot bigger.  

 

There's more kids attending school. And we really do need those public services such as 

the bus going up into that road. We took some of the -- we took Christie out there and it's 

.8 miles just to the -- to the bus stop. So we got a little six-year-old, I believe seven-year-

old now this year that has to walk .8 all the way to the bus stop because we don't have 

that road improvement. We did talk to Ms. Gomez, thank you for taking that time, we 

would like to ask you all to take that into consideration because it is very necessary, as 

well as other improvements like you all have the production of new home unit like 

myself, you know, if you all can just from all of us and on Lava Lane, if you all can please 

take consideration for the construction of lava lane, thank you. 

 
*The source of this transcript is the closed-captioned text version of the Travis County Commissioners Court.  The 

comments were taken from the Travis County web site prior to the minutes being approved.  Slight changes may 
occur once the certified minutes are available, though the integrity and intent of the comment will not change. 

 
Comments Received at the July 22nd Public Hearing 

 
No comments were received during the July 22nd public hearing. 

 

Public Comment:  
Written Comments Received during the Comment Period   
 
Written Comments Received  
 

Via email from Connie Gonzales on 7/26/08 at 5:06 pm 

 

To whom it may concern, 

  

On behalf of the residents of Plain View Estates this public comment comes in support for 

CDBG funding water and wastewater services in our neighborhood.    

 

Starting in 2000 when our wells started going dry in Plain View Estates, forty families in 

our neighborhood have been without running water. We successfully came together with 

Santa Barbara Catholic Church and Austin Interfaith to fix this problem.  We worked 

with Hudson Bend Utility Company and also with Travis County who invested nearly 

$600,000 toward hooking us up to water lines. Since then, two families have been able to 

connect to the water meters, while the remaining 38 are working hard to raise the funds 

needed to cover the tapping fees, materials, and labor for connecting each house to 

running water. Unfortunately, the cost of completing this project has gone up 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
65 of 91 

substantially from the original estimate of $510 per residence.  However, we continue to 

work together to ensure that all of us are able to get running water as soon as possible.   

 

In addition, we also are looking ahead to coming years when we know that we will need 

wastewater service at our residences.  Therefore, it is our collective request that financial 

support be assigned to fund two projects in our community. First, funds are needed to 

connect the remaining 38 families to water meters. Second, we request funding for 

infrastructure and connection fees for waste water services for all families in Plain View 

Estates. 

 

It is prudent that this happens so that we can live as everyone else does in our area of 

Travis County . 

  

Connie H. Gonzales 

Spokesperson for residents of Plain View Estates and Santa Barbara Catholic Church 

Leader with Austin Interfaith 
 

 

Public Comment: Public Notice in Newspaper of General Circulation  

Travis County Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) 

Public Notice: Invitation to Comment on the drafts of  
Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan and a 

Substantial Amendment to the Program Year 2006 Action Plan 
 
Travis County is eligible to receive an estimated $833,133 from the United States Department 

of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in the form of a Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG). HUD awards these grants to communities to carry out a variety of community 

development activities aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, improving affordable housing 

options, and providing improved community facilities and services.  Travis County’s CDBG 

allocation targets the unincorporated areas of the county. 
 

In accordance with Federal Guidelines, Travis County officials and staff are requesting public 

comment on the drafts of two CDBG documents: 

⇒ The Action Plan for Program Year 2008  

⇒              The change of projects for the Program Year 2006 Action Plan The drafts of the 

Action Plans are the second step following the needs identified through the public hearings 

held in February and March of 2008.   

Comments will be accepted for 30 days beginning June 25th, 2008 at 8:00 a.m. and ending 

July 26th, 2008 at 5:00 p.m.  Drafts of the Plans as well as summaries of the Plans are 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
66 of 91 

available for review, beginning June 25th, 2008 at the Travis County website 

www.co.travis.tx.us or at the following locations: 

South Rural Community Center:  3518 FM 973, Del Valle 

Travis County Community Center:  15822 Foothills Farm Loop, Bldg D, Pflugerville 

West Rural Community Center:  8656-A Hwy 71 W., Suite A, Oak Hill 

Northwest Rural Community Center:  18649 FM 1431, Jonestown 

East Rural Community Center:  600 W. Carrie Manor, Manor 

Palm Square Community Center:  100 N. IH-35, Suite 1000, Austin 

Post Road Community Center:  2201 Post Road, Suite 101, Austin 

Public Hearings will be held to receive comments: 

                   Location:  Dates & Times: 

                   Travis County Granger Building  Tuesday, July 1, 2008 at 9:00 AM 

                   Commissioners Courtroom Tuesday, July 22, 2008 at 9:00 AM 

                    314 W. 11th St, Austin, TX 

Comments may also be received in writing via mail or e-mail to:CDBG Program, 
Travis County HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 or christy.moffett@co.travis.tx.us 

Travis County is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, as amended. Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. Please call 

854-3460 for assistance. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
67 of 91 

 

 
Attachment C: CDBG Citizen Participation Form (Page 1 of 4) 

 
Ranking of Priorities and Identification of Project Ideas  

 

Travis County is expected to receive funding from the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) under the federal Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) program. The CDBG program may fund a variety of projects benefiting residents 

of the unincorporated areas of the county including social service activities, street 

reconstruction, water and sewer improvements, and preservation of affordable and 

decent housing among others. 

 

To decide how the monies will be spent for CDBG’s Program Year 2008, which starts in 

October 1st, 2008 and ends in September 30th, 2009 - Travis County is accepting project 

ideas from residents who can provide their input in a number of ways. Residents can 

attend one of five public hearings that will be held during the following times and 

locations: 

 

 
Residents who are not able to attend any of the scheduled public hearings can 

provide their input by filling out this Citizen Participation Form. All the project ideas 
collected will be compiled along with the results of the public hearings and presented to the 
Travis County Commissioners Court to assist in the selection of projects for the Program Year 
2008. 

 

Enclosed with this form is a presentation that provides an overview of the CDBG 

program including priority areas, eligible activities and previous project funding history.  

For additional information about the CDBG program, contact Christy Moffett via email 

christy.moffett@co.travis.tx.us  or phone at 512-854-3460 or visit the Travis County CDBG 

web page (www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/CDBG/), or the HUD website 

(www.hud.gov).   

 

 

Feb. 19
th
, 2008 

@ 9:00 am 
Feb. 21st, 2008 

@ 6:30 pm 
Feb. 25th, 2008 

@ 6:30 pm 
Feb. 27th, 2008 

@ 6:30 pm 
Mar. 3rd, 2008 

@ 6:30 pm 

Travis County 
Granger Building  
Commissioners 
Courtroom 

314 W. 11th St. 
Austin, TX 78701 

 

TNR Satellite 
Office 

9301 Johnnie 
Morris Road  

Austin, TX  78724 

Travis County 
Community Center 
15822 Foothills 

Farm Loop, Bldg D 
Pflugerville, TX 

 

West Rural 
Community Center 
8656-A Hwy 71 W., 

Suite A 
Oak Hill, TX 

 

South Rural 
Community 
Center 

3518 FM 973 
Del Valle, TX 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
68 of 91 

 
CDBG Citizen Participation Form (Page 2 of 4) 

 
Ranking of Priorities  

On the year 2006, the Travis County Commissioners Court prioritized seven areas for 

investment of CDBG’s monies. These priorities guide the spending of funds for a five-

year period from the year 2006 through 2010.  

For the program year 2008, please let us know where you believe dollars need to be 

spent by ranking the priorities presented below according to the following 

instructions: 

• Assign the letter A to the priority that represents the most urgent need or most 

urgent area of investment. 

• Assign the letter B to the priority that represents an urgent need, but not 

necessarily the most urgent need. 

• Assign the letter C to the priority that represents an important need (not as 

urgent). 

 

You may assign more than one letter to a given priority area if you would like to provide 

additional emphasis, however, in total you might only assign the letters A, B and C 

ONCE.   

 

Priorities approved by the Travis County Commissioners 

Court 

Ranking* 

 

Infrastructure for New Housing Developments  

Street and Road Improvements  

Production of New Owner Housing Units via land acquisition  

Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation  

Water and Sewer Improvements  

Youth Services  

Other Public Services (excludes  senior services, employment training, 

child care services, transportation services, substance abuse services, 

health  services and lead hazard screening) 

 

 

* No more than three categories can be prioritized.  If the directions are not followed in this section, 

the information will not be included in the analysis provided to the Commissioners Court. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
69 of 91 

 
CDBG Citizen Participation Form (Page 3 of 4) 

 
Project Ideas 

Project Ideas 

Project ideas are accepted at any time throughout the year, however, those received after 

March, are considered for the subsequent program year.  Travis County Commissioners 

Court selects projects by vote during the month of May or June.  The allocation for 

CDBG’s 2008 program year is approximately $833,185. 

 
Activity: 

Please provide ideas for potential projects for program year 2008. Include the type of 

project (for example, street improvement, public sewer system, etc.) and location (for 

example, Hill Country Subdivision, 1004-1207 ABC Road).    

 
Project Idea Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
70 of 91 

 
 
CDBG Citizen Participation Form (Page 4 of 4) 
 
 

Contact Information 
 
 

 
Name:  

 

 

 
Address: 

 

 

 

Email and/or Phone: 

 

 

 

 

May we contact you if we have questions about any project ideas?   

 

Yes     No 

 

 

 

 

 

Would you like to receive emails or postal mail notifications about CDBG events? 

(Circle One)    

 

Email notices  Postal Mail Notices  Not Interested   

 

 

Please provide completed form no later than 5 pm on March 3rd to vial email to 

chirsty.moffett@co.travis.tx.us or postal mail to CDBG Program, Travis County 

HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
71 of 91 

 

 

 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 

Appendix CB: Maps 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Program Year 2008: 

(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  
Annual Action Plan 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
72 of 91 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Source:  HUD 2006 Summary of 2000 
Census Income Data. 

Map III-8 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
73 of 91 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Map 
III-9 
Source: Capital Area Council of Governments. 

Source: Capital Area Council of Governments. 

Map 
III-10 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
74 of 91 

 
 

Source: Capital Area Council of Governments. 

Map 
III-11 

Map 
III-12 

Source: Capital Area Council of Governments. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
75 of 91 

 

Travis County 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Appendix DC:  
List of Priorities for the 
2006-2010 Period   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  

Annual Action Plan 

 
 
 
 

 
-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
76 of 91 

 

  Housing Projects Priority Level 

RENTAL HOUSING GOALS 

     Production of new units Medium 

     Rental Assistance Medium 

     Acquisition of existing units Medium 

     Rehabilitation of existing units Medium 

OWNER HOUSING GOALS 

     Production of new units High 

     Homebuyer Assistance 
Medium 

     Acquisition of existing units Medium 

     Rehabilitation of existing units High 

Infrastructure to support affordable housing 
development 

High 

Community Development Projects Priority Level 

PUBLIC FACILITY  

    Senior Centers Medium 

    Handicapped Centers Medium 

    Homeless Facilities Medium 

    Youth Centers Medium 

    Child Care Centers Medium 

    Health Facilities Low 

    Neighborhood Facilities Low 

    Parks and/or Recreation Facilities Low 

    Parking Facilities Low 

    Non-Residential Historic Preservation Low 

    Other Public Facility Needs Medium 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
77 of 91 

 
 
 

Community Development Projects Priority Level 

INFRASTRUCTURE (projects)  

    Water/Sewer Improvements High 

    Street Improvements High 

    Sidewalks Medium 

    Solid Waste Disposal Improvements Medium 

    Flood Drain Improvements Medium 

    Other: Erosion Abatement Medium 

    Other: Litter Abatement/clearance Medium 

    Parks and/or Recreation Facilities Low 

    Parking Facilities Low 

    Non-Residential Historic Preservation Low 

    Other Public Facility Needs Medium 

PUBLIC SERVICE NEEDS (people)  

    Senior Services Medium 

    Youth Services High 

    Employment Training Medium 

    Child Care Services Medium 

    Transportation Services Medium 

    Substance Abuse Services Medium 

    Health Services Medium 

    Lead Hazard Screening Low 

    Crime Awareness Low 

    Other Public Service Needs High 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
78 of 91 

 
 

Community Development Projects Priority Level 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

    ED Assistance to For-Profits  Low 

    ED Technical Assistance  Low 

    Micro-Enterprise Assistance  Low 

    Rehab; Publicly- or Privately-Owned   

Commercial/Industrial  

Low 

    C/I Infrastructure Development  Low 

    Other C/I Improvements  Low 

PLANNING  

    Assessment and Planning was not included in 
the assessment of 
ranking 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
79 of 91 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Appendix ED:  
Certifications 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Program Year 2008: 
(October 1, 2008 – September 30, 2009)  

Annual Action Plan 

 
 
 
 

 
-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
80 of 91 

 
 

 

ACTION PLAN CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 

 
In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan 
regulations, the jurisdiction certifies that: 
 
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing -- The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing, which means it will 
conduct an analysis of impediments to fair housing choice within the jurisdiction, take appropriate actions to 
overcome the effects of any impediments identified through that analysis, and maintain records reflecting that 
analysis and actions in this regard. 
 
Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan -- It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements of the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, and implementing 
regulations at 49 CFR 24; and it has in effect and is following a residential antidisplacement and relocation assistance 
plan required under section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, in 
connection with any activity assisted with funding under the CDBG or HOME programs.   

 
Drug Free Workplace -- It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:  
1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, 

or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be 
taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about –  
o The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  
o The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;  
o Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and  
o The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;  

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of 

the statement required by paragraph 1;  
4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1 that, as a condition of employment under the 

grant, the employee will –  
o Abide by the terms of the statement; and  
o Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in 

the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;  
5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph 4(b) from an 

employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  Employers of convicted employees must 
provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer or other designee on whose grant activity the 
convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of 
such notices.  Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;  

6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 4(b), with 
respect to any employee who is so convicted –  
o Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent 

with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or  
o Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program 

approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate 
agency;  

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs 
1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6. 

 
Anti-Lobbying -- To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:  
8. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any  

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member  
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress  
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,  
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or  
cooperative agreement;  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
81 of 91 

9. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any  
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with  
its instructions; and  

10. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be  
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants,  
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all  
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.   

 
Authority of Jurisdiction -- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as applicable) and the 
jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, in accordance with 
applicable HUD regulations. 
 
Consistency with plan -- The housing activities to be undertaken with CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA funds are 
consistent with the strategic plan. 
 
Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, and implementing 
regulations at 24 CFR Part 135. 

 
 
 
 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number   
 

___/__/08 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas  78767 

512/854-9555 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
82 of 91 

 

Specific CDBG Certifications 

 

 
The Entitlement Community certifies that: 

 

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that satisfies the requirements of 24 

CFR 91.105. 

 

Community Development Plan -- Its consolidated housing and community development plan identifies community development 

and housing needs and specifies both short-term and long-term community development objectives that provide decent housing, 

expand economic opportunities primarily for persons of low and moderate income. (See CFR 24 570.2 and CFR 24 part 570) 

 

Following a Plan -- It is following a current consolidated plan (or Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy) that has been 

approved by HUD.  

 

Use of Funds -- It has complied with the following criteria: 

 

11. Maximum Feasible Priority - With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG funds, it certifies that it has developed 

its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to activities which benefit low and moderate income families or aid in the 

prevention or elimination of slums or blight. The Action Plan may also include activities which the grantee certifies are designed 

to meet other community development needs having a particular urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and 

immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, and other financial resources are not available);  

 

12. Overall Benefit - The aggregate use of CDBG funds including section 108 guaranteed loans during program year(s) 2008 (a period 

specified by the grantee consisting of one, two, or three specific consecutive program years), shall principally benefit persons of 

low and moderate income in a manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the amount is expended for activities that benefit 

such persons during the designated period; 

 

13. Special Assessments - It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted with CDBG funds including 

Section 108 loan guaranteed funds by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and 

moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements. 

 

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to the capital costs of public 

improvements (assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from other revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made 

against the property with respect to the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. 

 

The jurisdiction will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted with CDBG funds, including 

Section 108, unless CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of fee or assessment attributable to the capital costs of public 

improvements financed from other revenue sources. In this case, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with 

respect to the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. Also, in the case of properties owned and 

occupied by moderate-income (not low-income) families, an assessment or charge may be made against the property for public 

improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds to cover the 

assessment. 

 

Excessive Force -- It has adopted and is enforcing: 

 

14. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals 

engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and 

 

15. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location 

which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations within its jurisdiction; 

 

Compliance With Anti-discrimination laws -- The grant will be conducted and administered in conformity with title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d), the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 3601-3619), and implementing regulations. 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
83 of 91 

Lead-Based Paint -- Its activities concerning lead-based paint will comply with the requirements of part 35, subparts A, B, J, K and R, 

of title 24; 

 

 

Compliance with Laws -- It will comply with applicable laws. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signature/Authorized Official   Date 

 

 

 

Name 

 

 

Title 

 

 

Address 

 

 

City/State/Zip 

 

 

Telephone Number 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__/__/2008 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, TX 78767 

512/854-9555 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
84 of 91 

 

 

 

OPTIONAL CERTIFICATION 
CDBG 

 
 
Submit the following certification only when one or more of the activities in the action plan are 
designed to meet other community development needs having a particular urgency as specified in 
24 CFR 570.208(c): 
 
 

The grantee hereby certifies that the Annual Plan includes one or more specifically identified CDBG-assisted 
activities, which are designed to meet other community development needs having a particular urgency 
because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community 
and other financial resources are not available to meet such needs. 

 
 
 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 

      

      

      

      

      

      

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
85 of 91 

 

 This certification does not apply. 

 This certification is applicable. 
 

 

Specific HOME Certifications 
 
The HOME participating jurisdiction certifies that: 
 
Tenant Based Rental Assistance -- If the participating jurisdiction intends to provide tenant-based rental 
assistance: 
 

The use of HOME funds for tenant-based rental assistance is an essential element of the participating 
jurisdiction's consolidated plan for expanding the supply, affordability, and availability of decent, safe, 
sanitary, and affordable housing. 

 
Eligible Activities and Costs -- it is using and will use HOME funds for eligible activities and costs, as described in 
24 CFR § 92.205 through 92.209 and that it is not using and will not use HOME funds for prohibited activities, as 
described in § 92.214.  
 
Appropriate Financial Assistance -- before committing any funds to a project, it will evaluate the project in 
accordance with the guidelines that it adopts for this purpose and will not invest any more HOME funds in 
combination with other Federal assistance than is necessary to provide affordable housing; 

 
 
 
 
 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 

      

      

      

      

      

      

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
86 of 91 

 

 This certification does not apply. 

 This certification is applicable. 

  
 

HOPWA Certifications 
 
The HOPWA grantee certifies that: 
 
Activities -- Activities funded under the program will meet urgent needs that are not being met by available public 
and private sources. 
 
Building -- Any building or structure assisted under that program shall be operated for the purpose specified in the 
plan: 
 

1. For at least 10 years in the case of assistance involving new construction, substantial rehabilitation, or 
acquisition of a facility,  
 

2. For at least 3 years in the case of assistance involving non-substantial rehabilitation or repair of a building or 
structure. 

 

 
 
 
 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 

      

      

      

      

      

      

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
87 of 91 

 

 This certification does not apply. 

 This certification is applicable. 
 

 

 ESG Certifications 
 
 I,      , Chief Executive Officer of Error! Not a valid link., certify that the local 
government will ensure the provision of the matching supplemental funds required by the regulation 
at 24 CFR 576.51.  I have attached to this certification a description of the sources and amounts of 
such supplemental funds. 
 
 I further certify that the local government will comply with: 
  
1. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.53 concerning the continued use of buildings for which 

Emergency Shelter Grants are used for rehabilitation or conversion of buildings for use as 
emergency shelters for the homeless; or when funds are used solely for operating costs or 
essential services. 
 

2. The building standards requirement of 24 CFR 576.55. 
 

3. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.56, concerning assurances on services and other assistance to 
the homeless. 
 

4. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.57, other appropriate provisions of 24 CFR Part 576, and other 
applicable federal laws concerning nondiscrimination and equal opportunity. 
 

5. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.59(b) concerning the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970. 
 

6. The requirement of 24 CFR 576.59 concerning minimizing the displacement of persons as a 
result of a project assisted with these funds. 
 

7. The requirements of 24 CFR Part 24 concerning the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988. 
 

8. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.56(a) and 576.65(b) that grantees develop and implement 
procedures to ensure the confidentiality of records pertaining to any individual provided family 
violence prevention or treatment services under any project assisted with ESG funds and that the 
address or location of any family violence shelter project will not be made public, except with 
written authorization of the person or persons responsible for the operation of such shelter.  
 

9. The requirement that recipients involve themselves, to the maximum extent practicable and 
where appropriate, homeless individuals and families in policymaking, renovating, maintaining, 
and operating facilities assisted under the ESG program, and in providing services for occupants 
of these facilities as provided by 24 CFR 76.56. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
88 of 91 

10. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.57(e) dealing with the provisions of, and regulations and 
procedures applicable with respect to the environmental review responsibilities under the 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and related authorities as specified in 24 CFR Part 
58. 
 

11. The requirements of 24 CFR 576.21(a)(4) providing that the funding of homeless prevention 
activities for families that have received eviction notices or notices of termination of utility 
services will meet the requirements that: (A) the inability of the family to make the required 
payments must be the result of a sudden reduction in income; (B) the assistance must be 
necessary to avoid eviction of the family or termination of the services to the family; (C) there 
must be a reasonable prospect that the family will be able to resume payments within a 
reasonable period of time; and (D) the assistance must not supplant funding for preexisting 
homeless prevention activities from any other source. 
 

12. The new requirement of the McKinney-Vento Act (42 USC 11362) to develop and implement, 
to the maximum extent practicable and where appropriate, policies and protocols for the 
discharge of persons from publicly funded institutions or systems of care (such as health care 
facilities, foster care or other youth facilities, or correction programs and institutions) in order 
to prevent such discharge from immediately resulting in homelessness for such persons.  I 
further understand that state and local governments are primarily responsible for the care of 
these individuals, and that ESG funds are not to be used to assist such persons in place of state 
and local resources. 
 

13. HUD’s standards for participation in a local Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS) and the collection and reporting of client-level information. 

 
I further certify that the submission of a completed and approved Consolidated Plan with its 
certifications, which act as the application for an Emergency Shelter Grant, is authorized under state 
and/or local law, and that the local government possesses legal authority to carry out grant activities 
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations of the U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. 
 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 

      

      

      

      

      

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
89 of 91 

 
City/State/Zip 

 
 

Telephone Number 

      

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
90 of 91 

 

 This certification does not apply. 

 This certification is applicable. 
  

 

APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS 
 
Instructions Concerning Lobbying and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
 
Lobbying Certification  
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made 
or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed 
by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 

penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
3. By signing and/or submitting this application or grant agreement, the grantee is providing the certification.  
4. The certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the 

grant.  If it is later determined that the grantee knowingly rendered a false certification, or otherwise violates the 
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act, HUD, in addition to any other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, may take action authorized under the Drug-Free Workplace Act.  

5. Workplaces under grants, for grantees other than individuals, need not be identified on the certification. If 
known, they may be identified in the grant application. If the grantee does not identify the workplaces at the 
time of application, or upon award, if there is no application, the grantee must keep the identity of the 
workplace(s) on file in its office and make the information available for Federal inspection.  Failure to identify all 
known workplaces constitutes a violation of the grantee's drug-free workplace requirements.  

6. Workplace identifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or other sites where 
work under the grant takes place. Categorical descriptions may be used (e.g., all vehicles of a mass transit 
authority or State highway department while in operation, State employees in each local unemployment office, 
performers in concert halls or radio stations). 

7. If the workplace identified to the agency changes during the performance of the grant, the grantee shall inform 
the agency of the change(s), if it previously identified the workplaces in question (see paragraph three).  

8. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection 
with the specific grant: Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)  
Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. The certification with regard to the drug-free 
workplace is required by 24 CFR part 21. 
 
 

Place Name Street City County State Zip 
Palm Square Building 100 N. IH 35 Austin Travis TX 78701 

Granger Building 314 W. 11th Austin Travis TX 78701 

Executive Office Building 411 W. 13th Austin Travis TX 78701 

East Rural Community Center 600 W. Carrie Manor Manor Travis TX 78653 

South Rural Community Center 3518 FM 973 Del Valle Travis TX 78617 

 

9. Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and Drug-Free Workplace 
common rule apply to this certification. Grantees' attention is called, in particular, to the following definitions 
from these rules: "Controlled substance" means a controlled substance in Schedules I through V of the 
Controlled  
Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further defined by regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through  
1308.15); "Conviction" means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, 
or both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of the Federal or State 
criminal drug statutes; "Criminal drug statute" means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the 

manufacture, distribution, dispensing, use, or possession of any controlled substance; "Employee" means the 
employee of a grantee directly engaged in the performance of work under a grant, including:  
o All "direct charge" employees;  
o all "indirect charge" employees unless their impact or involvement is insignificant to the performance of the 

grant; and  
o temporary personnel and consultants who are directly engaged in the performance of work under the grant 

and who are on the grantee's payroll.  This definition does not include workers not on the payroll of the 
grantee (e.g., volunteers, even if used to meet a matching requirement; consultants or independent 
contractors not on the grantee's payroll; or employees of subrecipients or subcontractors in covered 
workplaces). 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

Draft of Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan 
 

 
91 of 91 

o  
 
Note that by signing these certifications, certain documents must completed, in use, and on file for verification.  These documents include: 
 
1. Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 
2. Citizen Participation Plan 
3. Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
Signature/Authorized Official   Date 
 

 
 

Name 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Address 
 
 

City/State/Zip 
 
 

Telephone Number 
 
 
 

 

08/07/07 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, TX  78767 

512/854-9555 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Page 1 of 44 

 

 

Travis County 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Community Development 
Block Grant Program: 

 
Improving the Affordability, 

Accessibility and Sustainability 

of Neighborhoods and 

Community Services 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Substantial Amendment to the 

Annual Action Plan for 
Program Year 2006: 

August 2008 

 

 

Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

Drafted 7/28/08  

Approved by TCCC ____   

Approved by HUD ____ 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 2 of 44 

 

 

 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

 
 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 

 

Ron Davis 

County Commissioner, Precinct One 
 

 

Sarah Eckhardt 

County Commissioner, Precinct Two 
 

 

Gerald Daugherty 

County Commissioner, Precinct Three 
 

 

Margaret Gómez 

County Commissioner, Precinct Four 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 3 of 44 

 
Table of Contents for Changes to Plan 

 

 
Standard Form 424………………………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 4 

 

Summary of Substantial Amendment to PY 2006 Action Plan……………………………….……..Page 6 

 

Executive Summary………………………………………………………………………………………………………..Page  8 

 

Citizen Participation:  Summary of Citizen Participation, August 2008………………………..Page 18 

 

Citizen Participation:  Summary of Comments on the Plan, August 2008……………………Page 21 

 

Citizen Participation:  Summary of Written Explanation of Comments Not Accepted….Page 22 

 

Addition of Project 6: Street Improvements for Lava Lane…………….….………………………..Page 31 

 

Deletion of Project 5:  Public Services, Other: FSS Social Work Services…………………...Page 33   

 

Appendix A:  Summary of Citizen Engagement, August 2008…………………………Page 35 

 

Appendix B:  Lava Lane Project Maps……………………………………..………………….……Page 40 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 4 of 44 

 

Standard Form 424 
The SF 424 is part of the CPMPError! Not a valid bookmark self-reference. Annual Action Plan. 

SF 424 form fields are included in this document.  Grantee information is linked from the 1CPMP.xls 

document of the CPMP tool. 

 

SF 424 
 
Complete the fillable fields (blue cells) in the table below.  The other items are pre-filled with values from the Grantee 
Information Worksheet. 

Date Submitted08/13/08 Applicant Identifier Type of Submission 

Date Received by state n/a State Identifier Application  Pre-application  

Date Received by HUD08/13/08 
Federal Identifier 
746000192  Construction  Construction 

   Non Construction  Non Construction 
Section VI: Applicant Information 
Jurisdiction                                      Travis County UOG Code                                       TX489453 

Street Address Line 1                     P.O. Box 1748 Organizational DUNS                       030908842 

 
Organizational Unit    Travis County 
                                   Commissioners Court 

City     Austin Texas Department                Health and Human Services 

 ZIP      78767 Country U.S.A. Division                      Executive Manager’s Office 

Employer Identification Number (EIN): County                       Travis 

74-6000192 
 Program Year Start Date (MM/DD)       10/01/06 

Applicant Type: Specify Other Type if necessary: 

Local Government: County Specify Other Type 

Section VII: Program Funding 
U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development
Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers; Descriptive Title of Applicant Project(s); Areas Affected by 
Project(s) (cities, Counties, localities etc.); Estimated Funding 

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 Entitlement Grant 

CDBG Project Titles  Substandard Road Street 
Improvements, Owner and Rental Housing:  Production 
of New Units, North Ridge Acres Water/Sewer Project 

Description of Areas Affected by CDBG Project(s) 
Unincorporated areas of Travis County 

$CDBG Grant Amount 
838,659 

$Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged 
400,000  

Describe 
Williamson County - $150,000 
(CDBG), and Office of Rural 
Community Affairs - $250,000 
(CDBG/Non-Border Colonia 
Grant) for North Ridge Acres 
  

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged 
Texas Water Development Board - $1.3 million for North 
Ridge Acres 

$Additional State Funds Leveraged 
0 

$Locally Leveraged Funds 
0 

$Grantee Funds Leveraged 
$272,000 (In- Kind and General Fund for North 
Ridge Acres)  

$Anticipated Program Income 
0 

Other (Describe) 
 
 

Total Funds Leveraged for CDBG-based Project(s)   
$ 1,972,000 

 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 HOME 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 5 of 44 

HOME Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOME Project(s) 

$HOME Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for HOME-based Project(s) 

 
Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS 14.241 HOPWA 

HOPWA Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by HOPWA Project(s) 

$HOPWA Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for HOPWA-based Project(s) 

 
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 ESG 

ESG Project Titles  N/A Description of Areas Affected by ESG Project(s) 

$ESG Grant Amount $Additional HUD Grant(s) Leveraged Describe 

$Additional Federal Funds Leveraged $Additional State Funds Leveraged 

$Locally Leveraged Funds $Grantee Funds Leveraged 

$Anticipated Program Income Other (Describe) 

Total Funds Leveraged for ESG-based Project(s) 

 
Congressional Districts of: 
Applicant Districts 
10,21 and 25 

Project Districts 
10, 21 and 25  

Is application subject to review by state Executive Order 
12372 Process?  

 Yes This application was made available to the 
state EO 12372 process for review on DATE 

Is the applicant delinquent on any federal debt? If 
“Yes” please include an additional document 
explaining the situation.  No Program is not covered by EO 12372 
 Yes   No  N/A Program has not been selected by the state 

for review 

 
 
Person to be contacted regarding this application 

First Name Samuel Middle Initial  T Last Name  Biscoe 

Title  County Judge Phone  512/854-9555 Fax  512/854-9535 

eMail  
Sam.Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us 

Grantee Website 
www.co.travis.tx.us 

Other Contact: 
Sherri E. Fleming and  
Christy Moffett  
P: 512/854-4100 
F: 512/854-4115 

Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 6 of 44 

 
 

Summary of Substantial Amendment to Program Year 2006 Action Plan 
 

Every year, the progress of projects from previous Action Plans is evaluated to determine if any 

changes to funding or the deletion or addition of projects needs to occur.  As outlined in Travis 

County’s Citizen Participation Plan, a substantial amendment occurs when any project’s funding is 

changed by 25% or more or if a new project is funded.   Any substantial amendment must go through a 

30- day public comment period as well as hold one public hearing.   

 

On May 27, 2008, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a substantial amendment to the 

PY 2006 Action Plan.  The change to the PY 2006 Action Plan includes the deletion of the Family 

Support Services (FSS) Social Work Expansion program, which received $83,659 and the addition of a 

project to provide the design, engineering and environmental review for a Road Improvement Project 

for Lava Lane located in Precinct 4.  

 

Due to the difficulty of hiring staff to provide the Social Work Services, no funds from the PY 2006 

program year were spent on the FSS Social Work Expansion project. The project is currently underway 

using the funds allocated in PY 2007.  The reprogramming of the PY 2006 unused funds to another 

project allows for timelier spending of dollars.  Additionally, due to an annual limit on the amount of 

money spent on public service projects established by HUD, the funds must be reprogrammed to a 

community development project. The proposed community development project includes: 

 

1. Design of A Substandard Road Improvement Project ($83,659) – The project funds the 

design, engineering and environmental review for the improvement of the unaccepted portion 

of Lava Lane, a road in Precinct 4. The improvements to this substandard road will provide a 

new durable road that will allow property owners, school busses, mail service providers, and 

emergency service providers to have all-weather access to the properties.  Additionally, the 

improvements will allow the road to meet County roadway standards so that it can be accepted 

onto the County system for future maintenance and traffic safety enforcement.  

 

Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) will be the project 

manager and the design, engineering, and environmental work will be provided by consultant 

contract.  The impact of the project will be 20 households. 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 7 of 44 

 
 

 

Executive Summary 
 

The 2006-2007 program year marks the first year of Travis County’s five-year Consolidated Plan. In 

accordance with Section 91 of 24 CFR, Travis County is submitting its first Consolidated Plan. The 

consolidated planning process combines the application, planning, and reporting requirements for the 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 

 

As an Urban Entitlement County, Travis County must comply with the Consolidated Plan 

requirements in order to receive funding for these formula-based HUD programs. Designated as the 

lead agency by the Travis County Commissioners Court, the Health and Human Services &Veterans 

Service Department (HHS/VS) prepares and submits this Consolidated Plan to HUD. HHS/VS oversees 

the public notification process, approval of projects, and the administration of these grants. 
 

A series of public hearings occurred throughout the development of the Consolidated Plan beginning 

in April 2006.  On the week of June 12th, 2006, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing and 

summarizing the proposed 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan and the Action Plan for FY 2007 in several 

area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The 30-day public comment 

period began on June 28, 2006, and ended July 27, 2006.   

 

Due to an error in the amount initially allocated to Travis County by HUD, Travis County’s allocation 

was reduced from $2,449,337 to $838,659.  Due to the scope of the reduction, the substantial 

amendment process was initiated.   

 

On the week of October 30, 2006, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing and 

summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan and the Action 

Plan for FY 2007.  The notice appeared in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas 

of Travis County.  The 15-day public comment period commenced November 15, 2006, and ended 

November 29, 2006. 

 

After the implementation of Year One began, staff assessed the progress of each project and made 

recommendations to the Travis County Commissioners Court to substantially amend the Year One 

(PY06) Action Plan.  The substantial amendment process was instituted due to the deletion of the 

Youth and Family Assessment Center Flex Fund Expansion, a public service project.  The services to 30 

youth will still be provided, but through the Travis County General Fund. In addition, timelines for 

projects were updated and more detailed information was provided for the Substandard Road Street 

Improvement project located in Apache Shores and the Land Acquisition Project with Habitat for 

Humanity. 

 

During the week of June 4, 2007, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing and 

summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan.  The notice appeared in 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 8 of 44 

several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The 30-day public 

comment period commenced June 20, 2007 and ended July 19, 2007. 

 

In the Spring of 2008, staff assessed the progress of each project in the PY 2006 Action Plan and made 

recommendations to the Travis County Commissioners Court to substantially amend the Year One 

(PY06) Action Plan.  The substantial amendment process was instituted due to the deletion of the 

Family Support Services Social Work Expansion, a public service project.   The funds, originally 

allocated to the public service project, were reprogrammed by creating a new community development 

project.   

 

During the week of June 9, 2008, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing and 

summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan.  The notice appeared in 

several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The 30-day public 

comment period commenced June 25, 2008, and ended July 26, 2008.   

 

The following is the amended Action Plan for FY 2006, the first in the five-year Consolidated Plan for 

2006-2010. Each of the programs supports the overall goals and priorities of Travis County's efforts in 

housing and community development as prioritized in the five-year Consolidated Plan process. 
 

Through the citizen participation process, Travis County staff informed the community of the purpose 

and intent of its CDBG allocation, in order to ensure that citizens had time to comment on a proposed 

project located in their neighborhood.  Any projects proposed for which specific activities or locations 

have not yet been identified will have additional public hearings during PY 2006 in order to inform 

Travis County citizens of the intended use of funds.   

 

After considering the housing, community development and public service needs of Travis County’s 

low- to moderate-income residents as identified in the Housing Needs Assessment, Market Analysis, 

and citizen engagement, Travis County Commissioners Court identified the following national goals as 

its focus for CDBG funds for the five year time period: 

1. Decent Housing: 

� Assisting low- and moderate-income persons obtain affordable housing 

2. A Suitable Living Environment: 

� Improving the safety and livability of neighborhoods and  

� Increasing access to quality public and private facilities and services 

 

Travis County’s CDBG dollars target the unincorporated areas of Travis County with no consortium 

cities included.  At this time, Travis County’s urban county entitlement status does not require city 

participation.  This is an unusual circumstance and makes the projects, work and structure of the 

CDBG program within Travis County unique.   

  

Proposed Projects for Year One include:  

Project Activities Amount 
Community Development 

1. Owner Housing: 
Production of new units 

Land Acquisition – location to be 
determined at a later date.  (Development 

 
$250,000 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 9 of 44 

of affordable housing by Habitat for 
Humanity.) 

2. Street Improvements
  

 Substandard Road Improvements to 
roads in Apache Shores including sections 
of Pima Trail, Crazyhorse Pass, and 
Whitebead Trail. 

  
$305,000 

3. Water/Sewer 
Improvements 

North Ridge Acres $200,000 

6.  Street Improvements 
Substandard Road Improvement Design, 
Engineering and Environmental Review for 
the unaccepted portions of Lava Lane 

$83,659 

Subtotal: 
$755,000 
$838659 

Public Services 

4. Youth Services  
Youth and Family Assessment Center Flex 
Fund – Internal Travis County HHS/VS 
Program Deleted Aug 2007 

$5,000 

5. Public Services, Other 
Family Support Services Social Work 
Services Expansion –Travis County 
HHS/VS Program Deleted Aug 2008 

$83,659 

Subtotal: 
$88,659 
$0 

 

 Administration and 
Planning 

 
Travis County will absorb all costs for 
administration and planning 

$0 

 
Subtotal: 

 
$0 

 
Total award: 

 
$838,659 

                                      

Geographic Areas of the Jurisdiction 

This Action Plan is submitted in accordance with 24 CFR 91.220 as part of the consolidated planning 

process required of entitlement jurisdictions under certain programs operated by the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development. Travis County is an “urban county Entitlement.” 
 

Travis County’s jurisdiction for the funds allocated in this Action Plan includes the unincorporated 

areas of Travis County.  The map below shows the unincorporated areas of Travis County (the areas 

not shaded in yellow) and the percentage of families at low- to moderate-income by census block 

group. Travis County does not target specific areas for funding.  For specifics on geographical locations 

of specific projects for PY 2006, please see the project descriptions throughout the Action Plan as areas 

of services are determined per project.  100% of the allocation will benefit the unincorporated areas of 

Travis County, with a minimum of 70% of the dollars targeted toward low- to moderate-income 

families.   

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 10 of 44 

 
The following four maps show concentrations of racial and ethnic minorities in Travis County by 

census block group.   

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 11 of 44 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 12 of 44 

 
 

  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 13 of 44 

Meeting Underserved Needs 

 
After considering the housing, community development and public service needs of Travis County’s 

low- to moderate-income residents as identified in the Housing Needs Assessment, Market Analysis, 

and citizen engagement, Travis County Commissioners Court identified the following national goals as 

its focus for CDBG funds for the five year time period: 

 

1. Decent Housing: 

� Assisting low- and moderate-income persons obtain affordable housing 

2. A Suitable Living Environment: 

� Improving the safety and livability of neighborhoods and 

� Increasing access to quality public and private facilities and services 

 
All three national goals are represented in the proposed projects for the amended PY 2006 Action Plan. 

 

Resources Available 

 
The Action Plan focuses on those 

activities funded through CDBG 

funds provided to Travis County by 

HUD on an annual basis.  The County 

is expected to receive approximately 

$838,659 for fiscal year 2006-07.   At 

this time, the County does not receive 

HOME funds. In addition to these 

funds, the County has other funds 

that may be used to leverage CDBG 

money for housing, community 

development and public service 

projects.   
 

Public Service Investment: The County currently contracts annually with over 40 non-profits in the 

form of social service contracts to the sum of approximately $7,268,700.  In addition, the Health and 

Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) provides direct public services annually in 

the amount of approximately $15,442,265.  The cap on public service dollars for CDBG is 15% of the 

County’s allocation, or approximately $125,798 annually.  Therefore, CDBG public service dollars equal 

not more than 0.5% of the County’s overall efforts in public services. 

 

Estimated Annual Public Service 

Investment, Travis County

HHS/VS 

services

67.6%

CDBG public 

services

0.5%

Travis County 

social service 

contracts

31.8%

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 14 of 44 

Community Development and 

Affordable Housing Investment: The 

County’s infrastructure department, 

Transportation and Natural 

Resources, conducts community 

development activities in the form of 

public park, bridge and drainage 

projects, storm water management, 

road maintenance, onsite sewage 

facilities, transportation planning, and 

various other projects, totaling 

approximately $56,324,900 annually.  

Housing and Community 

Development activities using CDBG 

funds are anticipated to total at least 

$545,128 annually.  Therefore, CDBG community development and housing funds equal approximately 

1.3% of the County’s overall efforts in community development. 

 

Priority Needs Analysis and Strategies 
 

Priority Needs Determination 

The priority needs for housing, homelessness, and non-housing community development efforts were 

determined using data presented in Section III (Community Needs) of Travis County’s Consolidated 

Plan, and through public hearings, surveys, consultation with County staff, and consultation with 

housing, community development, and public service providers serving low-to-moderate income 

residents of the unincorporated areas of Travis County.   

 

Key factors affecting the determination of the action plan priorities included: 1) the types of target 

income households with greatest need for assistance; 2) those activities that will best address their 

needs; and 3) the limited amount of funding available to meet those needs.   
 

Priority ranking indicates the following intent: 

 

High Priority:  Travis County plans to use funds made available for activities that address this 

unmet need during the period of time designated in the strategic plan. 

Medium Priority:  If funds are available, activities to address this unmet need may be funded 

by Travis County during the period of time designated in the strategic plan.  Also, Travis 

County will take other actions to locate other sources of funds to address this identified unmet 

need. 

Low Priority:  The jurisdiction does not plan to use funds made available for activities to 

address this unmet need during the period of time designated in the strategic plan.  The 

jurisdiction will consider certifications of consistency for other entities’ applications for Federal 

assistance. 

Estimated Annual Community 

Development Investment, Travis 

County

CDBG 

community 

development 

allocation

1.3%

Travis 

County 

current 

development 

efforts

98.7%

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 15 of 44 

Managing the Process and Institutional Structure 
 

Travis County is located in Central Texas and is home of the State Capitol.  Services provided by the 

County encompass a variety of mandated and non-mandated services.   The Travis County 

Commissioners Court manages the business of the county and comprises four Commissioners  and one 

County Judge.    

 

Administering the Programs 

 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is the lead 

department responsible for the administration of the county’s CDBG funding.  This department has 

primary responsibility for assessing community need, developing the Consolidated Plan and yearly 

Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction with other County departments and other 

community partners, administering the finances, monitoring and reporting.  In addition, HHS/VS 

administers some CDBG funded public service project activities.  HHS/VS reports to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

 

Other County departments involved in providing services and administering the funds might include 

Transportation and Natural Resources, Facilities Management, the County Attorney’s Office, and the 

Planning and Budget Office.  Contracts will be procured through the County’s Purchasing Office, and 

the County Auditor will audit financial records of the County as well as any sub-recipients used to 

conduct funded activities.  CDBG staff within HHS/VS will work closely with all Departments that are 

involved to ensure compliance with HUD regulations. 

 

Travis County is a unique urban county.  The population of unincorporated Travis County (not 

including the incorporated small cities, villages, etc.) is large enough to allow the County to be 

designated as an urban entitlement county.  At this time, Travis County’s jurisdiction does not include 

consortium member cities.   

 

Administration and Planning Budget 
 
Due to the reduced allocation, Travis County has chosen to absorb all of the administration and 

planning costs associated with CDBG.  The full award will be used toward community development 

and public service projects.   

 

Coordination and Collaboration 
 

Effective implementation of the Consolidated Plan involves a variety of agencies.  Coordination and 

collaboration within the Travis County government and between agencies helps to ensure that the 

needs in the community are addressed.   

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 16 of 44 

The citizens of Travis County were instrumental in developing this plan, which is a result of six months 

of activity by Travis County staff.  County staff drew on authoritative sources to provide a quantitative 

analysis of community needs; conducted five public hearings at which more than 40 people testified; 

held multiple consultations with service providers from housing, elderly services, youth services, fair 

housing, Housing Authorities, and other government agencies. Upon presentation of the draft 

Consolidated Plan, additional comment was received at two public hearings and feedback was 

received during the public comment period. These comments were considered in the final preparation 

of the Plan.  The substantial amendment process included one public hearing and a fifteen day 

comment period.  Comments related to the amendments made to the Plan are included in Appendix B.  
 

The County is committed to continuing its participation and coordination with federal, state, county, 

and local agencies, as well as with the private and non-profit sectors, to serve the needs of target 

income individuals and families in the community. 

 

Travis County will partner with local Community Housing and Development Organizations (CHDOs), 

non-profits, and other community development and housing providers to explore options for 

community development and public service projects to best meet the community’s need and leverage 

other federal, state, local and private funding. 

 

In addition, Travis County will partner with the Travis County Housing Authority to explore options 

for affordable housing development and the development of public housing in the unincorporated 

areas of the county. 
 

Citizen Participation 

 

Summary of Citizen Participation Process 
 

Travis County implements a citizen participation process based upon 24 Congressional Federal 

Regulation (CFR) Part 91.105 and the Citizen Participation Plan approved by Travis County 

Commissioners Court on April 11, 2006.  Travis County’s Consolidated Plan is developed through a 

collaborative process.  Citizen Participation is a critical part in the development of the Consolidated 

Plan and FY 2007 Action Plan.  The Consolidated Plan is a strategic plan that identifies needs and sets 

priorities, outcomes and objectives in the unincorporated areas of Travis County for a five-year period.  

In addition, each year the County must submit an annual Action Plan (AP) to HUD reporting how the 

year’s funding allocation for CDBG will be used to achieve the goals outlined in the five-year 

Consolidated Plan.   In the year that the Consolidated Plan is developed, the public hearings for input 

on the Annual Action Plan and Consolidated Plan will be held at the same time 

 

August 2006 Submission 
 

In order to elicit public input on the needs of those living in the unincorporated areas of Travis County 

for the development of the Plan and PY 2006 Action Plan (AP), Travis County HHS/VS held public 

hearings at several locations throughout the County in two different formats to acquire information.  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 17 of 44 

Public hearings were held at two different times throughout the development of the Consolidated Plan 

and PY 2006 Action Plan.    

 

Public hearings were held to gather information for the Needs Assessment, asking participants for 

input regarding their housing, community development and public service needs. 

� Notices of the public hearing dates were put in newspapers of general circulation, 

announcements occurred during the televised Commissioners Court meetings were posted on 

the Travis County website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and the seven Travis County Community 

Centers posted notices in both English and Spanish.  

� Public hearings were held on April 11 and May 2,,,2006, at Travis County Commissioners’ Court 

during the normally scheduled voting session.   

� Public hearings were held on April 17, 20 22, 26 and 27, 2006, throughout the County in each of 

the four precincts.   

 

After the development of the Consolidated Plan for public comment, public hearings were held to 

inform and enable the community to comment on the proposed uses of CDBG funds. 

� Notices of the public hearing dates and locations of postings were put in newspapers of general 

circulation, announcements occurred during the televised Commissioners Court meetings, 

posted on the Travis County website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and the seven (7) Travis County 

Community Centers posted notices in both English and Spanish.  

� Public hearings were held on July 11 and 18, 2006, at the Travis County Commissioners’ Court 

during the normally scheduled voting session.  

� Summaries of the Plan and PY2006 Action Plan (copies are available) and the full drafts (for 

review only) are available at the seven Travis County Community Centers as well as the Travis 

County website. 

 

Travis County HHS/VS drafted the Consolidated Plan and presented it to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court on June 27, 2006.  After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the 

Plan  was posted for written comment for thirty (30) days prior to approval by the Travis County 

CommissionersCourt.    The 30- day comment period commenced June 28, 2006, and ended July 27, 

2006. 

 

Comments on the Plan may be received in writing via email or postal mail to the Travis County Health 

and Human Services & Veterans Service CDBG staff.  The Plan was posted on the Travis County 

website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and Summaries of the Plan were available.  Copies of the full document 

were  available for review at the seven Travis County Community Centers.   

 

November 2006 Submission 
 

In October of 2006, Travis County began the process to amend its Consolidated Plan and Year One 

Action Plan. To expedite the amendment, HUD allowed Travis County to be temporarily out of 

compliance with its Citizen Participation Plan (CPP).  HUD allowed for a 15-day public comment 

period rather than the 30-day comment period outlined in the CPP.   

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 18 of 44 

The public comment period for the amended Consolidated Plan commenced November 15, 2006, and 

ended November 29, 2006.  In addition to posting the Plan for public comment, a public hearing was 

held in the Commissioners Courtroom on November 28, 2006.  Detailed results of the public comments 

submitted in writing and collected during the public hearing can be found in Attachment B. 

 

Comments on the Plan may be received in writing via email or postal mail to the Travis County Health 

and Human Services & Veterans Service CDBG staff.  The Plan was posted on the Travis County 

website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and Summaries of the Plan were available.  Copies of the full document 

were  available for review at the seven Travis County Community Centers.   

 

August 2007 Submission  
 

Staff assessed the progress of each project and made recommendations to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court to substantially amend the Year One (PY06) Action Plan.  The substantial 

amendment process was instituted due to the deletion of the Youth and Family Assessment Center Flex 

Fund Expansion, a public service project.   

 

Concurrent with the substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan,  staff assessed the original 

strategic direction  in the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan.  At the time of the November 2006 amendment, 

Travis County chose to re-evaluate the strategic direction later.  In August of 2007, Travis County 

addressed the strategic direction as it relates to the reduced allocation.     

 

The amendment to the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan’s strategic direction and the substantial 

amendment to the PY06 Action Plan occurred at the same time as the draft of the PY07 Action Plan.  

During the week of June 4, 2007, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing and 

summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan.  The notice appeared in 

several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The 30-day public 

comment period commenced June 20, 2007 and ended July 19, 2007.  Two public hearings were held at 

the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom during the 30—day public comment period on June 26, 

2007, and July 10, 2007, to receive testimony for all three actions.  Details of the public comment may be 

reviewed in Appendix B.   

 

August 2008 Submission  
 

Every year, the progress of projects from previous Action Plans is evaluated to determine if any 

changes to funding or the deletion or addition of projects needs to occur.  As outlined in Travis 

County’s Citizen Participation Plan, a substantial amendment occurs when any project’s funding is 

changed by 25% or more or if a new project is funded.   Any substantial amendment must go through a 

30- day public comment period as well as hold one public hearing.   

 

 On May 27, 2008, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a substantial amendment to the 

PY 2006 Action Plan.  The change to the PY 2006 Action Plan includes the deletion of the Family 

Support Services (FSS) Social Work Expansion program, which received $83,659 and the addition of a 

project to provide the design, engineering and environmental review for a Road Improvement Project 

for Lava Lane located in Precinct 4.  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 19 of 44 

 

The substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan occurred at the same time as the draft of the PY08 

Action Plan.  During the week of June 9, 2008, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing 

and summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan.  The notice appeared 

in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The 30-day public 

comment period commenced June 25, 2008, and ended July 26, 2008.  Two public hearings were held at 

the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom during the 30—day public comment period -- on July 1, 

2008, and July 22, 2008, to receive testimony for both the PY08 Action Plan and the PY06 Substantial 

Amendment.  Details of the public comment may be reviewed in Appendix A.   
 

Comments on the Substantial Amendment could be received in writing via email or postal mail to the 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service CDBG staff.  The Plan was posted on 

the Travis County website (www.co.travis.tx.us) and Summaries of the Plan were available.  Copies of 

the full document were available for review at the seven Travis County Community Centers.   

 

Service Provider Consultations 
 
On May 10, 2006, 27 representatives from 22 agencies attended a facilitated forum.  After receiving a 

presentation on Travis County’s anticipated CDBG allocation, funding intent, eligible activities, and 

preliminary results from the provider survey, representatives were broken into two groups: Public 

Services and Housing/Community Planning.  For details, see Section II of the Consolidated Plan. 

 

Surveys 

 
For the development of the five-year Consolidated Plan, surveys provided additional opportunity to 

assess citizens’ perceptions of their needs.   

 

A link to the web-based survey was sent via email to representatives of public agencies that serve 

residents in the unincorporated areas. The electronic survey was utilized to collect information from 

housing, community development, and public service providers in Travis County.  The survey had a 

total of 48 respondents.  See Section II of the Consolidated Plan for the detailed results of the provider 

survey.   

 

Surveys were available at the public hearings and at each rural community center.  In addition, several 

surveys were completed and submitted by mail.  A total of 30 surveys were received.  Resident surveys 

were available in both English and Spanish.  See Section II of the Consolidated Plan for detailed results.   

 

Summary of Citizen Comments on the Plan 
 

All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and priorities of the five-year Consolidated 

Plan.  Where comments requested information from another county department appropriate 

information coordination will occur.  When comments noted a lack of specific need data, staff directed 

the citizen to the areas of the Plan that contained the need data requested.    

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 20 of 44 

A total of four public comments were received on the draft of the Consolidated Plan.  Three written 

comments were received via email and one person testified during the public hearing held in 

Commissioners Court on July 11, 2006.  No one testified during the public hearing on July 18, 2006.  

 

A summary of comments and interests include: 

 

� Consider the location of bus routes and public services when identifying land for affordable owner 

housing and rental housing development. 

� Consider and survey different areas for sewer, water and street improvements 

� Provide information with other county buy out and park initiatives 

� Increase services to the youth and elderly 

� Include language on mental health issues and related housing needs 

 

A full list of public comments received on the Consolidated Plan is available in Appendix B. 

 

Summary of Citizen Comments on the Substantial Amendment to the Plan  

 
November 2006 

 
All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and priorities of the five-year Consolidated 

Plan.  Where some of the comments requested information from Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG staff 

provided information in writing.    

 

A total of five public comments were received on the draft of the Consolidated Plan.  One written 

comment was received via email and four people testified during the public hearing held in 

Commissioners Court on November 28, 2006.   

 

A summary of comments and interests include: 

 

� Consider water/sewer infrastructure development to the residents of Plainview Estates in future years. 

� Increase affordable housing efforts and continue to work with agencies that promote true affordability. 

� Request staff reexamine what constitutes affordable housing. 

  

A full list of public comments received on the Consolidated Plan is available in Appendix B. 

 

August 2007 
 

All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and priorities of the five-year Consolidated 

Plan.  A total of two public comments were received on the three actions proposed which includes the 

amendment to the 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan’s Strategic Direction, the substantial amendment to the 

PY06 Action Plan and the draft of the PY07 Action Plan.  Two written comments were  received and no 

people testified during the public hearings held in Commissioners Court on June 26, 2007 and July 10, 

2007.   

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 21 of 44 

A summary of comments and interests include: 

 

� Consider looking at programs which promote improved conditions for manufactured housing parks such 

as encouraging cooperative ownership and management. 

� Provide housing solutions for extremely low income families with children. 

� Provide supportive services for extremely low income families with children through case management. 

 

A full list of public comments received on the Consolidated Plan is available in Appendix B. 

 

August 2008 

 
A total of three public comments were received on the draft of the PY 2006 Substantial Amendment. 

Two people testified at the July 1, 2008, public hearing.  No one testified at the July 22, 2008, public 

hearing and one written comment was received during the 30- day public comment period.   

  

A summary of the comments and interests include: 

� Continue to support the expansion of affordable housing in the community. 

� Consider a lease purchase program to assist persons in building credit and accessing affordable housing.   

� Consider funding the construction of the Lava Lane improvements after the design phase is complete.  

� Consider funding the connections to water and the design and construction of a  wastewater system for 

Plainview Estates.   

 

The Plainview Estates residents are included in the water/wastewater planning project for PY07 & 

PY08.  Affordable housing expansion and street improvements are included in all three plan years thus 

far.  All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and priorities of the five-year 

Consolidated Plan.    Please see Appendix “A”, Attachment “B” for the detailed comments received 

during the 30 day public comment period and public hearings.  

 

 

Summary of Efforts to Broaden Public Participation 
 

The following efforts were used to broaden public participation: 

� Travis County Commissioners Court is televised and close captioned on the public access 

channel and repeats several times throughout the week.    

� The County website stayed current with documents and announcements of public hearings.  

� Public notices were available in Spanish and published in Spanish language newspapers. 

� List serves were used to garner interest from social service agencies and their clients 

� Survey boards were used in the five Travis County rural Community Centers. 

� In August 2007, public hearings at the Commissioners Court were held once in the morning and 

once in the evening in order to accommodate different work schedules in the community. 
 

 

Written Explanation of Comments Not Accepted  

 

All comments were accepted. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 22 of 44 

 

Written Explanation of the Substantial Amendment Comments Not Accepted 
 

November 2006 
 

All comments were accepted. 

 

August 2007 
 

All comments were accepted. 

 

August 2008 
 

All comments were accepted.  

Project Prioritization 

Travis County weighed all potential projects identified by citizens and relevant county staff.  Staff 

worked to assess that potential projects met one of HUD’s national objectives, were eligible activities, and 

would be feasible to complete in a timely manner.  Projects that met these criteria were then weighed 

according to the following scoring matrix.  Scores were provided to the Travis County Commissioners 

Court for consideration when making final decisions regarding what projects were to be included in the 

PY 2006 Action Plan.   
 

SCORING CRITERIA 

Criteria Points 

1. Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan (See activity scoring range) 400 

2. Feasibility of project (ability to complete within 18 months) 200 

3. Addresses demonstrated need 100 

4. Impacts large number of households 100 

5. Benefit To Low/Moderate-Income Persons 100 

6. Addresses need for continued assessment for strategic allocation methods 100 

7. Leverages/matched with funding from another source 50 

8. Phased project (phased judiciously) 50 

9. Builds capacity for increased future service provision 50 

 

 

Scoring Methodologies 

 

1. Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan (see activity scoring range) – 400 points 

possible 

Projects addressing one of the three priority goals are awarded 400 points.  Projects 

addressing one of the medium priority goals receive 50 points. Projects not addressing a high 

or medium priority goal receive zero points. 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 23 of 44 

2. Feasibility of project (ability to complete within 18 months) – 200 points possible 

 Projects assessed as ready to be implemented immediately receive the total possible 200 

points.  Projects needing 1 to 6 months assessment before implementation receive 100 points.  

Projects needing 6 to 12 months of assessment receive zero points.  Projects needing more than 

12 months of assessment receive negative 200 points.  (Note: Projects for which feasibility cannot 

be assessed will receive zero points.) 

 

3. Addresses demonstrated need  -- 100 points possible 

 Projects addressing a need that was identified through citizen engagement and research 

conducted for needs assessment receive 100 points.  Projects addressing need identified 

through citizen engagement or research for needs assessment receive 50 points.  Projects not 

addressing a need identified through either receive negative 100 points. 

 

4. Projects impacting many households – 100 points possible 

 Projects impacting over 200 households receive 100 points.  Projects impacting between 100 

and 200 households receive 50 points.  Projects impacting 50 to 100 families receive 25 points.  

Projects impacting under 50 households receive zero points. 

 

5. Benefits To Low/Moderate-Income Persons – 100 points possible 

 Projects benefiting 100% low to moderate income persons or families receive 100 points.  

Projects benefiting 75 to 100% low to moderate income persons or families receive 75 points.  

Projects benefiting 50 to 75% low to moderate income persons or families receive 50 points.  

Projects benefiting under 50% low to moderate income persons or families receive negative 50 

points.  Projects eligible through area benefit that would impact less than 51% low to 

moderate income households will not be considered. 

 

6. Addresses need for continued assessment for strategic allocation methods – 100 points 

possible 

 Projects with the primary goal of assessing need and possible projects receive 100 points.  

Projects which are not primarily aimed at further assessment but will contribute to assessment 

efforts receive 50 points. 

 

7. Leverages/matched with funding from another source – 50 points possible 

 Projects which draw down other funding sources if implemented are given 50 points.  Projects 

using other existing funds to complete the project (matching funds) are given 25 points.  

Projects using only CDBG funds receive zero points. 

 

8. Phased project (phased judiciously) – 50 points possible 

 Projects only taking one year receive 50 points.  Phased projects with funding only allocated 

for 12 months of work, but for which 12 months of work would be sufficient for the project to 

have nearly full impact, also receive 50 points.  Phased projects for which 12 months of work 

would leave an incomplete project with little to no impact receive negative 50 points. 

 

9. Builds capacity for increased future service provision – 50 points possible 

 Projects aiming to build capacity for future public, recreational, or housing services receive 50 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 24 of 44 

points.  Projects that have the potential to build capacity for services receive 25 points.  

Projects that do not build capacity receive zero points. 

 

Monitoring 

 

As the lead agency for development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan, the Travis County 

Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department  implements standard policies and 

procedures for monitoring Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs.  These 

monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and compliance with financial 

requirements. Federal guidelines include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 (CDBG Labor 

Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG) and the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act (CDBG). 

 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with 

the Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract 

negotiations, compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  

 

Sub-Recipients 

 
Sub-recipient agreements will be used to conduct public service activities.  The sub-recipient agreement 

will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring.  Sub-recipients will be monitored for 

programmatic compliance on-site in the following manner: 

1. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by 

financial services and the Auditor’s Office. 

2. All new sub-recipients will be monitored quarterly until no findings occur. 

3. After two consecutive monitoring reports with no findings, semi-annual visits will occur. 

4. Monitoring visits may occur on an annual basis if a sub-recipient has a long-standing record 

(three or more years) with no substantial findings. 

 
Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by sub-recipient fiscal 

performance  and external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. Programmatic and 

fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. 

 

Contractors 
 
Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public services.  

Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests which document and verify expenditures. The 

contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following steps are an 

integral part of the monitoring process for each contract: 

 

1. On-site reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will occur 

to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building and 

construction standards, and review of engineering plans and specifications. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 25 of 44 

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual 

obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or future 

contracts as well as a hold on any payments. 

3. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by 

financial services and the Auditor’s Office. 

 

Internal Travis County Departments 
 
Internal Travis County projects will be monitored with Travis County HHS/VS CDBG staff sign off 

prior to invoices being paid, regular meetings with project management staff, and frequent checking of 

eligibility files, if applicable.    

 

 

 

Project Files 

 
Travis County HHS/VS staff will maintain files in order to document each project and its respective 

compliance with HUD and related regulations. 
 

Lead-Based Paint 

Only a small proportion of Travis County’s housing units are likely to 

contain lead-based paint. The vast majority of housing units were built 

after 1978.  The adjacent chart provides an inventory of numbers of 

homes that may contain lead based paint. 

 

Upon establishment of any programs for owner occupied 

rehabilitation and/or minor repairs, the County will develop 

procedures in that program year’s Action Plan in compliance with the 

Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (Title X) 

and subsequent changes in September, 1999.  The procedures will 

include: 

� Notification 

� Identification 

� Treatment (if necessary) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tenure By Year Structure 
Built, 

Travis County TX 

 Owner occupied 

Built 1970 to 1979 32,815 

Built 1960 to 1969 16,498 

Built 1950 to 1959 13,947 

Built 1940 to 1949 6,963 

Built 1939 or earlier 6,145 

TOTAL 76,368 

 Renter occupied 

Built 1970 to 1979 39,147 

  

Built 1960 to 1969 18,439 

Built 1950 to 1959 9,672 

Built 1940 to 1949 4,622 

Built 1939 or earlier 4,637 

              TOTAL 76,517 

Source: Census 2000 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 26 of 44 

Housing 
 

Travis County’s Consolidated Plan outlines the priority goals for 2006-2010.  Below is a summary of the 

housing goals established for the five-year period.   
 

 

 

Priority Housing Projects 

Rental Housing Goals 

Production of new units High  Medium 

Rental assistance Medium 

Acquisition of existing units Medium 

Rehabilitation of existing units Medium 

Owner Housing Goals 

Production of new units High 

Homebuyer assistance 
High  Medium 

Acquisition of existing units Medium 

Rehabilitation of existing units High 

Other: Other ways to promote affordable 
housing development (Infrastructure) 

High 

 

 
Projects to Further Housing Efforts 
 

The project listed below for PY 2006 targets a high priority goal.  The project intends to increase 

affordable, suitable housing stock in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

 
 

Project 1. Owner Housing: Production of new units 

Activity:  Land Acquisition 
 

Parcels or one large tract of land in unincorporated Travis County will be acquired to build affordable 

single-family housing for low-income families (25-50% Median Family Income).  Single-family housing 

is defined as a one- to four-family residence.   

 

Specific parcels or tracts of land will be identified at a later date.  Public hearings will be held to inform 

the public of the location(s) prior to purchase of the land.  During the selection process, priority will be 

given to tracts of land near public transportation. 

 

Austin Habitat for Humanity, a local non-profit, will secure funding for the construction of homes on 

the acquired property.  Approximately 10 units of housing will be created.  The number of individuals 

impacted will vary depending upon the families selected for the housing units.   

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 27 of 44 

  

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $250,000 

Program Delivery and Management:  Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service, 

and Designated Sub-recipients 

National Objective: LMH  (570.201(a)) 

Matrix Code: 01 

2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority: High 

Objective:  Providing Decent Housing 

Expected Project Outcome: Affordability 

Expected Start Date/Completion Date:  November 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 
 

 

Needs for Public Housing 

 

Travis County will continue to support efforts of the Housing Authority of Travis County’s (HATC) to 

provide homeownership and affordable housing opportunities to low-income residents.  Travis County 

will partner with HATC to explore opportunities to extend these efforts during the unincorporated 

areas in the five-year period covered in this Strategic Plan. 

 

HATC manages a total of 105 public housing units at three public housing sites in the incorporated 

areas of Travis County. Additionally, together with the Housing Authority of Austin, HATC 

administers three Shelter Plus Care projects in the Austin-Travis County area, which utilize integrated 

rental housing and flexible and intensive support services to promote community tenure and 

independence to the chronically homeless and disabled.  These Public Housing and Shelter Plus sites 

are all located in incorporated areas of the county.  In the unincorporated areas, HATC does administer 

the Section Eight Housing Choice Voucher Program to assist very low income, disabled and elderly 

families or individuals.  HATC also operates a Lease-Purchase program, to provide homeownership 

opportunities for prospective homebuyers who can afford monthly mortgage payments, but do not 

have funds for a down payment and/or closing costs or the credit standing to qualify for a loan.  

However, at this time no publicly owned housing developments exist in the unincorporated areas of 

Travis County. 

 

The major strategic goals of HATC’s Five-Year Plan (FY 2005-2009) are as follows: 

� Expand supply, improve quality, and increase available choices for assisted housing  

� Provide an improved living environment 

� Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of assisted households 

� Ensure equal opportunity and affirmatively further fair housing 

� Improve physical conditions of all properties and create a safe workplace 
 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 28 of 44 

Barriers to Affordable Housing 
 

Travis County will invest via staff or dollars in PY2006 in opportunities to mitigate housing, land, fees 

and infrastructure costs via: 

� Acquisition of land  

� Collaboration with non-profits, businesses, agencies and coalitions 

� Supporting initiatives throughout the County which increase affordable housing opportunities 

County staff will work to ensure the development of county policies affecting building codes, zoning 

and growth that promote, to greatest extent possible, affordable housing development.  

Homelessness 
 

During the five-year time period covered in this plan ,Travis County does not intend to target the use of 

Community Development Block Grant funds toward homeless efforts .  Travis County invests $298,000 

in general fund dollars in contracts with social service providers targeting the homeless in conjunction 

with the Austin/Travis County ESG grant administration and according to the Austin/Travis County 

Plan to End Chronic Homelessness.   

 

See the Anti-Poverty Strategy section of this document for Travis County’s strategy to help low-income 

families avoid homelessness. 
 

Non-Housing Community Development 
 

Travis County’s Consolidated Plan outlines the priority goals for 2006-2010.  Below is a summary of the 

goals established for Non- Housing Community Development for the five-year period.   
 

Priority Non-Housing Community Development 
 

Community Development Goals 

Goals Priority 

Water/Sewer Improvements High  

Street/Road Improvements High 

Sidewalks Medium 

Solid Waste Disposal Improvements  Medium 

Flood Drain Improvements Medium 

Other: Erosion Abatement Medium 

Other: Litter Abatement Medium 

Other Public Facility Needs Low 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 29 of 44 

Projects to Further Community Development Efforts 
 

The projects listed below for PY2006 target high priority goals.  Both projects intend to increase suitable 

living environments in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. 
 

 

Project2: Street Improvements  

Activity: Substandard Roads in Apache Shores 

 

Apache Shores is identified as a low to moderate income area.  Many roads in the Apache Shores area 

do not meet Travis County standards, therefore, the substandard roads are not accepted into the Travis 

County road maintenance program.   

 

The street improvement scope of work may include, but is not limited to: 1) design services; 2) land 

surveying services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 4) utility location and 

relocation coordination services; 5) environmental review and related regulatory permits; 6) acquisition 

of right of way and easements; and 6) construction. 

 

Three roads and one alternate road in the Apache Shores area have been identified for repairs.  Road 

selection was based on identifying the current condition of the road (assessed by Travis County’s 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department) and targeting residential streets with lower 

improvement values (assessed and reported by the Travis County Appraisal District). Roads identified 

for improvement are: 

 

1. Pima Trail from Red Fox Road to Crazy Horse Pass  

(Census Tract 1742; Blockgroup 1; Blocks 1068, 1066, 1065, and 1053). 

2. Crazyhorse Pass from Pima Trail to Running Deer Trail  

(Census Tract 1742; Blockgroup 1; Blocks 1054 and 1053). 

3. Whitebead Trail from Red Fox Road to Running Deer Trail  

(Census Tract 1742; Blockgroup 1; Blocks 1052 and 1053). 

Alternate: Crazy Horse Pass from Running Deer Trail to Whitebead Trail  

(Census Tract 1742; Blockgroup 1; Blocks 1047 and 1050). 

The improvements impact 72 households as identified in the map indicating the area of benefit.  

Specific census data for each street is listed above in the roads identified section.  The number of 

households in the area of benefit does not change in the case of improvements to the identified 

alternate road.  The  map can be found in  Attachment  D.  

 

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $305,000 

Program Delivery and Management:  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 

Department, Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran’s Service, and Designated 

Contractors 

National Objective: LM-AB  (570.201 (c)) 

Matrix Code: 03K 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 30 of 44 

2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority: High 

Objective:  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

Expected Project Outcome: Availability/Accessibility 

Expected Start Date/Completion Date:  July 1, 2007 – June 30, 2009 

 

 

Project3: Water/Sewer Improvements 

Activity: North Ridge Acres - Improved municipal water service for NRWSC 

 

North Ridge Acres subdivision is located in both Williamson and Travis Counties near the intersection 

of FM 1325 and CR 172.  58 households in Travis County and 65 households in Williamson County will 

benefit from this project. 

 

The project includes design, construction and administration of a complete replacement of the 

NRWSC’s existing water distribution system.  The goals of the project are:  (1) design and construct a 

new water system that meets the requirements of the TCEQ and the City of Austin; (2) disconnection 

from the current water source (a City of Round Rock fire hydrant); (3) a permanent connection to the 

City of Austin’s water system; and (4) conveyance of the NRWSC to the City of Austin which will 

provide service and billing for all NRWSC customers. 

 

Design and construction of a new distribution system to convey potable water from the connection 

with the City’s system to the NRWSC customers includes:  distribution lines; fire hydrants; service 

laterals, valves, meters and service connections; pavement repairs; and demolition and removal of 

abandoned water storage facilities. 

 

A primary door-to-door survey was conducted in November 2003 and June 2005.  The survey indicates 

that at least 57% of the residents in the project area are Hispanic.  The survey also indicates that 100% of 

the residents fall below the low- to moderate-income level. 
 

The total project budget is $1,872,000.  Please see the leveraged funding section below for the 

breakdown of funding. 

 

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $200,000  

Leveraged Funding: Texas Water Development Board - $1.3 million, Travis County - $172,000 (In- 

Kind and General Fund), Williamson County - $150,000 (CDBG), Office of Rural Community Affairs - 

$250,000 (CDBG/Non-Border Colonia Grant) 

In addition, the City of Austin has spent approximately $200,000 to extend its major water line to the 

front of the Northridge Acres Subdivision and will expend additional funds to connect its water system 

to the newly constructed municipal water system in order to provide long-term water service to the 

community.  Upon completion of the project, the City of Austin will accept all customers of the 

NRWSC as retail utility customers of the City and all customers will pay the City’s applicable rates for 

water service. 

Program Delivery and Management:  Dan Smith, Executive Assistant, Office of the Travis County 

Judge, Mark Hall, TDWB, Gandolf Burris, Grant Development Services and Designated Contractors 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 31 of 44 

National Objective: LM-AB (survey) (570.201 (c)) 

Matrix Code: 03J 

2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority: High 

Objective:  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

Expected Project Outcome: Sustainability 

Expected Start Date/Completion Date: July 15, 2006 to December 30, 2007 

 

 

Project 6: Street Improvements  

Activity: Lava Lane Design 

 

The project funds the design, engineering and environmental review for the improvement of the 

unaccepted portion of Lava Lane, a road in Precinct 4. The improvements to this substandard road will 

provide a new durable road that will allow property owners, school busses, mail service providers, and 

emergency service providers to have all-weather access to the properties.  Additionally, the 

improvements will allow the road to meet County roadway standards so that it can be accepted onto 

the County system for future maintenance and traffic safety enforcement.  

 

The street improvement design scope of work may include, but is not limited to: 1) design services; 2) 

land surveying services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 4) utility location and 

relocation coordination services; and 5) environmental review and related regulatory permits.  Travis 

County Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) will be the project manager and the 

design, engineering, and environmental work will be provided by consultant contract.  The impact of 

the project will be approximately 20 households.   

 

Please see Appendix B for maps of the location and area of benefit.   

 

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $83,659 

Program Delivery and Management:  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 

Department and Contractors 

National Objective: LM-AB  (570.201 (c)) 

Matrix Code: 03K 

2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority: High 

Objective:  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

Expected Project Outcome: Availability/Accessibility 

Expected Start Date/Completion Date:  January 1, 2008 – December 31, 2008 

Antipoverty Strategy/Public Services 
 

Travis County does not yet have a formally adopted anti-poverty strategy. However, the Health and 

Human Services and Veterans Service Department is committed to developing a formal anti-poverty 

strategy over the time period covered by this Consolidated Plan.  In addition, the Travis County 

Commissioners Court has allocated an anti-poverty reserve in its annual budget cycle for fiscal year 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 32 of 44 

2007 which will initiate coordination of current efforts and implement additional programmatic efforts 

to address poverty in a comprehensive manner.    

 

Many of the Consolidated Plan strategies directly assist individuals who are living in poverty.  In 

addition, Travis County’s lead agency for administering these funds is the Health and Human Services 

& Veterans Service Department, whose mission is “to work in partnership with the community to 

promote full development of individual, family, neighborhood, and community potential.”  The vision 

of HHS/VS is “optimizing self-sufficiency for families and individuals in safe and healthy 

communities.”  Both the mission and vision of HHS/VS are essentially aimed at preventing and 

ameliorating conditions of poverty in Travis County. 
 

In addition, Travis County participates in the assessments, plans, and activities of the Community 

Action Network, whose members have informally pursued anti-poverty strategies as part of their 

primary mission.    

Travis County’s Consolidated Plan outlines the priority goals for 2006-2010.  Below is a summary of the 

goals established for Public Services for the five-year period.   
 

Priority Public Services 

 
 

Public Service Goals 
Goals Priority 
Youth Services High 

Other Public Service Needs High 

Transportation Services Medium 

Employment Training Medium 

Health Services Medium 

Child Care Services Medium 

Senior Services Medium 

Substance Abuse Services Medium 

Lead Hazard Screening Low 

Crime Awareness Low 

 

 

The Travis County Community’s Anti-Poverty Programs – Non- CDBG funding 

� Providing assistance with emergency basic needs (including rent, utility and food assistance) in 

order to prevent homelessness. 

� Advocating for and supporting public policy initiatives that create real solutions for adequate 

healthcare, childcare, living wages, education and disability assistance. 

 

 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 33 of 44 

Projects to Further Anti-Poverty/Public Services Efforts 

 
The projects listed below for PY 2006 target high priority goals.  Both projects intend to increase access 

to quality public services in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

  

Both projects allocated for public services were deleted and monies were reprogrammed in either 

August 2007 or August 2008.  Travis County investments in anti-poverty and public service are made 

using General Funds for PY 2006 and are outlined in the PY 2006 Consolidated Annual Performance 

Evaluation Report. 

 

Approval of the deletion of the Youth and Family Assessment Project occurred in August 2007.  The 

services to 30 youth will still be provided, but through the Travis County General Fund.   The $5,000 

originally issued to fund this project will increase the budget to the Apache Shores Street Improvement 

project. 

 

Deletion of:  Project4: Youth Services     

Activity:  Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) Flex Fund Expansion 

 

The YFAC program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

expansion of existing services.  Flex Funding through the YFAC program assists high-risk children 

improve their school performance and avoid the juvenile justice system through traditional and non-

traditional services. A small expansion of flex funds is requested for the first year; however, it is 

anticipated that the client population will grow over time as more outreach is done.  Approximately  30 

youth will be assisted. 

 

The Family Support Services Division Social Work Services Expansion staff (mentioned below) will 

outreach, assess and manage the flex fund expansion dollars. 

 

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $5,000 

Leveraged Funding:   $5,000 – General Fund 

Program Delivery and Management:  Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran’s Service 

National Objective: LMC  (570.201(e)) 

Matrix Code: 05D 

Objective:  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

Expected Project Outcome:  Availability/Accessibility2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority: High  

Expected Start Date/Completion Date: January 15, 2007 to September 30, 2007 

 

On May 27, 2008, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a substantial amendment to the 

PY 2006 Action Plan.  The change to the PY 2006 Action Plan includes the deletion of the Family 

Support Services (FSS) Social Work Expansion program, which received $83,659 and the addition of a 

project to provide the design, engineering and environmental review for a Road Improvement Project 

for Lava Lane located in Precinct 4.  

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 34 of 44 

Due to the difficulty of hiring staff to provide the Social Work Services, no funds from the PY 2006 

program year were spent on the FSS Social Work Expansion project. The project is currently underway 

using the funds allocated to it in PY 2007.  The reprogramming of the PY 2006 unused funds to another 

project allows for timelier spending of dollars.  Additionally, due to an annual limit on the amount of 

money spent on public service projects established by HUD, the funds must be reprogrammed to a 

community development project.  Please see Project #6 for details on the new project. 

 

Deletion of:  Project5: Public Services, Other       

Activity: HHS/VS Family Support Services Division Social Work Services 
Expansion 

 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion 

of existing services.   The program will expand current social work services by two Social Workers in 

order to increase capacity to provide case management, information and referral, non-clinical 

counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in the unincorporated areas.  The social workers will be 

located at the Community Centers in Del Valle and Manor. 

 

The expansion of the social work staff within Family Support Services would reduce the barriers 

encountered by county residents in unincorporated areas receiving needed social, financial and health 

services.  This furthers the goal of HHS/VS to make its services available to all residents in need of 

them.  The expansion increases the capacity of social work services to serve a minimum of 100 families. 

 

Funding Source: CDBG  

Funding Provided: $83,659 

Leveraged Funding:– $31,341 General Fund 

Program Delivery and Management:  Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

National Objective: LMC  (570.201(e)) 

Matrix Code: 05 

2006-2010 Strategic Plan Priority:  High 

Objective:  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

Expected Project Outcome: Availability/Accessibility 

Expected Start Date/Completion Date: January 15, 2007 - September 30, 2007  July 15, 2007 – December 

31, 2007 
 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 35 of 44 

 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A:  

Citizen Engagement 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Substantial Amendment to the 

Annual Action Plan for 
Program Year 2006: 

 August 2008 

 
 

 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 36 of 44 

Every year, the progress of projects from previous Action Plans is evaluated to determine if any 

changes to funding or the deletion or addition of projects needs to occur.  As outlined in Travis 

County’s Citizen Participation Plan, a substantial amendment occurs when any project’s funding is 

changed by 25% or more or if a new project is funded.   Any substantial amendment must go through a 

30- day public comment period as well as hold one public hearing.   

 

On May 27, 2008, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a substantial amendment to the 

PY 2006 Action Plan.  The substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan occurred at the same time as 

the draft of the PY08 Action Plan.  During the week of June 9, 2008, Travis County published a Public 

Notice announcing and summarizing the proposed substantial amendment to the PY06 Action Plan.  

Please see Attachment “A” for a copy of the public notice   

 

The notice appeared in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  

The 30-day public comment period commenced June 25, 2008, and ended July 26, 2008.  Two public 

hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom during the 30—day public 

comment period on July 1, 2008, and July 22, 2008, to receive testimony for the PY08 Action Plan and 

the PY06 Substantial Amendment.   

 

A total of three public comments were received on the draft of the PY 2006 Substantial Amendment 

and PY08 Action Plan. Two people testified at the July 1, 2008, public hearing.  No one testified at the 

July 22, 2008, public hearing and one written comment was received during the 30- day public 

comment period.   

  

A summary of the comments and interests include: 

� Continue to support the expansion of affordable housing in the community. 

� Consider a lease purchase program to assist persons in building credit and accessing affordable housing.   

� Consider funding the construction of the Lava Lane improvements after the design phase is complete.  

� Consider funding the connections to water and the design and construction of a  wastewater system for 

Plainview Estates.   

 

The Plainview Estates residents are included in the water/wastewater planning project for PY07 & 

PY08.  Affordable housing expansion and street improvements are included in all three plan years thus 

far.  All comments were accepted as they aligned with the intent and priorities of the five-year 

Consolidated Plan.    Please see Appendix “A”, Attachment “B” for the detailed comments received 

during the 30 day public comment period and public hearings.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 37 of 44 

Attachment “A” 
Public Notice 

 
Travis County Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) 

Public Notice: Invitation to Comment on the drafts of  
Travis County CDBG Program Year 2008 Action Plan and a 

Substantial Amendment to the Program Year 2006 Action Plan 

 

Travis County is eligible to receive an estimated $833,133 from the United States Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in the form of a Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG). HUD awards these grants to communities to carry out a variety of community 

development activities aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, 

and providing improved community facilities and services.  Travis County’s CDBG allocation 

targets the unincorporated areas of the county. 
 

In accordance with Federal Guidelines, Travis County officials and staff are requesting public 

comment on the drafts of two CDBG documents: 

⇒ The Action Plan for Program Year 2008  

⇒              The change of projects for the Program Year 2006 Action Plan  

The drafts of the Action Plans are the second step following the needs identified through the public 

hearings held in February and March of 2008.   

Comments will be accepted for 30 days beginning June 25th, 2008 at 8:00 a.m. and ending July 

26th, 2008 at 5:00 p.m.  Drafts of the Plans as well as summaries of the Plans are available for 

review, beginning June 25th, 2008 at the Travis County website www.co.travis.tx.us or at the 

following locations: 

South Rural Community Center:  3518 FM 973, Del Valle 

Travis County Community Center:  15822 Foothills Farm Loop, Bldg D, Pflugerville 

West Rural Community Center:  8656-A Hwy 71 W., Suite A, Oak Hill 

Northwest Rural Community Center:  18649 FM 1431, Jonestown 

East Rural Community Center:  600 W. Carrie Manor, Manor 

Palm Square Community Center:  100 N. IH-35, Suite 1000, Austin 

Post Road Community Center:  2201 Post Road, Suite 101, Austin 

Public Hearings will be held to receive comments: 

                   Location:  Dates & Times: 

                   Travis County Granger Building  Tuesday, July 1, 2008 at 9:00 AM 

                   Commissioners Courtroom Tuesday, July 22, 2008 at 9:00 AM 

                    314 W. 11th St, Austin, TX 

Comments may also be received in writing via mail or e-mail to:CDBG Program, Travis 

County HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 or christy.moffett@co.travis.tx.us 
Travis County is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 

amended. Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. Please call 854-3460 for 
assistance. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 38 of 44 

Attachment “B” 
Detailed Public Comment 

 
Comments Received at the July 1st Public Hearing 

 

*Gus Peña’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on July 1st, 2008: 

 

This is Gus Peña. I think that I have spoken to the issue before. Habitat for Humanity is an outstanding 

initiative, they provide true affordable housing. Our program is green space to be able to build homes. 

In the course of the last six months, we have been in contact with the secretary of HUD, visited his 

office, the new one, also the San Antonio's HUD Department with the help of former mayor Henry 

Cisneros, former secretary of HUD, also my cousin Frederico Peña, the reason being that we need more 

affordable housing and let's make it real clear what affordable housing is. Some of this funding is 

appropriate, 41 homes is good, outstanding, a good start because there are a lot of people that can't 

afford a home and cannot afford a home but we should be able to place them, get them off the streets.  

 

One thing that I would, I don't know if this fits the criteria, but if I could ask you Judge and the other 

Commissioners, there used to a program called rent to purchase, two years to rebuild your credit or 

clean up your credit, that was an outstanding true blue proven program, if we could have that, 

something like that, you could have more people qualify, they are working, of course, in order to pay 

the mortgage. This would help out people be placed into homes also, affordable homes.  

 

Keep up the good work. I asked the Secretary's office in San Antonio and Washington to give us more 

money. There's a big need over here. I know there's a need nation-wide, but I'm from Austin, Texas, 

Travis County, we need more money for this program. I think that it's outstanding. We call it the rural 

area, now unincorporated, Christy and I were talking about it, these are the things that are helpful, 

very helpful thank you for your leadership. 

 

*Joel Rebollar’s testimony Received during Public Hearing on July 1st, 2008: 

 

Good morning, my name is Joel, I'm a constituent of precinct 4. I would like to tell you all first of all 

thank you for -- for voting on May 27th to approve the substantial amendment for the 2006 plan that 

she was talking about.  

 

The thing that I would like to add on to what she was saying, on behalf of the entire community 

because a bunch of them are taking care of kids and so forth, I would like to ask the Commissioners 

Court to please take into consideration the funding for just the construction of this road of Lava Lane 

within the next two years, if possible. Just for the major fact being that our community is growing a lot 

bigger.  

 

There's more kids attending school. And we really do need those public services such as the bus going 

up into that road. We took some of the -- we took Christy out there and it's .8 miles just to the -- to the 

bus stop. So we got a little six-year-old, I believe seven-year-old now this year that has to walk .8 all the 

way to the bus stop because we don't have that road improvement. We did talk to Ms. Gomez, thank 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 39 of 44 

you for taking that time, we would like to ask you all to take that into consideration because it is very 

necessary, as well as other improvements like you all have the production of new home unit like 

myself, you know, if you all can just from all of us and on Lava Lane, if you all can please take 

consideration for the construction of Lava Lane, thank you. 

 
*The source of this transcript is the closed-captioned text version of the Travis County Commissioners Court.  The 

comments were taken from the Travis County web site prior to the minutes being approved.  Slight changes may occur once 
the certified minutes are available, though the integrity and intent of the comment will not change. 

 

Comments Received at the July 22nd Public Hearing 
 

No comments were received during the July 22nd public hearing. 
 

Written Comments Received  
 

Via email from Connie Gonzales on 7/26/08 at 5:06 pm 
 

To whom it may concern, 

  

On behalf of the residents of Plain View Estates this public comment comes in support for CDBG 

funding water and wastewater services in our neighborhood.    

 

Starting in 2000 when our wells started going dry in Plain View Estates, forty families in our 

neighborhood have been without running water. We successfully came together with Santa Barbara 

Catholic Church and Austin Interfaith to fix this problem.  We worked with Hudson Bend Utility 

Company and also with Travis County who invested nearly $600,000 toward hooking us up to water 

lines. Since then, two families have been able to connect to the water meters, while the remaining 38 are 

working hard to raise the funds needed to cover the tapping fees, materials, and labor for connecting 

each house to running water. Unfortunately, the cost of completing this project has gone up 

substantially from the original estimate of $510 per residence.  However, we continue to work together 

to ensure that all of us are able to get running water as soon as possible.   

 

In addition, we also are looking ahead to coming years when we know that we will need wastewater 

service at our residences.  Therefore, it is our collective request that financial support be assigned to 

fund two projects in our community. First, funds are needed to connect the remaining 38 families to 

water meters. Second, we request funding for infrastructure and connection fees for waste water 

services for all families in Plain View Estates. 

 

It is prudent that this happens so that we can live as everyone else does in our area of Travis County . 

  

Connie H. Gonzales 

Spokesperson for residents of Plain View Estates and Santa Barbara Catholic Church Leader with 

Austin Interfaith 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 40 of 44 

 

Travis County 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix B:  

Lava Lane Project Maps 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Substantial Amendment to the 

Annual Action Plan for 
Program Year 2006: 

 August 2008 

 
 

 

-Prepared by Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans Service 

 

 

 

 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 41 of 44 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 42 of 44 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 43 of 44 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 Travis County Program Year 2006 Action Plan, August 2008 Amendment              

 

Page 44 of 44 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
         
PLANNING AND BUDGET OFFICE 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
314 W. 11th Street 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas  78767                                                 
                                      
                                  July 28, 2008 
To: Members of the Commissioners Court, Travis County  

Elected Officials, Appointed Officials, Employees and Constituents 
 
From: Rodney D. Rhoades, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget 
 Leroy Nellis, Budget Director 
 
Re: Fiscal Year 2009 Preliminary Budget 
 
We are pleased to present the Travis County Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2009. 
This document is submitted in accordance with all statutory requirements and will serve 
as a platform for the Commissioners Court to receive comments from the public and 
county departments on FY 09 funding priorities. It contains the recommendations from 
the Planning and Budget Office (PBO) for a balanced budget within the policy and fiscal 
directions provided by the Commissioners Court and the current information available. 
The final budget is scheduled for adoption by the Commissioners Court on Tuesday, 
September 23, 2008. 
  
Travis County, like most governmental agencies has felt the effects of the recent 
economic downturn. The Preliminary Budget has first endeavored to meet the County’s 
existing contractual and programmatic commitments, along with providing some 
resources for compensation increases while maintaining the County’s reserves at a 
level consistent with financial policies. Beyond these areas, the Preliminary Budget 
contains very few increases or additional new programs as resources have been 
extremely limited. In addition, reserves for Economic Downturn and Cost Increases that 
were previously included at the time of the third revenue estimate have had to be 
reduced or eliminated in an effort to keep the budget balanced. This is a result of the 
amended third revenue estimate Planning and Budget received after the certified roll 
was finalized and is an area that we plan to address with the Commissioners Court 
during budget hearings. 
 
A major influence on this budget has been specific direction from the Commissioners 
Court to place a limit on the growth in property tax revenue. The Court provided 
instructions in February 2008 that the tax rate in the Preliminary Budget should be “at or 
near” the Effective Tax Rate. The Preliminary Budget is balanced at a tax rate of 2.5% 
over the Effective Tax Rate, or $0.4006 per $100 of Appraised Value.  Since property 
taxes represent such a substantial part of the County’s revenue, this limitation has 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



restricted growth in programs and other expenses in order to ensure a balanced budget. 
The proposed tax rate has been calculated to reflect this revenue limitation.  
 
The Chief Appraiser for the Travis Central Appraisal District has projected the total 
property value to increase from $85.1 billion certified in FY 08 to $95.3 billion in FY 09. 
This includes $3.9 billion in new property value that has not before been on the tax rolls. 
In addition, the average homestead value after all exemptions are applied will increase 
from $257,222 in FY 08 to an estimated $282,894 in FY 09.  
 
The FY09 Preliminary Budget is balanced at a lower tax rate than the FY 08 Adopted 
Rate. The proposed tax rate is $.4006, which is 2.1 cents lower than the current tax 
rate. This is the third year in a row where the tax rate has dropped substantially from the 
prior year. It was $.4993 in FY 06. It dropped to $.4499 in FY 07, it dropped again to 
$.4216 in FY 08 and is proposed to be $.4006 in FY 09. This represents a decrease in 
the tax rate of 9.87 cents since FY 06. At the proposed tax rate, the average of all 
homesteads will see a modest increase in the county tax bill of $24.53 or $2.05 per 
month. This represents a 2.98% annual increase in the tax bill.   
 
To meet the County’s capital needs, a total of $40,383,936 is included in the Preliminary 
Budget from the following basic sources: the General Fund Capital Acquisition 
Resources (CAR) account ($9,387,481), debt from Certificates of Obligation 
($16,885,000), capital projects in Other Funds ($426,455), and debt from long-term 
bonds authorized by the voters in 2005 ($13,685,000).  
 
Due to the prudent financial policies of Travis County, we have once again had our AAA 
bond rating reconfirmed by the two national credit rating agencies. This bond rating has 
been awarded by both agencies since 2001. It should be noted that we are one of five 
out of 254 counties in the State of Texas who has received such an honor. This is a 
result of historically careful spending, relatively low reliance on fluctuating income 
sources, and careful adherence to a set of adopted “Financial and Budgeting 
Guidelines”. While the County still faces budgetary challenges for FY 09, it does so with 
officials prepared to control costs, make careful expenditures, and implement improved 
efficiencies while meeting the public’s demand for services.  
 
This Preliminary Budget represents a sound financial plan for FY 09. The budget has 
been filed with the County Clerk for the public’s review. Additional copies are available 
in the Planning and Budget Office in the Ned Granger Administration Building, 314 W. 
11th Street, Suite 540. It is also posted on Travis County’s web site, 
(www.co.travis.tx.us).  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

FY 2009 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

 

Special Assistant
to Comm. Court
Christian Smith

Juvenile
Probation

Estela
Medina

Emergency
Services

Executive Manager
Danny Hobby

Travis County Voters

District Attorney
Ronnie Earle

District Clerk
Amalia

Rodriguez-Mendoza

County Attorney
David Escamilla

Sheriff
Greg Hamilton

Constables
1. Luke Mercer
2. Bob Vann
3. Richard McCain
4. Maria Canchola
5. Bruce Elfant

Court-At-Law Judges
1. David Phillips
2. Eric Shepperd
3. David Crain
4. Mike Denton
5. Nancy Hohengarten
6. Jan Breland
7. Elisabeth Earle
8. Carlos Barrera

Probate Judge
Guy Herman

Justices Of The
Peace

1. Richard Scott
2. Barbara Bembry
3. Susan Steeg
4. Raúl González
5. Herb Evans

Tax Assessor-Collector
Nelda Wells Spears

Treasurer
Dolores Ortega-Carter

County Clerk
Dana DeBeauvoir

Criminal Justice
Planning

Executive Manager
Roger Jefferies

Health, Human Services &
Veterans Services
Executive Manager

Sherri Fleming

Transportation &
Natural Resources
Executive Manager

Joe Gieselman

Administrative
Operations

Executive Manager
Alicia Perez

Commissioners Court

Sam Biscoe, County Judge
Ron Davis, Pct. 1
Sarah Eckhardt, Pct. 2
Gerald Daugherty, Pct. 3
Margaret Gómez, Pct. 4

Veterans ServicesEmergency
Services

Medical
Examiner

Counseling &
Education
Services

Cooperative
Extension
Service

Health & Human
Services

Administrative
Support
Services

Road
Maintenance

& Fleet
Services

Public
Works Parks/Natural

Resources

Transportation,
Stormwater &
Development

Services

Human
Resource

Management

Records
Management &

Communications
Resources

Information &
Telecomm.
Systems Facilities

Management

Exposition &
Heritage Center

Juvenile Board

All District
Judges

County
Judge

Dispute
Resolution

Center

Domestic
Relations

Jul 2008

Purchasing Agent
Cyd Grimes

   Elected Officials

Purchasing Board

2 County Commissioners
3 District Judges

Fire Marshal

Technology &
Communications

Criminal Justice
Planning

Emergency Medical
Services

Planning & Budget
Executive Manager
Rodney Rhoades

Criminal District
Judges

147th  Wilford Flowers
167th  Mike Lynch
299th  Charlie Baird
331st  Bob Perkins
390th  Julie Kocurek
403rd  Brenda Kennedy
427th  Melissa Goodwin

Auditor
Susan Spataro

Civil District Judges
53rd    Scott Jenkins
98th    W. Jeanne Meurer
126th  Darlene Byrne
200th  Gisela D. Triana
201st  Suzanne Covington
250th  John Dietz
261st  Lora Livingston
345th  Stephen Yelenosky
353rd  Margaret Cooper
419th  Orlinda Naranjo

Community
Supervision &

Corrections
Dr. Geraldine Nagy

Pre-Trial Services

Planning &
Budget

TRAVIS
COUNTY

Cash Invest
Mgmt/

County Corp

Juvenile Public
Defender

Intergovernmental
Relations Coord.

Vacant

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  1 

I.  BASIC COMPONENTS OF THE FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 
The FY 09 Budget Guidelines approved by Commissioners Court on February 26, 2008, 
set the parameters for the Planning and Budget Office (PBO) to follow in developing the 
FY 09 Preliminary Budget.  Key parameters include the following: 
 
►  The tax rate in the Preliminary Budget should be “at or near” the Effective Tax Rate.  
For purposes of developing a Preliminary Budget, the Commissioners Court indicated in 
the FY 09 Budget Guidelines that a tax rate within 3% to 4% of the Effective Tax Rate is 
considered to be “near” the Effective Tax Rate. The Preliminary Budget is balanced at a 
tax rate of 2.5% over the Effective Tax Rate, or $0.4006 per $100 of Appraised Value. 
 
► If resources are available, PBO should include in the Preliminary Budget a 
Compensation Reserve of between 3% and 4% of salaries (between $5.0 million and 
$6.6 million) for a variety of compensation issues. The Preliminary Budget includes a 
Compensation Reserve of $5,745,897, which represents approximately 3.0% of all 
salaries. 
 
►  The Commissioners Court’s budget guidelines call for special attention during FY 09 
and FY 10 to be given to: (1) reducing adult jail and juvenile detention populations, with 
special attention toward inmates with mental illness; (2) addressing substance abuse; 
and (3) enhancing workforce development (adult training and new jobs). The 
Preliminary Budget includes funding for the continuation of the Mobile Crisis Outreach 
Team which provides emergency and urgent psychiatric crisis outreach and follow-up to 
adults and youth and the Children’s Partnership, which provides traditional and non-
traditional therapeutic and residential treatment services to children with complex 
mental health needs and their families.  In addition, staffing was added to the 
Counseling Center’s Alcohol and Drug Assessment Program and funds for a cash 
match for the Parenting in Recovery Program grant were added to continue leveraging 
$2.5 million in federal resources to provide treatment and comprehensive services to 
children and parents involved in the child welfare system as a result of parental 
substance dependence.  Finally, the Preliminary Budget also includes funding for 
workforce investment programs. 
  
Beyond these three key parameters, the FY 09 Preliminary Budget is also based on 
funding those projects and programs that are needed continuations of existing programs 
or were previously approved by Commissioners Court. For example, the Preliminary 
Budget includes hardware and software maintenance agreements as well as the new 
approved County Court-at-Law (#8), and staffing related to the opening of the new Jail 
Facility (Building 12) at the Travis County Correctional Complex (TCCC) located in Del 
Valle. 
 
Finally, the FY 09 Preliminary Budget is shaped by prevailing economic conditions that 
are affecting governments and citizens alike.  Large increases in utilities and fuel have 
redirected resources that otherwise may have gone to needed programmatic 
enhancements. These conditions have also resulted in a projected drop in the FY 09 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

2  Executive Summary 

beginning fund balance of over $18 million.  As departments spend more this year for 
approved services and projects, the fund balance drops, leaving fewer one-time 
resources for FY 09.  While some of this drawdown was expected and planned for, the 
drawdown was not projected at this magnitude.   
 
Likewise, on the revenue side of the equation, the economic slowdown has resulted in a 
slight reduction in the new construction value which totals $3.16 billion (excluding new 
construction included in the Samsung and Domain rebate agreements) in new 
construction value.  In addition, the continued plunge of interest rates has resulted in 
interest income dropping by almost $3.9 million from the FY 08 Adopted Budget to the 
Auditor’s Amended Third Revenue Estimate for FY 09. 
 
A recapitulation of the FY 09 Preliminary Budget is found in Appendix I.  The FY 09 
Preliminary Budget total for all funds is $644,715,780, compared to the FY 08 Adopted 
Budget for all funds of $663,650,517.  This is a 2.85% decrease from the FY 08 
Adopted Budget.  Key changes are summarized below. 
 

FY 09 Preliminary Budget – All Funds 
 

 FY 08 Adopted 
Budget 

FY 09 Preliminary 
Budget 

$ 
Change 

% 
Change 

General Fund (1)  $ 436,800,165 $436,406,365 ($393,800) (0.09%)
Road and Bridge Fund       23,589,476 24,016,023 426,547 1.81%
Debt Service Fund       80,707,196 81,743,180 1,035,984 1.28%
Internal Service Funds:  
  Risk Management Fund       18,491,123 18,967,352 476,229 2.58%
  Employee Insurance 
Fund       70,683,196 68,140,697 (2,542,499) (3.60%)
Other Funds (2)        45,868,935 29,510,067 (16,358,868) (35.66%)
Less Transfers     (12,489,574) (14,067,904) (1,578,330) 12.64%
Total  $663,650,517 $644,715,780 ($18,934,737) (2.85%)

(1) From the Amended 3rd Revenue Estimate for FY 09. 
(2) Excludes the two internal service funds (Risk Management Fund and Employee's Insurance 
Fund) but includes Other Funds Not Approved by Commissioners Court. Almost $16 million of 
the decrease in the Other Funds total is related to a decrease in the Balcones Canyonland 
Preservation Fund. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  3 

II.  DEPARTMENTAL BUDGETS IN THE PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 
Appendix I contains a comparison of General Fund departmental budgets from FY 07 
through the FY 09 Preliminary Budget.  The Adopted Budgets for all departments, 
excluding capital amounts, increased from $367,130,970 in FY 08 to $372,318,705 in 
the FY 09 Preliminary Budget, excluding capital.  Appendix I also includes a table, “FY 
09 Summary of Budget Requests” that lists the 471 individual requests for additional 
resources and indicates their funding status. 
 
 

One-Time 
Expenses

Ongoing 
Expenses Total

Beginning Fund Balance 72,063,810$    54,657,574$  -$                    54,657,574$       
Current Property Taxes 285,966,541    -                302,989,729     302,989,729$     
Other Revenue 78,769,814      -                78,759,062       78,759,062$       
3rd Revenue Estimate 436,800,165$   54,657,574$   381,748,791$     436,406,365$     
Unallocated Reserve 40,355,884$     40,091,458$   -$                    40,091,458$       

Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) 23,018,732       9,387,481       -                      9,387,481           
Regular - Allocated Reserve 3,615,763        4,000,000     -                     4,000,000          
Annualization Reserve 653,176           -                2,084,478         2,084,478          
Central Campus Redevelopment 
Planning Reserve -                    700,000          -                      700,000              
Fuel & Utilities Reserve -                   -                1,108,121         1,108,121          
Civil Court Mandated Fees Reserve -                   -                200,000            200,000             

Reserve for Potential Cost Increases -                    371,938          -                      371,938              
Reserve for FY 07 Green Circle 83,430             -                -                     -                     
Sheriff’s Jail Inmate Reserve 453,040           -                -                     -                     
Juvenile Justice TYC Reserve 750,000           -                -                     -                     
Elections Runoff Reserve 639,170           -                -                     -                     
Psychiatric Services Reserve 100,000           -                -                     -                     

Subtotal Reserves 69,669,195$     54,550,877$   3,392,599$         57,943,476$       

FY 09 Preliminary Budget

FY 09 Preliminary Budget - General Fund
Revenue, Reserves and Wages

FY 08 Adopted 
Budget

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

4  Executive Summary 

Departmental Target Budgets 339,126,380$   -$                365,256,049$     365,256,049$   
Hospitalization Savings Reduction -$                  -$                477,358$            477,358$          
Midyear $2/Hour Wage Increase for 
Maintenance Job Titles -                    -                  849,370              849,370            
Compensation Adjustments 18,592,001      -                5,745,897         5,745,897         
Career Ladders incl. above -                312,322            312,322           
One-time savings from Risk Fund -                   (1,000,000)    -                     (1,000,000)        
One-time savings from Employee 
Health Fund -                    (4,892,724)      (4,892,724)        
Increased Salary Savings -                   (655,953)          (655,953)          
Elected Officials' Compensation (in 
Compensation Adjustments line 
above) 99,344              -                  -                      -                    

Health and Other Benefits Increases 157,810            -                  -                    
Healthcare contra account for vacant 
positions (2,424,166)        -                  -                      -                    
Subtotal Wages and Benefits 16,424,989$     (5,892,724)$    6,728,994$         836,270$          

General Fund Transfer to Balcones 
Canyonland Preserve Fund 967,423$          1,275,285$         1,275,285$       
Waller Creek TIF 100,000            100,000           
County Court-at-Law #8 79,385          1,141,446         1,220,831         
Countywide Fuel 930,724            930,724           
Utilities 809,141            809,141           

Maintenance of Current Effort (MCE) 495,648          1,917,031           2,412,679         
New Facilities 32,600          899,380            931,980           
Revenue Related Packages 611,226        1,206,890         1,818,116         

Justice of the Peace Records Cleanup 285,421          285,421            
Pilot Programs 1,166,153     -                     1,166,153         
Interlocal Agreements 30,836          517,541            548,377           
Security 1,880            328,785            330,665           
PBO Changes (99,400)         (176,473)          (275,873)          
Other 339,765        477,306            817,071           
Total Other Expenses 11,269,751$    2,943,514$    9,427,056$        12,370,570$     
Total All Expenses 436,800,165$  51,601,667$  384,804,698$    436,406,365$   
Available Balance -$                 3,055,907$    (3,055,907)$      -$                 

Other Expenses

FY 09 Preliminary Budget - General Fund

 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  5 

III.  PERSONNEL CHANGES 
 
A total of 73.22 new FTE have been added to the Preliminary Budget.  Of those, eight 
are added for one year only.  The remaining 65.22 are added on an ongoing basis.  
Approximately two-thirds of the staffing increases are related to the new County Court-
at-Law #8, the opening of the new Building 12 at the Travis County Correctional 
Complex, and the staffing for the final detention pod in the Juvenile Probation 
Department. 
 

Department/Description Change
County Court-at-Law #8 (Criminal Courts, Sheriff's Office, County Clerk's Office, CSCD, 
Counseling & Education Services, County Attorney's Office) 13.00
Sheriff's Office - Building 12 Staffing 31.50
Juvenile Probation - Final detention pod staffing 11.00
General Administration - Addition of Special Asst. and Intergovernmental Relations Staff 1.50
Unfunded State Mandate (Tax Office) 1.00
Identify Management Staff (ITS) 1.00
JP5 workload support (one-time) 1.00
CN5 Warrant Workload (one-time) 2.00
Pretrial Services Electronic Monitoring Program (one-time) 2.00
TNR Stormwater Management Program Inspector 1.00
Building security (Facilities Management) 1.00
Subtotal - FTE Funded with New Resources 66.00

Revenue Related (Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5, Tax Office, Counseling & Education Center, District 
Attorney's Office) 2.00
Revenue Related - Star Flight Business Plan 9.00
FY 08 changes approved mid-year (RMCR, HHS, Facilities Management) (7.40)
Internally Funded (District Attorney's Office, Juvenile Probation, RMCR, Civil Courts, Tax Office, 
Emergency Services, Sheriff's Office) 3.62
Subtotal - Revenue Related, Midyear Changes, or Internally Funded 7.22

Total FTE Change 73.22

General Fund Position Changes

 
IV.   MAJOR FUNDING ISSUES 
 
A. Economic Development 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes a $1,275,285 increase to the Transportation and 
Natural Resources (TNR) Department to fund the transfer from the General Fund to the 
Balcones Canyonland Preservation (BCP) Fund (Fund 038). This amount represents 
the increased estimated tax revenue in FY 09 from new construction on BCP lands as 
compared to prior year tax revenues, along with other adjustments.  The total FY 09 
transfer from the General Fund to the BCP Fund is $7,955,470 as per the Auditor’s 
Amended Third Revenue Estimate.  
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

6  Executive Summary 

The Preliminary Budget also includes $100,000 for the payment for the county’s 
participation in the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 17 (Waller Creek TIF).  This 
payment is the estimated amount Travis County will be responsible for under the 
agreement with the City of Austin to deposit into the Tax Increment Fund fifty percent 
(50%) of the County’s tax increment on the properties in the Waller Creek TIF.  The 
purpose of the Waller Creek TIF is to provide resources for the construction of a tunnel 
that will remove properties along Waller Creek from the floodplain which allows 
development along Waller Creek.  The length of the agreement is 20 years. 
 
B.  County Court-at-Law #8 
 
The 80th Texas Legislature created a new County Court-at-Law in Travis County to 
address increased workload, especially related to increased Driving While Intoxicated 
cases.  County Court-at-Law #8 is scheduled to begin operations in November 2008.  
Capital funding for the courtroom was appropriated during FY 08.  FY 09 funding for the 
court’s operations totals $1,220,831 in operating expense, $22,875 in IT equipment, and 
$124,288 in capital across seven departments and offices.  An earmark of $100,000 in 
Allocated Reserve is also established for legally mandated fees.  The chart that follows 
summarizes the various budget and FTE increases per department/office. 
 
Department Operating FTE Description 

Criminal Courts $394,579 4

County Court at Law Judge, Judicial Aide, 
Court Reporter & Office Specialist with 
associated operating budget. 

Legally 
Mandated Fees 373,697 0

Mandated fees include attorney fees, 
interpreters, court reporting charges, jury 
expense, psychiatrist/psychologist, special 
assignment judges, and investigator fees. 

County Clerk’s 
Office 162,805 3

1 Court Services Management Administrative 
Coordinator (Grade 15), 1 Court Clerk II 
(Grade 13), and 1 Court Clerk Assistant 
(Grade 11) with associated operating budget. 

County 
Attorney’s Office 102,454 2

A legal secretary and victim counselor for 
prosecution support and related operating 
costs. 

Sheriff’s Office* 92,601 2
Two Certified Peace Officers and one-time 
equipment expense. 

CSCD 45,818 1

One-time funding for 1 Probation Officer II plus 
related operating expense.  It is expected that 
CSCD will obtain state funding for this position 
in FY 10. 

Counseling & 
Education 
Services 48,877 1

1 Counselor to handle increased caseload as 
well as DWI court caseload. 

TOTAL $1,220,831 13  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  7 

* These two Sheriff’s Office positions are for Inmate Transportation and are funded in 
the General Fund.  Another two Sheriff’s Office positions not listed in the table above 
will also support the added workload from the new County Court-at-Law #8 related to 
Courthouse Security. Funding for these two Certified Peace Officers totals an additional 
$85,753 and is in the Courthouse Security Fund supported by a General Fund transfer. 
 
C.  Countywide Fuel 
 
The countywide fuel budget is driven by changes in the cost of fuel as well as changes 
in fuel usage.  Given projections by the Energy Information Agency, it is projected that 
the average price of fuel in Travis County in FY 09 will be $3.70 for unleaded fuel and 
$4.08 for diesel.  These price assumptions would require an increase of $1,329,605 to 
stay at the same consumption level as FY 08. 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes an increase of $930,724 directly to the 
countywide fuel budget housed in TNR’s budget as well as a Fuel Reserve of $493,121 
(37% of the projected price increase).  The Fuel Reserve is intended to provide the 
Commissioners Court flexibility to encourage operational changes that result in 
decreased fuel consumption.  In addition, an Earmark of $300,000 on the Allocated 
Reserve is included in the Preliminary Budget for possible price increases beyond what 
is currently projected. 
 
The Commissioners Court has established an Efficiency Committee to identify county 
operations that can be improved and where efficiencies may be gained that will result in 
either cost decreases or avoided costs.  One major goal is to decrease county fuel 
consumption.  The Travis County Sheriff’s Office has already implemented a pilot 
program where every Deputy Sheriff assigned a county vehicle has a goal of reducing 
fuel consumption by one gallon a day.  The Sheriff’s Gallon a Day Program is a good 
example of the type of leadership and creativity that is needed in this type of endeavor. 
 
D.  Utilities 
 
A total of $809,141 is included in the Preliminary Budget for increased utilities costs. 
The county’s utility budget is located in three departments – the Transportation and 
Natural Resources Department for parks facilities, the Sheriff’s Office for the Travis 
County Correctional Complex, and the Centralized Utilities Department for all remaining 
county facilities.  The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes an additional $400,000 in the 
Centralized Utilities Department and $409,141 in the Sheriff’s Office for maintenance of 
current effort.  These increases are based on a projected annual fuel charge increase in 
FY 09 in addition to the 20% fuel charge increase of January 2008.  There is a special 
Utilities Reserve for Building 12 at the Travis County Correctional Complex described 
later in this document. 
 
The newly established Efficiency Committee is also seeking to identify improvements to 
county operations that may result in decreased utility costs.  Facilities Management 
Department has been researching energy efficiency best practices as well as 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

8  Executive Summary 

implementing some changes over the past several years that result in greater energy 
efficiency in county facilities. 
 
E.  Maintenance of Current Effort (MCE) 
 
1.  Court Mandated Fees 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes an ongoing increase of $300,000 for Criminal 
Courts Legally Mandated Attorney’s Fees.  This increase is related to volume increases 
in the number of defendants qualifying for court-appointed counsel. In addition, PBO is 
recommending an earmark on Allocated Reserve of $300,000 for potential legally 
mandated attorney’s fees related to pending capital cases. 
 
PBO is also recommending a $200,000 Reserve for Civil Courts Legally Mandated 
Attorney’s Fees.  This amount is a projection related to volume increases at the current 
fee level.  Because the Civil Courts Department has submitted proposals to create two 
separate Public Defense Units that are directly related to legally mandated attorney’s 
fee expenditures, the Reserve will allow Commissioners Court to weigh the 
programmatic as well as budgetary costs and benefits of the three requests with the 
department. 
 
2.  ITS Maintenance Agreements 
 
PBO is recommending funding of $219,082 for contract increases relating to 
maintenance coverage for existing software and hardware, including existing systems 
upon expiration of warranty.  The $219,082 recommended is a net amount, based on 
decreases for some maintenance contracts where PBO is recommending new capital 
expenditures.  These capital expenditures include the purchase of a Digital Video 
Transport package for Records Management & Communication Resources (RMCR) 
that results in the elimination of $43,977 for I-NET contract costs in FY 09 and the 
purchase of a replacement Unisys server and software that eliminates $270,973 in 
ongoing maintenance agreement costs.  The Unisys server will be sold on the used 
market when no longer needed and is expected to sell for approximately $100,000. 
 
3.  Half-time Psychiatrist in Sheriff’s Office 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $114,630 in ongoing funding for the second 
half-time Psychiatrist position in TCSO.  This position, when filled, will provide 
psychiatric services to an inmate population of approximately 400 persons with severe 
to chronic psychiatric illnesses.    
 
4.  Corrections Operating Costs 
 
The cost of many commodities (e.g., food and groceries, drugs and pharmaceuticals) 
and medical services have increased over the past several years and the budget for 
these line items have not been changed since FY 07.  PBO recommends the following 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  9 

funding increases to ensure sufficient resources for an estimated inmate Average Daily 
Population of 2,650.  The funding is for cost increases in commodities only, rather than 
for any increase in ADP.  The FY 09 projected ADP is 115 less than last year, or a 4.3% 
decrease. 
 

Description Funded 
Food & Grocery Supplies (Inmates) $382,558  
Drugs & Pharmaceutical Supplies 470,959  
Medical Services (14,749) 
Total $838,768 

 
5.  Copy/Print Shop-Related Expenses 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes ongoing funding of $121,522 for Records 
Management and Communication Resources (RMCR) Department for various copy and 
print shop-related expenses.  These include copier replacement, copy charges and 
contract increases, and copy and print shop paper.  These are maintenance of current 
effort requests related to price increases. 
 
6.  Special Fees 
 
The General Administration budget is increasing by $134,652 in FY 09 to account for 
the following fee increases. 
 
Arbitrage fees $20,000
Auditing fee (estimate) 50,300
Membership fees (Capital Area Council of Governments, National 
Association of Counties, Conference of Urban Counties) 

4,413

Travis Central Appraisal District fee (estimate) 59,939
Total $134,652

 
The auditing fee is considered an estimate at this time as the audit contract is not final 
yet.  Likewise, the Travis Central Appraisal District fee is an estimate because the 
county’s final pro rata share is not final yet. 
 
7.  Other MCE Requests 
 
There are a variety of other Maintenance of Current Effort increases throughout county 
departments in the FY 09 Preliminary Budget that are less than $100,000 each and are 
summarized in the table below. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

10  Executive Summary 

Department Purpose One-Time Ongoing Total
County Auditor Continuation of Electronic Legal Research 8,000         8,000        

ITS
Identity and Access Management Infrastructure 
Expansion 91,902       91,902       

County Attorney's Office Green circled employee adjustment 364            364           
County Clerk's Office Electronic Voter Qualifying Stations 29,500     29,500      
District Clerk's Office Green circled employee adjustment 2,259         2,259        

Civil Courts
Audio System Repairs (with an additional 
$25,500 in capital funding) 7,500         7,500         

Criminal Courts

Assisted Listening and Interpreter System 
repairs (with an additional $36,000 in capital 
funding) 6,000         6,000         

Constable, Pcts. 2, 3, 5 Civil Process Certification Pay 68,284       68,284      
Constable, Pct. 2 Safety Vest Replacements 5,850       5,850        
Constable, Pct. 2 Accurint fee increase 2,000         2,000        

Constable, Pct. 3
Law Enforcement Equipment & Uniform 
Replacement 35,800       35,800       

TCSO Law Enforcement Equipment & Services 9,100         9,100        
Medical Examiner's Office Specimen send-outs 25,000       25,000      

CSCD
Mental Health Medication and Transitional 
Services (funded through TCSO savings) 5,472         5,472         

Juvenile Probation Progressive Sanctions 63,796       63,796      
Civil Service Commission Scantron software 2,205       1,576         3,781        
Criminal Justice Planning APD Drug Lab Chemist 69,600     69,600      
RMCR Digital Video equipment and systems 47,000     47,000      
RMCR Secure Shredding contract 15,000     15,000      
HHS Congregate Meal Program 20,880       20,880      
HHS Summer Youth Program 37,013       37,013      

EMS Aircraft maintenance, enhancement and training 28,875       6,230         35,105       
Civil Courts Legally 
Mandated Fees Increase for Third Administrative District fees 4,603         4,603         
Total Other MCE 339,232$  254,577$   593,809$  
 
F.  New Facilities 
 
1.  Travis County Correctional Complex Building 12 Staffing 
 
The new jail building (Building 12) at the Travis County Correctional Complex (TCCC) at 
Del Valle will be substantially complete by March 2009 and is expected to open June 1, 
2009.   Based on those dates, with an Inmate ADP of 2,650 for 2009 and an inmate bed 
capacity of 3,095 after June 2009, the Preliminary Budget includes funding for 31.5 new 
positions for Building 12 along with the redeployment of 158.5 positions as follows: 
 

Position Redeployed Positions New Positions 
Lieutenant 2.0 1.0
Sergeant 6.0 1.0
Corrections Officer 150.0 21.0
Security Coordinator 0.0 6.0
Building Maintenance Worker Sr 0.0 2.0
Office Specialist Sr 0.5 0.5

TOTALS 158.5 31.5

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  11 

 
These 31.5 FTEs would be authorized to start in FY 09 as follows: 
 

Position Number Start Date 
Lieutenant 1.0 June 2009 
Sergeant 1.0 March 2009 
Corrections Officer 10.0 June 2009 
Corrections Officer 11.0 August 2009 
Security Coordinator 6.0 March 2009 
Building Maintenance Worker Sr 2.0 March 2009 
Office Specialist Sr 0.5 March 2009 

TOTALS 31.5  
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $486,497 in salaries and benefits, $24,800 for clothing 
and uniforms, and capital outlay of $19,514 for a maintenance truckster and two hand-
held radios.   
 
The Preliminary Budget also includes an annualization reserve for FY 10 of a net 
$1,160,708 for these 31.5 positions as well as $468,000 for FY 10 utility costs.  In 
addition, $615,000 is in the Utility Reserve for Building 12 utility costs in FY 09. Annual 
utility costs for Building 12, which will have 1,336 of the county’s 3,095 inmate bed 
capacity as of June 2009, are estimated at $1,083,000. 
 
2.  Juvenile Probation Detention Build-Out Phase 3 (Final)  
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $406,683 in funding for 11 new staff and 
operating expenses for the remaining eight newly constructed detention beds with a 
start date of April 1, 2009.  Additional one-time funding for IT equipment ($27,620) and 
other capital equipment ($21,000) is also included in the Preliminary Budget.  The 
annualized ongoing cost is $813,368.  Funding will be provided in the department for 
the six months of operation for FY 09 with the remaining funds included in an 
annualization reserve to fully budget these costs for FY 10.  This will increase the 
detention capacity of the Juvenile Justice Facility from 112 to 120 beds.  The juvenile 
Average Daily Population is expected to be around 90 in FY 09 with projected spikes at 
capacity occurring more frequently.   
 
Since it is still unclear how the various interrelated Texas Youth Commission (TYC) 
issues will impact these figures, these resources will also provide the department 
flexibility with staffing and resources to manage its FY 09 budget.  It is also important to 
note that there are no plans to continue a Juvenile Justice TYC Reserve into FY 09. 
 
3.  Other New Facilities Move Costs 
 
A total of $14,000 in one-time costs is budgeted in Facilities Management Department 
to fund move costs associated with the following three capital projects:  Design and 
Construction of the New Precinct 1 Office Building, Renovation of the First Floor of the 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

12  Executive Summary 

Precinct 2 Office Building, and Security Upgrades for the 4th Floor of the Granger 
Building. 
 
G.  Revenue Related Packages 
 
A small number of budget requests are included in the Preliminary Budget because they 
are expected to result in additional revenue to support the added expense.  These 
packages total $611,226 in one-time resources and $1,206,890 in ongoing resources.  
In certain cases the projected revenue increase is sufficiently documented that the 
expense is added on an ongoing basis.  In other cases, the projected revenue is not 
sufficiently documented so those requests are funded with one-time resources and will 
be re-evaluated for FY 10. 
 
1.  Warrant Workload Staffing in Justice of the Peace, Precinct 5   
 
Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5 submitted a proposal to improve warrant issuance and 
execution rates through the hiring of additional staff.  Historically, the Precinct 5 Justice 
Court has seen most of its workload focused in other areas.  The FY 09 Preliminary 
Budget includes ongoing funding of $43,604 and one-time funding of $1,000 for one 
Warrant Court Clerk that is supported by additional revenue.   
 
2.  Tax Office Motor Vehicle Clerk & Chapter 19 Reimbursable Funding 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $40,318 in one-time resources to fund one Tax 
Specialist for the Motor Vehicle Division of the Tax Office.  The Tax Specialist will 
handle the increase in motor vehicle registrations and titles and new mandates from 
TxDOT.  The motor vehicle division is expected to increase revenue from FY08 to FY09 
by $125,000.  Currently the Tax Office is experiencing a 3% annual growth rate.  This 
new FTE will allow the office to maintain the current level of service when processing 
motor vehicle transactions. 
 
The Chapter 19 Reimbursable funding is related to expenses incurred as part of a state 
voter registration program.  Under this program, the state reimburses the county for 
certain types of expenses made in support of county voter registration.  The Preliminary 
Budget includes $15,782 in one-time funding to allow the Tax Office to make the 
qualifying expenditures.  These funds will be reimbursed to the General Fund upon 
receipt of the state funding. 
 
3.  District Clerk’s Passport Clerk 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $42,754 in one-time resources to fund a second year 
of operation of the District Clerk’s Passport Office.  The position is funded by increased 
revenue generated by passport fees.  It is funded using one-time resources to allow 
time to evaluate whether the passport demand will continue into the future or if it drop 
after the recent increased activity due to new federal requirements related to 
international travel. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  13 

 
4.  Justice Courts Collections 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $130,060 in one-time funding for the 
continuation of three Special Project Temporary Court Clerks in Justice of the Peace, 
Precincts 1, 4, and 5.  These Clerks prepare, maintain, and update cases for transfer to 
the Central Collections Office.  No new additional revenue was certified for these 
packages for FY 09. 
 
5.  Counseling and Education Services Administrative Staffing 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes ongoing funding of $36,175 for one new office 
specialist and $26,349 in additional funds for a temporary, part-time office specialist.  
These positions will allow the office to reorganize their Alcohol and Drug Assessment 
Program.  Currently the counselors handle many administrative functions such as 
scheduling.  This will now be handled by office specialists. By allowing the counselors 
more time to perform assessments, the addition of this administrative support is 
expected to generate $62,524 in new revenue. 
  
In addition, Commissioners Court approved a $2 surcharge to all of CES's education 
classes.  The additional revenue generated of $7,885 will be added to the Crime Victims 
Fund. The department expects that this addition can help 240 more victims of crime by 
increasing the department’s victim service contracts with outside organizations. 
 
6.  Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) 
 
Emergency Services received approval to rebudget into FY 08 funding received from 
CAPCOG in FY 07.  Emergency Services has again requested that CAPCOG funds be 
rebudgeted to the next fiscal year.  The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $205,000 for 
this purpose.  The funds will be used to reimburse and fund eligible expenditures 
associated with the design of a 9-1-1 system and/or purchase and maintain equipment 
and personnel necessary to establish and operate answering points and related 
operations in Travis County.  A portion of the funds may be allocated to other entities 
within Travis County that have qualifying expenditures. 
 
7.  Star Flight Business Plan 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $1,251,074 in one-time and ongoing operating funding 
to support the Star Flight Business Plan, approved by Commissioners Court on July 1, 
2008. This initiative is a pilot program meant to verify the department's strategic plans to 
go forward with a third helicopter and accompanying staff to manage the program’s 
growth in Central Texas.  The business plan requests comprise: $507,734 for three 
additional Pilots, one Mechanic and one Administrative Associate; a $16,807 reduction 
in associated pilot overtime; $439,334 for two Flight Nurses and two Flight Paramedics; 
$302,160 for Aircraft Fuel; $16,553 for medical equipment; and $2,100 for IT expenses.  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

14  Executive Summary 

The Auditor's Amended Third Revenue Estimate includes FY 09 revenues of 
$2,306,529 associated with this pilot program. 
 
8.  Underage Drinking Prevention Program Grant Match 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $18,115 in one-time funding for a cash match for a 
long-standing Travis County grant program.  The Underage Drinking Prevention 
Program is an education and outreach program aimed at junior high and high school 
kids.  The program is administered by the County Attorney’s Office. 
 
H.  Justice of the Peace Records Cleanup 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $285,421 for the continuation of electronic case data in 
Justice of the Peace Precincts 1, 4, and 5.  The case cleanup is needed to: (1) continue 
to prepare cases to be sent to Central Collections and from there to the Third Party 
Vendor, if necessary; and (2) to ensure that a future conversion to a new system can 
occur with as few computer glitches as possible.  For FY 09, the conversion to the Fully 
Automated Court Tracking System (FACTS) for the JPs has been reprioritized.  Instead, 
ITS will focus on replacing the Unisys servers and transferring the case data to new 
servers to avoid a catastrophic system failure in the existing legacy system. 
 
I.  Pilot Programs 
 
The Commissioners Court has established three priority program areas towards which it 
wishes to direct resources:  (1) reducing adult jail and juvenile detention populations, 
with special attention toward inmates with mental illness, (2) substance abuse, and (3) 
workforce development (adult training and new jobs).  The first five programs listed 
below are funded in the Preliminary Budget and address these three program areas. 
 
1.  The Children’s Partnership/TRIAD 
 
The continuation of one-time funding of $165,000 is recommended in the FY 09 
Preliminary Budget to support youth with significant mental health challenges and their 
families. These programs have been funded with one-time resources since FY 05.  
These services include residential services, traditional mental health services such as 
assessments/evaluations, therapy, medication and non-traditional services such as 
respite, parent coaching, mentoring, enrichment and basic needs. This funding is the 
payer of last resort and is used when no other funding source can be identified and/or 
accessed. Travis County continues to see an increase in the number of youth served by 
these programs.  These combined programs served 354 children in FY 07 and are 
projected to serve 470 in FY 08 with similar projected needs for FY 09. 
 
2.  Workforce Investment Programs 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $100,000 in one-time funding to continue a pilot 
project begun in FY 07.  This pilot has been an expansion of existing County workforce 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  15 

development (WFD) program and includes $60,000 to expand the Rapid Employment 
Model, $30,000 to increase capacity in Capital IDEA to establish a long-term approach 
(12-30 months) to lead participants from un-employment or under employment to high 
wage careers, and $10,000 to support outcome and impact evaluation of an REM pilot 
and other local WFD services.  The $100,000 investment serves 25 clients.  An 
independent evaluation of the program is being conducted and the results will help 
inform the Commissioners Court’s funding decision in FY 10.   
 
3.  HHS Mobile Crisis Outreach Team 
 
The Mobile Crisis Outreach Team (MCOT) provides emergency and urgent psychiatric 
crisis outreach and follow-up by traveling to locations and evaluating adults and youth 
who cannot or will not access traditional psychiatric emergency room care.  The 
program, first funded as a pilot project in FY 07 works with this targeted population as 
well as those for whom detention is not warranted or for whom emergency detention 
has not become necessary.  Other Texas Counties have implemented similar programs 
and have found this type of mental health outreach has reduced psychiatric 
hospitalization and detention of this targeted population.  This program is part of a larger 
plan currently being implemented by key mental health stakeholders to address 
emergency mental health services in the Austin-Travis County area.  The program was 
originally solely funded by Travis County to operate 10 hours per day, four days per 
week.  The State has awarded the Mental Health and Mental Retardation (MHMR) 
Department funding so the program can now operate 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week.  The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes the continuation of $400,000 in one-time 
funding for another year of operation. 
 
4.  Travis County After School Program 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $220,000 in one-time funds to continue the pilot After 
School programs at Gus Garcia Middle School and the Ann Richards School for Young 
Women Leaders. These two pilot programs have been added to the Travis County 
Collaborative After School Project (TCCAP) that also provides ongoing after school 
education opportunities at Webb and Pierce Middle Schools.  The program serves 
students that are considered low income and high need.  The lead agency is the Austin 
Independent School District.  The FY 08 Adopted Budget includes the first year one-
time funding to expand these services to Gus Garcia Middle School, and students 
attending the Ann Richards School for Young Women Leaders.  Many students from 
these two new schools are transfers from Webb and Pearce.  The program was 
requested to promote a continuity of services to be delivered in this high need 
community.   
 
5.  Cash Match for Parenting in Recovery Program 
 
On October 1st, 2007, Travis County was awarded a federal grant by the US 
Department of Health and Human Services - Administration for Family and Children.  
The grant award is $500,000 per year for five years, totaling $2.5 million.  The grant 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

16  Executive Summary 

project, Parenting in Recovery (PIR), will provide a flexible, comprehensive continuum 
of services for children and parents who are involved in the child welfare system as a 
result of parental substance dependence. Objectives of Parenting in Recovery (PIR) are 
to: (1) provide cross-systems training for child welfare and substance abuse counselors 
to promote more effective collaboration and treatment planning and increase ability to 
serve families with substance dependency and child welfare involvement; (2) 
preclude/decrease the number of out-of-home placements for children of mothers with 
substance dependency; and (3) increase the safety and wellbeing of children of 
substance dependent mothers by reducing risks factors and increasing protective 
factors for child maltreatment. 
  
FY 09 will be the second year of the grant and will require a grant match of $88,000 
through a combination of cash and in-kind matches. The Preliminary Budget includes 
$75,030 for the FY 09 cash match for the Parenting in Recovery Grant, with the 
remaining $12,970 of the match to be covered by in-kind services from grant partners.    
 
6.  Pretrial Services Electronic Monitoring Programs 
 
PBO is recommending one-time funding of $80,783 plus $6,920 in associated IT 
equipment for the addition of two FTE to support the Pretrial Services Electronic 
Monitoring (EM) Unit.  The two FTE will allow the department to monitor defendants 
assigned to comply with pretrial release conditions of three electronic monitoring 
programs.  The programs include the Secure Continuous Remote Alcohol Monitor 
(SCRAM) and Mitsubishi Electronic Monitoring System (MEMS) programs used to 
monitor defendants who are prohibited from consuming alcohol during their pretrial 
release and Global Positioning System (GPS) monitoring program used to monitor 
defendants with serious offenses, sometimes involving violence against persons on a 
real-time basis.  This program is projected to produce savings from avoided out of 
county jail housing costs in FY 09 estimated at $93,136. 
 
An additional $9,433 in one-time funding is included in the FY 09 Preliminary Budget for 
a pilot project to provide on-call coverage of all Electronic Monitoring Programs four 
days per week. 
 
7.  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Planner 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $36,064 in one-time resources to continue the second 
CDBG Planner for FY 09.  The first CDBG Planner position has been funded on an 
ongoing basis since FY 08 and both have been authorized since FY 06 to administer 
the grant program.  The additional cost of the second Planner is $61,065 less a $25,000 
internal reallocation from CDBG General Fund operating expenses.  The operating 
expenses for CDBG for next year will be budgeted directly in the grant budget, which 
has allowed the reallocation of the General Fund resources toward the FTE request.  
Since the position is in the FY 08 budget, continuing the position for FY 09 will not 
impact the FTE count for the department. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  17 

8.  Civil Court Clerk for Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $43,604 in one-time resources for a special project 
temporary Civil Court Clerk for the Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5.  In 2008, Justice Courts’ 
civil jurisdiction was increased from a $5,000 maximum to a $10,000 maximum.  This 
office is projecting an increase in civil case filings of almost 100% from FY 06 to FY 08.  
The one-time resources will provide the office temporary help to deal with the increased 
workload and time to evaluate whether the increased workload is a one-time spike or 
whether it represents a higher baseline. 
 
9.  Warrant Workload Deputies for Constable, Pct. 5 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes one-time funding of $126,455 for two new Deputy 
Constables in the Constable, Pct. 5 Office to support the warrant workload that will 
result from the Warrant Court Clerk in JP5.  This package is not supported by new 
revenue and will be re-evaluated for FY 10. 
 
J.  Interlocal Agreements 
 
1.  Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Ground and Air Contracts 
 
The EMS FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $400,000 in ongoing operating and 
$500,000 in capital funding to maintain current levels of effort for EMS Air (Star Flight) 
and EMS Ground, two interlocal agreements with the City of Austin.  These amounts 
are estimates given that the county and city are still negotiating the contracts and the 
city has granted EMS staff meet and confer authority. 
 
These increases center on escalations in fuel costs, capital replacement, health and 
other personnel benefits.  Vehicle replacements total $500,000 in capital for two 
ambulances and two EMS command vehicles. 
 
2.  City of Austin (COA) Public Health Interlocal 
 
The City of Austin has proposed the interlocal cost for FY 09 to be $2,631,470, which is 
a $336,413 increase compared to the current budget.  The City has stated the increase 
is the result of increases such as gasoline and health insurance and an increase in the 
Travis County population outside of the City from 25.95% to 26.93%.   PBO currently 
recommends $42,330 in additional resources for the FY 09 Public Health Interlocal.  
This consists of $36,871 budgeted directly in the department and $5,459 in the 
compensation reserve for County direct staff under the agreement.  This assumes a 
3.85% compensation increase for County direct staff based on recent discussions with 
the City.  PBO notes that the recommended amount for FY 09 is subject to modification 
based on the ongoing discussion between County and City representatives.   
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

18  Executive Summary 

3.  Other Interlocal Agreement Increases 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes an additional $18,943 in ongoing resources for the 
Texas AgriLife Extension Interlocal in the Cooperative Extension Services.  This 
increase is for the county’s portion of the program’s Extension Agent salaries.  In 
addition, the District Attorney’s Office interlocal agreement with the Center for Child 
Protection includes a one-time increase of $30,836 to cover expenditures formerly 
included in the Family Protection Fund (Fund 058) which saw a decrease in resources 
for FY 09 of this same amount.  Finally, Preliminary Budget includes $61,727 in ongoing 
resources for the Emergency Services Department’s Combined Transportation, 
Emergency and Communications Center (CTECC) and Regional Radio System (RRS) 
Cooperative Program.  These funds will pay for escalation costs in a Motorola contract. 
 
K.  Security 
 
1.  General Fund Transfer to Courthouse Security Fund for Sheriff’s Office 
Security Staffing 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes an increase to the General Fund transfer to the 
Courthouse Security Fund of $294,043 to fund expenditure increases for the Central 
Command Security Sergeant at $67,689 and two Certified Peace Officers for the new 
County Court-at-Law #8 at $85,753 discussed earlier in this document.  The remainder 
of the transfer of $140,601 is necessary to balance the expenditures in the Courthouse 
Security Fund to the Auditor’s Amended Third Revenue Estimate. 
 
The County Security Committee recommended the Central Command Security 
Sergeant be funded to improve the Sergeant to Officer supervisory ratio from 1:30 to 
1:16 after the addition of Officers for the County Court-at-Law #8 (described earlier).  A 
small portion of the cost of this position, $1,880 in one-time resources and $1,037 in 
ongoing resources, is funded in the General Fund.   
 
2.  Building Security Guard for Post Road 
 
One new Building Security Guard was added to the Facilities Management Department 
budget for a total of $33,705 in ongoing personnel costs.  This position will provide 
security services at the HHS offices at the county’s Post Road facility.  This position was 
recommended by the County Security Committee. 
 
L.  PBO Changes 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes a net decrease of $275,873 for a variety of small 
changes to budgets.  Two changes totaling $214,640 merit further discussion. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  19 

1.  Fund Switches for HHS Programs 
 
A total of $173,040 was moved from the Health and Human Services General Fund 
budget to the Health Food Permits Fund (Fund 68) and the Corporations budgets.  A 
total of $73,040 of General Fund expense related to the public health interlocal was 
moved to a special revenue fund established per statutory requirement to connect these 
expenditures with the related revenue.  Funding for a Southwest Key construction 
project totaling $100,000 was moved to a Travis County Corporation budget.  While 
budgets for these projects were moved, the expense will continue to occur outside of 
the General Fund. 
 
2.  District Clerk’s Jury Pay Budget 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes a decrease of $41,600 to the jury pay line items in the 
District Clerk’s budget.  The jury pay line items pay jurors for jury service.  With the 
continued success of I-Jury, a web-based jury summoning and impanelment program, 
fewer potential jurors have to report to the Courthouse for the impanelment process.  
This results in a reduction in the amount of pay needed for jury impanelment.  This 
decrease is an effort to rightsize this budget. 
 
3.  Other PBO Changes 
 
A net total of $61,233 in other PBO Changes is included in the Preliminary Budget.  
These include decreases to the budget due to various departments submitting their 
proposed budgets below the target budget level, PBO corrections for changes in 
longevity pay, changes to the General Fund transfers to other funds, and other minor 
PBO corrections to department’s proposed budgets. 
 
M.  Other 
 
1  Intergovernmental Relations Staffing 
 
In July 2008, Commissioners Court approved the creation of a new position to serve as 
an Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator for the Court.  The FY 09 Preliminary 
Budget includes $91,901 for salaries and benefits.  The new staff member will 
collaborate with other governmental (local, state and federal) and quasi-governmental 
organizations to pursue various goals and initiative of Travis County.  No operating or 
capital funds have been approved by Commissioners Court for this position.  An 
Earmark on Allocated Reserve of $62,203 is included for a support position, operating, 
and related capital.  In addition, Commissioners Court approved $11,856 for salaries 
and $2,800 for operating expenses for the continuation of a part-time Special Assistant 
to Commissioners Court position that was approved midyear in FY 08. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

20  Executive Summary 

2.  New Financial System 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes $231,040 in one-time funding for expenses 
related to the Request For Proposal (RFP) process for the New Financial System.  The 
project is currently in the needs analysis and requirements gathering phase but will 
move into the RFP and vendor selection phase in FY 2009. 

The funding will be used to acquire outside expert advice and services related to the 
RFP process as well as the subsequent contracting with selected vendor(s).  In 
addition, the funding will cover travel expenses during the vendor selection portion of 
the RFP process and services related to setting up a new chart of accounts.   
 
3.  Salary Adjustment Funding for Auditor’s Office 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $298,287 in additional funding for partial market 
adjustments for staff in the Auditor’s Office as requested by the County Auditor and by 
Local Administrative Judge John K. Dietz in a letter dated July 25, 2008. 
 
4.  Tax Office Voter Registration Staffing 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $47,657 in one-time resources to fund a Data 
Specialist position for the Voter Registration Division.  A new mandate from the 
Secretary of State's Office requires data imports from the Department of Public Safety 
to be verified on a daily basis. This position will handle these daily downloads to be 
compliant with state mandates and allow current employees to return to their original 
duties.  
 
5.  Stormwater Management Plan Staffing 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes $43,199 in ongoing resources and $1,070 in one-time 
resources for one Engineering Inspector Specialist to help implement the County’s 
SWMP mandated by the Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES) 
General Permit TXR040000 for stormwater discharges from Small Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) in 2007. 
 
6.  Other Increases 
 
The Preliminary Budget includes funding spread among three departments totaling 
$89,261 for a historical survey, the restoration of operating funding, web development 
services for the Civil Courts, and to implement a court operations officers plan. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  21 

V.  WORKFORCE INVESTMENT 
 
A.  Background and History 
 
Each year, the Commissioners Court determines whether there are resources to fund a 
variety of employee pay adjustments. Since FY 97, there have been only two years 
when no compensation increases were available and one year when 1.5% was 
available. Every other year, at least a 3% compensation increase has been funded.  In 
addition to performance based pay awards, the Commissioners Court has also funded 
scheduled increases to employees within the Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS), along 
with increases to POPS itself, special augmentations for skill based pay and targeted 
increases for Sheriff’s Law Enforcement employees over multiple years. 
 
The economic circumstances in FY 08 allowed for relatively substantial compensation 
increases and the Commissioners Court adopted a 3.5% Cost of Living Adjustment 
(COLA) for all rank and file employees. Those employees earning less than $30,000 per 
year were guaranteed a $1,050 minimum increase (equal to 3.5% of $30,000).  The 
Court appropriated another 2% for performance-based awards, market adjustments, 
salary compression issues, and other compensation needs.  In addition to the amounts 
listed above, Commissioners Court funded a market salary study for certain job titles 
that were paid below market (e.g., attorney, public safety and emergency management, 
social services, engineering and support services, planning, management and research, 
and purchasing job titles).  The total county increase in investment in rank and file 
employees was $10,291,105 in FY 08.  In addition, Commissioners Court funded an 
additional $8,300,896 for various peace officer pay increases including an 11.5% 
average increase for the Sheriff’s Office POPS, a 7.5% increase for Deputy Constables, 
and a 5.5% increase for Park Rangers and Investigators.  The total compensation 
increases last year were $18,592,001. 
 
B.  Compensation Reserve 
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes a Compensation Reserve of $5,745,897.  This 
reserve includes funding for a 3% Cost of Living Adjustment for rank and file 
employees, the anniversary step increase for personnel on POPS, partial funding for the 
FY 08 Market Salary Survey, a 3.5% maximum salary increase for non-judicial elected 
officials, and STARFlight pay for performance (a contractual obligation).   
 

FY 09 Compensation Reserve 
Category Amount 
Rank and File at 3.0%  $4,565,567 
POPS Step Increase $575,980 
Market Salary Survey $500,000 
Elected Officials Salaries at 3.5% $63,924 
Star Flight pay for performance $40,426 
Total $5,745,897 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

22  Executive Summary 

 
The reserve includes funding for salary and related benefits increases in the form of a 
COLA for rank and file employees.  The anniversary step increase is part of the Court-
approved policy for POPS.   
 
Commissioners Court is proposing to increase elected officials’ salaries (except the 
judiciary) by a maximum of 3.5% in FY 09.  The final salaries will not be set until after 
the Preliminary Budget is filed and could be lower than this ceiling.  The Compensation 
Reserve includes $63,924 for the proposed 3.5% increase for elected officials.  Judicial 
salaries have been indexed to District Judges’ salaries.  The state will hold these 
salaries at the same amount FY 09.  As a result, the FY 09 Preliminary Budget does not 
contain resources for salary increases for the Judiciary (District and County Court-at-
Law Judges, Probate Judge, Associate Judges, and Justices of the Peace). 
 
Finally, the Compensation Reserve includes funding to match county Star Flight 
personnel compensation to that of the City of Austin’s (COA) EMS employees.  This 
increase is a contractual obligation and is based on the compensation increase being 
proposed by the COA.  If the COA compensation increase changes after the Preliminary 
Budget, the county portion will also change to match the revised COA amount. 
 
The results of the FY 08 Market Salary Survey have recently been shared with 
Commissioners Court.  The job families included in the survey are:  Courts; Senior and 
Middle Management; Professional Support; Training, Education and Instruction; 
Reproduction; Public Information; Human Resources; Information Technology; and 
Special Project Elections.  The results of that survey have a projected cost of $2.5 
million.  The Compensation Reserve currently includes only $500,000 of that amount.  
 
As in previous years, Commissioners Court may choose to allocate the funding in the 
Compensation Reserve in a different manner to address COLA, performance-based 
pay, the results of the salary survey, compa-ratio considerations, and other 
compensation issues. 
 
C.  Midyear Increase in Maintenance Worker Compensation ($2/Hour) 
 
Midyear in FY 08, Commissioners Court approved a $2 per hour increase in the salaries 
of all Maintenance Worker job titles.  This affected staff in four departments, Facilities 
Management, Sheriff’s Office, Juvenile Probation, and Transportation and Natural 
Resources.  The cost of this increase to the General Fund in the FY 09 Preliminary 
Budget is $849,370. 
 
D.  Career Ladders  
 
A total of $312,322 is included in the FY 09 Preliminary Budget for career ladder 
increases for staff in Juvenile Probation Department, Pretrial Services, the Counseling 
Center, the County Attorney’s Office, and the Auditor’s Office.  Career ladders serve as 
a tool for employee retention and career advancement and are used for limited job titles. 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  23 

 
E.  Salary Savings  
 
The Preliminary Budget includes a variety of modifications to departmental salary 
savings budgets.  The salary savings budget for a department is a negative (contra) 
account that is established to allow the county to capture the personnel savings related 
to vacancies that occur throughout the year.  In FY 09, the salary savings accounts of 
several departments are increased (made more negative) based on an analysis of 
historical salary savings in those departments.  The contra account is being increased 
by $655,952 in FY 09.  This increase to the departments’ negative accounts then frees 
up resources that are used in other areas of the Preliminary Budget. 
 
F.  Health Benefits 
 
Travis County began a self-insured health benefits plan in FY 02. Under a self-insured 
program, the actual insurance claims made by employees are paid directly from County 
resources with an insurance carrier hired to administer claims processing. The primary 
benefits from being self-insured are that the plan can provide a better level of benefits 
for employees and provide more control over increasing health premiums for the 
County. Despite this control, self-insurance does not necessarily reduce overall health 
care expenses. 
 
During Spring 2007, an Employee Benefits Committee, in close coordination with the 
County’s external actuary, reviewed various options, costs, and affordability of different 
plans for FY 08.  For the first time in many years, Travis County’s health costs have 
begun to stabilize, although health costs for retirees under 65 years of age continue to 
be a concern for FY 08 and beyond. The Commissioners Court voted to continue the 
current three-option plan, which allows employees to choose medical benefits in 
accordance with their medical needs, financial means, and family situations. The basic 
benefits level of the various health plans was not modified. 
 
The Commissioners Court approved in May 2008 the health insurance rates for FY 09.  
The rates for regular employees and retirees are unchanged from FY 08.  For FY 09, 
the proposed County composite contribution rate will again be $629 per month per 
regular employee, $1,170 per month per retiree under age 65, and $339 per month per 
retiree over 65.  These are the same as the actuarially determined contribution rates for 
FY 08.  However, the county’s retiree contribution will be funded from the Allocated 
Reserve of the Employee Health Fund.    
 
PBO has worked with HRMD and the Auditor’s Office concerning the size of the 
Allocated Reserve of the Employee Health Fund.  The outside auditor and the County’s 
actuary have both expressed that the reserve is larger than needed.  Two actions that 
have been implemented to reduce the size of the Employee Health Benefits Fund 
Allocated Reserve include stopping the transfer of savings from General Fund vacant 
positions to the Employee Health Benefits Fund in FY 06 and the deferral of further 
General Fund transfers for the full County contribution for retiree health for the majority 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

24  Executive Summary 

of FY 07 and all FY 08 and FY 09.  The $4,892,724 budgeted for the County’s 
contribution for retirees in the HRMD General Fund Budget will not be needed in FY 09 
as the reserve will cover this contribution. 
 
As summarized below, the Employee Health Benefits Fund was established in FY 02 at 
$18.3 million and has grown to $68 million for the FY 09 Preliminary Budget.  The 
Auditor’s Amended Third Revenue Estimate includes a beginning balance in this fund of 
$31,000,000, plus $35,970,697 in premium income, and $1,170,000 in interest and 
rebate income for a total of $68,140,697.  The Allocated Reserve for the fund is 
$22,922,454, which is $7,325,150 less than the FY 08 Allocated Reserve, primarily the 
result of actions to reduce the Reserve in a planned manner discussed earlier.  The 
totals in the Employees Health Benefit Fund will be updated after open enrollment for 
FY 09 with any changes incorporated into the Adopted Budget. 
 

Employee Health Benefits Fund – FY 02 to FY 09 
 

Fiscal Year Size of Employee 
Health Benefits Fund 

FY 02 $18,334,435
FY 03 $22,162,255
FY 04 $31,585,857
FY 05 $38,342,713
FY 06 $48,807,721
FY 07 $64,424,670
FY 08 $70,683,196

FY 09 (3rd Rev. Est.) $68,140,697
 
G.  Additional Risk Management Fund Reductions 
  
HRMD, the County Auditor’s Office, and PBO met to review resources needed for the 
Risk Management Fund for FY 09 and determined the General Fund contribution to the 
fund could be reduced by an additional $1,000,0000.  This is in addition to planned 
reductions that have been made the last few years.  As a part of the FY 07 budget 
process, PBO worked with HRMD and the Auditor’s Office to reduce the ongoing 
revenue from the General Fund to the Risk Management Fund by $1.2 million per year 
for four years to reduce the Allocated Reserve of the Fund by $4.8 million since the 
fund’s balance continued to increase.  FY 09 will be the third year of this four-year 
planned reduction in the Allocated Reserve.based on resources needed in the fund.  
The total planned reduction is $1.3 million for FY 09.  The additional one-time 
$1,000,000 reduction for FY 09 will be restored in the HRMD General Fund target for 
FY 10. 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  25 

VI.  DEBT POLICY   
 
The Commissioners Court has established a debt limitation policy that is intended to 
maintain a prudent approach toward the issuance of debt.  Among other things, this 
policy indicates that the Commissioners Court will not issue long-term debt (i.e., with a 
repayment period in excess of five years) without the approval of such a bond issue by 
the voters through an election, except under the following circumstances: 
 
1. The expenditure is legally required of the County, where penalties or fines could be 

imposed on the County if the expenditure is not made. Or, 
2. When a financial analysis demonstrates that during a stipulated term Travis County 

would spend significantly less. Or, 
3. The voters have previously approved the issuance of general obligation bonds but, 

for valid reasons, certificates of obligation must be substituted for such bonds in 
order to carry out the voters' authorization. Or,  

4. When the expense is for necessary planning services or acquiring options for a 
future capital project that will be submitted to the voters. 

 
VII.  CAPITAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
A total of $39,983,936 in capital funding is included in the FY 09 Preliminary Budget 
from the following basic sources - the General Fund Capital Acquisition Resources 
(CAR) account totals $9,387,481 (including a $614,006 Reserve amount), debt from 
new Certificates of Obligation of $16,885,000 (including issuance costs of $87,549), 
other funds capital of $426,455, and debt from long-term bonds authorized by the voters 
in 2005 of $13,685,000. 
 
As is the case with ongoing expenditures, the County is facing financial constraints on 
the availability of resources for capital expenditures. The Preliminary Budget addresses 
these limitations by including those capital projects and equipment for funding that meet 
the following criteria: 
 

 Projects either in the middle or end of their multi-year phased implementation 
(Precinct 2 Office Building 1st Floor Renovation, Design and Construction of Pct. 1 
Office Building); 

 Projects where there is little choice but to fund them for health and safety purposes 
or to avoid future expenses that would be greater (e.g., roof replacement at the 
Travis County Jail or the upgrade to the fire alarm system at the Executive Office 
Building); 

 Equipment that continues the maintenance of County-wide information systems 
infrastructure;   

 Projects which have already been partially funded by the Commissioners Court or 
have a contractual obligation to implement; 

 Projects which have revenue certified to cover their cost; or  
 Projects that the Court has already provided directions to include for funding.  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

26  Executive Summary 

This year, PBO has asked departments to prioritize equipment which needs 
replacement and is part of a replacement plan, (such as personal computers or 
vehicles).  As such, not all personal computers or vehicles that met the replacement 
guidelines are included in the FY 09 Preliminary Budget.  Those that could reasonably 
be deferred have been. 
 
A.  General Fund Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) Account 
 
The General Fund Capital Acquisition 
Resources (CAR) account is used to 
fund capital equipment and facilities. 
This account has been quite variable 
over the years, driven by economic 
circumstances, capital needs, and 
other sources and constraints on debt 
financing. In the last 10 years, it has 
ranged from a low of $6.5 million in FY 
03 to a high of $23.0 million in FY 08.  
 
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget 
establishes the CAR account at 
$9,387,481, which is over $13 million 
lower than in FY 08. This amount includes a Reserve of $614,006 and expenditures of 
$8,773,475. The total amount also excludes any CAR resources appropriated in FY 08 
and proposed to be rebudgeted in FY 09 since a complete list of such resources had 
not been identified, analyzed or recommended by the time the Preliminary Budget was 
filed.  
 
Rebudgeted CAR projects represent capital that was approved and funded in FY 08 but 
is not anticipated to be encumbered or expended prior to the end of the fiscal year and 
yet will still be needed in FY 09. As in previous years, PBO has included an incomplete 
list of FY 08 CAR funded capital requested by departments to be rebudgeted as part of 
their budget submission in Appendix I. A complete list of such rebudgeted projects will 
be provided to the Commissioners Court in September as part of the budget process. 
 
The list of CAR-funded items or facility projects included in the FY 09 Preliminary 
Budget is located in Appendix I. 
 
B.  Other Funds  
 
In addition to the resources provided through the General Fund Capital Acquisition 
Resources (CAR) account, other special funds have a total of $426,455 for various 
capital needs. These funds include the County Clerk Records Management Fund and 
Archival Fund, the Law Library Fund, the Justice Court Technology Fund and others.  
The list of projects and equipment budgeted in these funds is located in Appendix I. 
 

$7.7
$9.7

$12.1

$6.5

$10.8
$9.1 $8.9

$16.6

$23.0

$9.4

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Millions

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Capital Acquisition Resources Account 
FY 2000 - FY 2009

Source:  Travis County Adopted Budgets & FY 09 Preliminary Budget

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  27 

C.  Debt Financing 
 
The last of the three funding sources for capital equipment and projects is debt, either 
issued in the form of Bonds or Certificates of Obligation.  
 
1.  Previous Bond Authorizations 
 
Since 2000, there have been three separate bond authorizations that voters have 
approved, as outlined below.  

 
a.  November 2000 Bond Authorization 
 
In November 2000, voters authorized the Commissioners Court to issue $28 million in 
General Obligation bonds.  Only $2 million of authorization remains.  The remaining 
authorization for the US Highway 290 West road project is not scheduled to be issued in 
FY 09.  The county’s Transportation and Natural Resources Department is closely 
coordinating with the state on this project. 
 
b.  November 2001 Bond Authorization 
 
In November 2001, voters authorized the Commissioners Court to issue $184,955,000 
in General Obligation bonds.  Through FY 08, $182,565,000 of the authorization has 
been issued for approved projects.  Of the $2,390,000 in remaining authorization: 
 
● $200,000 (Proposition 2: County park projects) – this amount will not be issued as 
savings from an existing Certificate of Obligation were used instead of this 
authorization. 
● $2,190,000 (Proposition 1: Local roads, drainage, bridges and pedestrian access) – 
this amount is considered projected savings due to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Obligation in 2006 in lieu of the road bonds for the implementation of the Flint Rock road 
project. 
 
c.  November 2005 Bond Authorization 

 
A citizens committee was established during FY 05 by the Commissioners Court to 
provide advice and counsel on a bond election in November, 2005. A total of 
$150,875,000 in roads, parks, and jail projects was submitted to the voters in three 
separate propositions, with all three passing. The table below shows the amount of the 
original authorization and how much is scheduled to be issued in FY 09. 

Project 
Original 

Authorization 
Issued 

Through  08 
Proposed  

Issuance in 09 
Remaining 

Authorization 
Prop. 1: Roads, road-related 
drainage, right-of-way $65,225,000 $50,870,000 $6,980,000 $7,375,000
Prop. 2: Parks and open space 
parkland  62,150,000 42,275,000 6,705,000 $13,170,000
Prop. 3: Jail facility replacement 
beds and renovations 23,500,000 23,500,000 0 0
Total - November 2005 Bonds $150,875,000 $116,645,000 $13,685,000 $20,545,000

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

28  Executive Summary 

 2.  FY 09 Certificates of Obligation 
 
The amount of total debt proposed to be issued through Certificates of Obligation (COs) 
in FY 09 is $16,885,000. This includes long-term COs related to the Jail Project of $1.1 
million as well as $15.7 million in projects appropriate for short-term debt financing. 
Issuance costs are also included in the total at an estimated amount of $87,549. The 
projects and equipment funded from Certificates of Obligation are listed in Appendix I.  
 
VIII. RESERVES 
 
There are three types of regularly budgeted reserves:  (A) Unallocated Reserve, (B) 
Allocated Reserve, and (C) Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) Account Reserve.  
There are also special departmental and countywide reserves established for a special 
purpose that do not necessarily remain in the budget from year-to-year. 
 
A. Unallocated Reserve  
 
The Unallocated Reserve is established as a buffer in case of a disaster or dire 
emergency.  It is not dedicated for any specific expenditure and is sometimes called 
“the untouchable reserve.”  The level of this reserve demonstrates the county’s fiscal 
soundness and influences the county’s bond rating. 
 
The county’s bond and financial advisors have recommended that the county maintain 
an Unallocated Reserve level of between 8% and 12% for sound financial management.   
The Commissioners Court’s Financial and Budgeting Guidelines state the county’s goal 
for this reserve as between 10% and 12%.  Since 1989 the Commissioners Court has 
maintained the Unallocated Reserve ratio at 11.0%.  The total FY 09 General Fund 
Unallocated Reserve in the Preliminary Budget is $40,091,458. 
 
The Unallocated Reserve ratio calculation is based on budgeted expenditures 
(excluding transfers) in three funds: the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Road 
and Bridge Fund.  Since FY 00, the General Fund Unallocated Reserve carries the 
majority of the unallocated reserve requirements for the Road and Bridge Fund.  In 
addition, the transfers from the General Fund to the BCP Fund and the transfer from the 
Road and Bridge Fund to the General Fund have been removed from the base for 
calculating the Unallocated Reserve. 
 
The historical reserve ratios (per Standard and Poor’s formula) showing the relationship 
between the Unallocated Reserve for the General Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, and 
Debt Service Fund and the adjusted expenses for these funds are contained in tables in 
Appendix I. 
 
B.  Allocated Reserve  
 
The Allocated Reserve is dedicated to known or potential expenditures, and some or all 
of the reserve is likely to be spent during the year. There are potential claims against 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  29 

this Allocated Reserve. These potential claims are called “Earmarks” and are signals to 
the Commissioners Court that a department may have a justified need for a mid-year 
transfer of resources to their budget for a specific purpose. The Earmarks are not 
appropriations and departments should not consider them as departmental resources. 
These Earmarks total $1,751,838. A listing and summary of these proposed Earmarks 
against the Allocated Reserve is provided in Appendix I. 
  
The FY 09 Preliminary Budget includes an Allocated Reserve of $4 million which is 
slightly greater than the reserve level in FY 08 of $3,615,763. The total of this reserve 
represents 0.91% of the General Fund. 
 

C.  Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) Account Reserve 
 
The Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) Account Reserve is similar to the Allocated 
Reserve, but is instead used for one-time expenditures for capital items. It funds 
additional capital purchases or projects that are developed during the year or pays for 
cost increases in already approved capital projects. The Preliminary Budget includes a 
CAR reserve of $514,598. The Earmarks against this reserve total $125,000, as 
outlined in Appendix I.  
 
D.  Special Purpose Reserves  
 
1.  Annualization Reserve 
 
An Annualization Reserve totaling $2,084,478 is included in the Preliminary Budget. It 
contains the resources necessary to fund programs or initiatives that will be operational 
for less than 12 months in FY 09. This budget technique will avoid a “ratchet” of 
expenses in FY 10 when a full twelve months of funding will be necessary. Sometimes 
new positions begin after the beginning of the fiscal year, whether for programmatic 
reasons or due to space constraints. In addition, departments that receive a new 
position typically do not fill it for a few months, since posting, recruiting and selection 
processes take some time.  
 
To recognize this phenomenon, most new positions added in this Preliminary Budget 
include nine months of funding provided inside the department and three months of 
funding in this Annualization Reserve, with the exception of 31.5 new positions related 
to opening Building 12 at the Travis County Correctional Complex (TCCC). The 
resources in this reserve will be available in the event that departments are able to fill 
positions more quickly and their budgets cannot absorb the difference.  

 
Department FY 10 Purpose Amount 

Sheriff’s Office 31.5 positions for TCCC Building 12 $1,160,708
Sheriff’s Office Utilities for Building 12 468,000
Sheriff’s Office County Court-at-Law #8 Staff 36,468
Juvenile Probation Detention Buildout 406,685
TNR Stormwater Management Plan Staffing 12,617
Total  $2,084,478

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET   TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

30  Executive Summary 

2.  Fuel and Utilities Reserve 
 
A Reserve for expected fuel and utilities increases in the amount of $1,108,121 in 
ongoing resources is included in the Preliminary Budget.  This Reserve includes 
$493,121 for expected fuel cost increases as described earlier in this document and 
$615,000 for the projected opening of Building 12 at the Travis County Correctional 
Complex in June 2009.  The building will be substantially complete in March 2009.  This 
utility reserve includes utility costs for the period from March to June when the Building 
12 systems will be tested. 
 
3.  Legally Mandated Attorney’s Fees 
 
PBO is also recommending a $200,000 Reserve for Civil Courts Legally Mandated 
Attorney’s Fees.  The details of this reserve are discussed earlier in this document.  In 
effect, the Reserve will allow Commissioners Court to weigh the programmatic as well 
as budgetary costs and benefits of three competing requests submitted by the Civil 
Courts with the department. 
 
5.  Central Campus Redevelopment Planning Reserve 
 
The Commissioners Court has committed to develop a comprehensive plan for the 
redevelopment of the central government campus.  The FY 09 Preliminary Budget 
includes a $700,000 Planning Reserve that will be used to hire a consultant to develop 
such a plan.  Because the ITS Data Center is located in the downtown redevelopment 
area and its future will be an important part of any redevelopment plan, consulting 
services to plan for the data center’s near-term/long-term requirements are included in 
the Planning Reserve. 
 
IX.  PROPERTY TAX RATE 
 
The total taxable value for all Travis County property has seen an increase from $85.10 
billion in the FY 08 Adopted Budget to $95.27 billion for FY 09. This is the final amount 
certified by the Travis Central Appraisal District (TCAD). The following data, as well as 
the overall Preliminary Budget, is based on expected TCAD certified values. 
 
The new property value totals $3.16 billion (excluding new construction value included 
in the Samsung and Domain rebate agreements), compared to new property value of 
$3.26 billion in FY 08. The table below depicts the impact of the proposed tax rate of 
$.4006 per $100 of taxable value on the average residential homeowner declaring his or 
her house as a homestead. This rate is 2.1 cents below the current tax rate of $.4216.  
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Executive Summary  31 

 
Impact on Average Homestead 

(All homestead values per Travis Central Appraisal District as of July 24, 2008) 
 

 FY 08 FY 09 Difference 
Average Appraised Value of 
All Homesteads 

$257,222 $282,894 $25,672

Taxable Value of Average 
Homestead  

$195,040 $211,388 $16,348

Tax Rate $.4216 $.4006 ($.0210)

Average Tax  $822.29 $846.82 $24.53
 
 

Preliminary Budget Tax Rates For Travis County 
(per $100 of Appraised Value) 

 

 Adopted Preliminary   
 FY 08 Rate FY 09 Rate Difference % Change 
Operating Rate $.3405 $.3278 ($.0127) (3.73%)
Debt Service Rate $.0811 $.0728 ($.0083) (10.23%)
Total Tax Rate $.4216 $.4006 ($.0210) (4.98%)

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



 
 
 
 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 

Financial Summaries & Charts  32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

APPENDIX I 
FINANCIAL SUMMARIES & CHARTS 

 
  

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 

Financial Summaries & Charts  33 

 
 
 
 
 

Page Number 
Appendix I - Financial Summaries & Charts .......................................................................... 33  

 Table 1 - Recapitulation of the Adopted Budget ...........................................................34-36 
 Chart 1 - Where Does the Money Come From? – All Funds ............................................. 37 
 Chart 2 - Where Does the Money Go? - All Funds ............................................................ 38 
 Chart 3 - Where Does the Money Come From? – General Fund ...................................... 39 
 Chart 4 - Where Does the Money Go? – General Fund..................................................... 40 
 Table 2 - FY 07 – FY 09 General Fund Department Budgets.......................................41-42 
 Table 3 - FY 09 Position Changes List .........................................................................43-45 
 Table 4 - Reserve Ratio of General Fund, Road & Bridge and Debt Service Combined... 46 
 Table 5 - FY 09 Summary of Budget Requests ............................................................47-59 
 Table 6 - Capital Funded Through CAR........................................................................60-63 
 Table 7 - Computer and Telecommunication Items Budgeted Centrally in ITS ............64-65 
 Table 8 - Vehicles and Heavy Equipment Budgeted Centrally in TNR .............................. 66 
 Table 9 - Projects Funded Through New Certificates of Obligation ................................... 67 
 Table 10 - Projects Funded Through Voter Approved Bonds ............................................ 68 
 Table 11 - Items and Projects Funded from Other Funds.............................................69-71 
 Table 12 - Incomplete List of FY08 CAR Funded Capital to be Rebudgeted in FY09 ....... 72 
 Table 13 - Approved Earmarks on Allocated Reserves and CAR Reserve ....................... 73 
 Table 14 - Tax Rate Comparison, FY 96 – FY 09.............................................................. 74 
 Chart 5 - Travis County Taxes on the Average Homestead and Property Tax Revenue ..75 

 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY  FY 09 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 

Amended Third Revenue Estimate  76 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

APPENDIX II 
AMENDED THIRD REVENUE ESTIMATE 

 
 

Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm



Last updated 8-4-08 at 3:23 pm


	Item 1
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 36
	Item C2
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Housing Finance Item 1
	Health Facilities Item 1
	Corporations Item 1



